Marco Rubio
Speaker

Healthcare
Council

Tuesday, March 25, 2008
10:00 AM - 12:00 PM
Morris Hall

Revised

Aaron Bean
Chair


oce.admin
Typewritten Text
Revised





Council Meeting Notice
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Speaker Marco Rubio

Healthcare Council

Start Date and Time: Tuesday, March 25, 2008 10:00 am
End Date and Time: Tuesday, March 25, 2008 12:00 pm
Location: Morris Hall (17 HOB)

Duration: 2.00 hrs

Consideration of the following proposed council bill(s):

PCB HCC 08-23 -~ Prescription Drug Donation Program

Consideration of the following bill(s):

HB 121 Special Observances by Brisé

HB 153 Human Immunodeficiency Virus and Acquired Immune Deficiency Syndrome Educational Requirements
by Cusack

HB 243 Automated External Defibrillators by Anderson

HB 247 Nursing Facilities by Murzin

HB 333 Developmental Disabilities Institutions by Nehr

HB 341 Treatment Programs for Impaired Practitioners by Holder

HB 637 Electronic Health Records by Grimsley

HB 731 Personal Care Attendant Program by Gardiner

HB 989 Physician Assistants by Bogdanoff- :

Budget Workshop

Pursuant to rule 7.12, the deadline for amendments to bills on the agenda by non-appointed members shall
be 6:00 p.m., Monday, March 24, 2008.

By request of the Chair, all committee members are asked to have amendments to bills on the agenda
submitted to staff by 6:00 p.m., Monday, March 24, 2008.

NOTICE FINALIZED on 03/2i/2008 16:12 by BAI

03/21/2008 4:12:02PM Leagis ® . Page 1 of 1






PCB HCC 08-23






HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: PCB HCC 08-23 Prescription Drug Donation Program
SPONSOR(S): Healthcare Council
TIED BILLS: ' IDEN./SIM. BILLS:
REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR
Orig. Comm.: Healthcare Council v Owen Gorrr%
1),
2)
)
4) -
5)
SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The Proposed Council Bill amends the existing Cancer Drug Donation Program within the Department of
Health, renaming it the Prescription Drug Donation Program. The proposed bill expands the type of drugs that
may be donated, from cancer drugs and supplies to all non-schedule prescription drugs and supplies. The
proposed bill expands the facilities that participate in the program, from a class Il hospital pharmacy to any

pharmacy or dispensing practitioner.

The proposed bill appears to have an insignificant fiscal impact to the Drug, Device, and Cosmetic Trust Fund

(see fiscal analysis).

The proposed bill is effective July 1, 2008.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: pcb23.HCC.doc
DATE: 3/18/2008



FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS
A. HOUSE PRINCIPLES ANALYSIS:
The proposed bill does not seem to implicate any of the House Principles.

B. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:
Present Situation

Cancer Drug Donation Program

In 20086, the Legislature adopted the “Cancer Drug Donation Program Act.”' The Department of Health
(department) maintains the program under which a donor may donate cancer drugs or supplies used to
administer cancer drugs to a participant facility for dispensing to eligible recipients.

Section 499.029(8), F.S., authorizes the department to adopt rules relating to recipient eligibility criteria,
standards and procedures for participant facilities, forms for administration of the program, fees
charged by a participant facility, categories of cancer drugs and supplies accepted in the program, and
maintenance and distribution of the participant facility registry.

Recipient Eligibility Requirements

A Florida resident who is diagnosed with cancer and has a valid prescription from their physician is
eligible to receive drugs or supplies through the Cancer Drug Donation Program (program). A person
is ineligible to participate in the program if he orshe is eligible to receive cancer drugs or supplies
through the Medicaid program, third-party insurer, or any other prescription drug program funded in
whole or in part by the Federal Government, unless these benefits have been exhausted, or a certain
cancer drug or supply need is not covered by the program.?

According to the department, three people have received donated cancer drugs since the program
began its operation.

Donor Eligibility Requirements
Cancer drugs and supplies may be donated to a participant facility by the following individuals or
entities located within Florida: ®
e A patient or a patient representative, donated through a closed drug delivery system“ by the
facility where the patient is receiving treatment;
Health care facilities, nursing homes, hospices, or hospitals with a closed drug delivery systém;
Pharmacies, drug manufacturers, medical device manufacturers or suppliers, or wholesalers of
drugs or supplies; or
» Alicensed allopathic or osteopathic physician who receives cancer drugs or supplies directly
from a pharmacy, drug manufacturer, or drug wholesaler.

Standards and Procedures for Participant Facilities
A Class Il Institutional Pharmacy® (pharmacy) that accepts stores, and dispenses donated cancer
drugs and supplies may participate in the program.® Participation is voluntary. A pharmacy that elects

! Ch. 2006-310, Laws of Florida
2 Rule 64F-12.026, F.A.C. and section 499.029(9), F.S.
Scctlon 499.029(3)(d), F.S.
* Section 499. 029(3)(b), F.S., defines a “closed drug delivery system” as a system in which the actual control of the unit-dose
medication package is mamtalncd by the facility rather than by the individual patient.
3 Section 465.019(2)(b), F.S. , defines “class II institutional pharmacies™ as those institutional pharmacies which employ the services of

a registered pharmacist who. ..shall provide dispensing and consulting services on the premises to patients of that institution, for use
STORAGE NAME: pcb23.HCC.doc . ) PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/18/2008



to‘ participate in the program must complete and submit a notice of participation form to the department.
Likewise, a pharmacy may discontinue their participation in the program by completing and submitting
to the department a notice of withdrawal form.

A participant pharmacy may decline to accept a donation. A cancer drug or supply may not be donated
to a specific cancer patient.” A dispenser of donated cancer drugs or supplies is not allowed to submit
a claim or seek reimbursement for donated products dispensed under the program. However, a
participant pharmacy may charge the recipient of the drug or supply a handling fee of no more than
300% of the Medlcald dispensing fee or no more than $15, whichever is less, for each cancer drug or
supply dispensed.®

The pharmacy must store the donated cancer drugs and supplies in a secure storage area under
appropriate environmental conditions and may not be stored with non-donated inventory.® Al
donations must be dispensed by a licensed pharmacist. Prior to being dispensed, a pharmacist must
inspect the cancer drug or supplies to determine that they do not appear to be tampered with or
mislabeled.™

A donation form must be signed by the donor when cancer drugs or supplies are donated fo a
participant pharmacy. Before a cancer drug or supply is dispensed, the recipient must sign a form and
be notified both orally and in writing that the product may have been previously dispensed."" These
forms include the donor or recipient’s name; the recipient or dispensing pharmacy’s name; the
medication; medication strength, expiration date, lot number, and quantity. Each time the pharmacy
destroys a donated drug or supply, the person destroying the product must complete a destruction form
that includes the medication name, strength, expiration date, lot number, and quantity. The pharmacy
is required to keep all donor, recipient, and destruction records on file for at least three years.*

According to the department, as of March 20, 2008, there are three participating pharmacies: Lee
Memorial Hospital, Inc., in Ft. Myers, Halifax Medical Center in Daytona Beach, and Florida Hospital
Celebration Health in Celebration. Lee Memorial Hospital has received a total of four eligible cancer
drug donations as of March 18, 2008 and Halifax Medical Center has received a total of three eligible
cancer drug donations as of January 17, 2008. Florida Hospital Celebration Health was approved to
participate on February 20, 2008, so they do not have any data to report to date. A total of seven
eligible cancer drugs have been donated to participating pharmacies statewide.™

Standards and Categories of Cancer Drugs and Supplies Accepted in the Program
A cancer drug is eligible for donation under this program only if the drug:™
 Isinits original, unopened, sealed container, or in a tamper-evident'® unit-dose packaging;
o Single-unit dose drugs may be accepted if the single-unit dose packaging is unopened
» Has never been in the actual control of the patient, but rather has been maintained by a health
care facility in a closed drug delivery system;
Will not expire until at least six months after the donation is made;
e |s accompanied by a completed Cancer Drug Donation Program Donation and Destruction
Record that is signed by the donor or that person’s authorized representative.

on the premises of that institution.” However, section 499.029(4), F.S. states that a participant facility may provide dispensing and
consulting services to individuals who are not patients of the hospital.
% Rule 64F-12.026(3), F.A.C.
7 Section 499.029(4), F.S. and Rule 64F-12. 026(3)(e)5., F.A.C.
¥ Section 499.029(7)(b), F.S. and Rule 64F-12. 026(5), F.A.C.
® Rule 64F-12.026(3)(d), F.A.C.
19 Section 499.029(5)(c), F.S.
I Rule 64F-12.026(3)(e)3., F.A.C.
12 Rule 64F-12.026(f), F.A.C.
Department of Health presentation to the House Health Quality Committee, February 19, 2008.
™ Section 499.029(6)(a)~(b), F.S.

15 Tamper evident packaging means a package that seals an individual pill in a plastic bubble typlcally with a foil backing.
STORAGE NAME: pcb23.HCC.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/18/2008



Cancer drugs billed to and paid for by Medicaid in long-term care facilities are not eligible for donation
unless they are not reimbursable by Medlcald Controlled substances, such as morphine, oxycodone,
or lorazepam, are not eligible for donation.®

Participant Facility Registry

The department is requnred in s. 499.029(10), F. S to establish and maintain a participant facility
registry on their website'” which includes the par‘umpant facility’s name, address, and telephone
number. The department’s website is also requnred to contain links to cancer drug manufacturers that
offer drug assistance programs or free medication.®

Liability

Any donor of cancer drugs or participant in the program who exercises reasonable care in participating
in the program is immune from civil or criminal liability and from professional disciplinary action for any
injury, death, or loss to person or property relating to the program. A pharmaceutical manufacturer is
not liable for a claim or injury arising from the transfer of a cancer drug donation.

Insurance Status of Floridians

Lack of health insurance and other barriers to health care prevent many Floridians from receiving
optimal medical care. According to the 2005 national health insurance survey data, there are
approximately 3.7 million Floridians (or 21% of the population) who lack health insurance.

Health Insurance Coverage of the Total Population (2005-2006)

Source of FL Population % U.S. Population %
Insurance

Employer 8,407,430 47% 158,515,473 54%
individual 927,973 : 5% 14,515,865 5%
Medicaid 1,809,230 10% 37,994,482 13%
Medicare 2,778,367 16% 35,049,875 12%
Other Public 276,997 2% 2,986,514 1%
Uninsured 3,722,263 21% 46,994,627 16%
Total 17,922,260 100% 296,056,836 100%

(Source: Kaiser Foundation - Florida; Health Insurance Coverage of the Total Population, states 2005-2006, U.S. 2006)

Prescription Drug Donation Programs in Other States

A total of 26 states have authorized a prescription drug repository program (see Figure 1). Of those
states, seven (including Florida) limit their program to cancer drugs. The other states have authorized
different variations of prescription drug repository programs. For example, the state of Ohio allows all
prescription drugs, except controlled substances and drug samples, which have been kept in a closed
drug delivery system to be donated to a participating pharmacy, hospital, or nonprofit clinic.? And the
state of Oklahoma allows all prescription drugs, except controlled substances, which have been kept in
a closed drug delivery system to be transferred from residential care homes, nursing facilities, assisted
living centers, public intermediate care facilities for people with mental retardation, or pharmaceutical
manufacturers to pharmacies operated by a county.?'

1 Rule 64F-12.026(c)1., F.A.C.

"7 Found at http;//www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/DDC/Cancer/info_registry.pdf (last visited March 20, 2008).

' Found at http://www.doh.state.fl.us/mqa/DDC/Cancer/info_drugprogram.pdf (last visited March 20, 2008).

' Section 499.029(11) and (12), F.S.

20 Rule 4729-35-02 and Rule 4729-35-04, Ohio Administrative Code

2 Section 59-367.3, Oklahoma Statute

STORAGE NAME:
DATE:

pcb23.HCC.doc

PAGE: 4



LEGEND

- Cancer-specific programs - Non-specific programs

Figure 1 22

Effect of Proposed Changes

The proposed bill amends the existing Cancer Drug Donation Program within the department by:
e Expanding the types of drugs that may be donated, from cancer drugs and supplies to all non-
schedule prescription drugs and supplies. .
e Expanding the facilities that participate in the program, from a class I hospital pharmacy to any
pharmacy or dispensing practitioner.

The proposed bill deletes the definition of “department”, as this term is defined for all of part | of chapter
499 in s. 499.003, F.S.

The proposed bill deletes the definition of “health care clinic”, as this term is not substantively used in
the statute creating the Cancer Drug Donation Program.

C. SECTION DIRECTORY:
Section 1: Amends s. 499.029, relating to the Prescription Drug Donation Program.

Section 2: Provides an effective date of July 1, 2008.

Il. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT
A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT: |

1. Revenues:
None.

2. Expenditures:
See fiscal comments.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

z Department of Health presentation to the House Health Quality Committee, February 19, 2008.
STORAGE NAME: pcb23.HCC.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 3/18/2008



1. Revenues:
None

2. Expenditures:
None.

DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

Pharmacies that participate will incur costs associated with processing, storage, dispensing, and
disposal of the donated drugs and supplies. This cost could be recovered fully or in part by the
handling fee authorized in the bill. However, if the donation program is not covered under an insurance
program or coverage is exhausted a patient would incur the cost of the handling fee. Program
participants may directly benefit through any reduced drug treatment costs and access to
medications/supplies that they may not otherwise be able to afford.

FISCAL COMMENTS:

In 2006 the department was appropriated 1 full-time equivalent position, salary rate 42,715, and
$65,308 from the Drug, Device, and Cosmetic Trust Fund to create and maintain the registry, to provide
consultation and technical assistance, and to perform other administrative functions. Because of the
extended scope of the bill, additional staff may be needed to support the program depending upon the
rate of participation. However, there is very limited participation in the current program. As of January
2008, there were only two participating facilities and they have processed a total of seven donations.

In addition, the Medicaid program may realize a higher incidence of medications being credited back to
the program because of the expansion.

lll. COMMENTS
CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or take action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenues.

2. Other: )
None.

RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:
The bill appears to provide adequate rulemaking authority for the department.

DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:
The Department of Health suggested the following amendments:
e The term “dispensing practitioner” is not otherwise defined in chapter 499, part I, F.S.
Remove line 32 and insert:

(b) “Dispensing Practitioner” means a practitioner authorized by law to prescribe drugs, and may
dispense such drugs to his or her patients in the regular course of his or her practice as
provided in s. 465.0276.

(c) “Donor” means a patient or patient representative

STORAGE NAME: pcb23.HCC.doc PAGE: 6

‘DATE:

3/18/2008



» A pharmacist or dispensing practitioner provide dispensing and “counseling” services. As
written, the proposed bill provides that the participant may provide dispensing and counseling
services to an individual who is not a patient of the participant. This amendment is offered to
clarify that the individual must be an “eligible recipient” under this program.

Remove lines 85 - 86 and insert;

participant faeility may provide dispensing and counseling eensulting services to an eligible
recipient individuals who is are not a patient

D. STATEMENT OF THE SPONSOR

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

STORAGE NAME: pcb23.HCC.doc

PAGE: 7
DATE: 3/18/2008






FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVE S

PCB HCC 08-23 ORIGINAL YEAR
1 A bill to be entitled
2 An act relating to the Prescription Drug Donation Program;
3 amending s. 499.029, F.S.; expanding the drugs and
4 supplieé that may be donated under the program; expanding
5 the types of facilities that may participate in the
6 program; providing an effective date.
7
8| Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:
9
10 Section 1. . Sebtion 499.029, Florida Statutes, is amended
11| to read:
12 499.029 Prescription €amee¥ Drug Donation Program. --
13 (1) This section may be cited as the "Prescription Caneer
14| Drug Donation Program Act.™"
15 (2) There is created a Prescription €ameer Drug Donation
16| Program within the department ofHeatth for the purpose of
17| authorizing and facilitating the donation of prescription eaneer
18| drugs and supplies to eligible patients.
19 (3) As used in this section: '
20
21
22
23
24
25| substance—listedinSchedule IT Schedule ITI,—Schedule—IV—or
26| Sehedule Vofs5+—893-063—
27 - (a)4k} "Closed drug delivery system" means a system in
28| which the actual control of the unit-dose medication package is
Page 1 of 7
PCB HCC 08-23

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.



FLORIDA }1 O U S E O F R E P R E SlE N TAT I V E S

PCB HCC 08-23 ORIGINAL YEAR

29| maintained by the facility rather than by the individual

30| patient.

31 {e)r—'Department-means—the Department—of Health-

32 (b)+4é)> "Donor" means a patient or patient representative

33| who donates prescription eameer drugs or supplies needed to

34| administer prescription eameer drugs that have been maintained

35| within a closed drug delivery system; health care facilities,
36 nursing homes, hospices, or hospitals with closed drug delivery
37| systems; or pharmacies, drug manufacturers, medical device

38| manufacturers or suppliers, or wholesalers of drugs or supplies,
39| in accordance with this section. "Donor" includes a physician
40| licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 459 who receives cancer
41| drugs or supplies directly from a drug manufacturer, drug

42 wholesaler, or pharmacy.

43 (c)+4e)> "Eligible patient" means a person who the

44| department determines is eligible to receive prescription eaneer

45| drugs from the program.

46 (d)+4£> "Health care facility" means a health care facility
47| licensed under chapter 395.

48 | {g)—Heatth—eareelinice means—ahealth eare—elinie

49| Ilicensed—under partX—of chapter 460

50 : {e){h) '"Hospice" means a corporation licensed under part

51| IV of chapter 400.

52 (f)4+) T"Hospital" means a facility as defined in s.

53] 395.002 and licensed under chapter 395.

54 {g)45> "Nursing home" means a facility licensed under part
55| II of chapter 400.

Page 2 of 7
PCB HCC 08-23

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.



F L ORIDA H OU S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

PCB HCC 08-23 ORIGINAL ' YEAR
56 (h)-&)» "Participant faeility" means a elass—II-hospital

57| pharmacy or dispensing practitioner that has elected to

58| participate in the program and that accepts donated prescription

59| eanmeer drugs and supplies under the rules adopted by the

60| department for the program.

61 (i)4%) r"Pharmacist" means a person licensed under chapter
62 465.

63 (j)4m) "Pharmacy" means an entity licensed under chapter
64 465.

65 _ {k)+4m} "Prescribing practitioner" means a physician

66| licensed under chapters ehapter 458 or 459 or any other medical
67| professional with authority under state law to prescribe drugs
68| ecancermedication.

69 (1) +fer "Presdription drug" does not include a substance

70 listed in Schedule II, Schedule III, Schedule IV, or Schedule V

71 of s. 893.03.means—adrugas—defineddns5-—465-003{8)
72 (m)4p> "Program" means the Prescription €ameer Drug

73| Donation Program created by this section.
74 (n)4e)> "Supplies" means any supplies used in the

75| administration of a prescription eareer drug.

76 (4) Any donor may donate eareer drugs or supplies to a
77| participant faeility that elects to participate in the program

78| and meets criteria established by the department for such

79| participation. Prescription €ameer drugs or supplies may not be

80| donated to a specific eameer patient, and donated prescription

81| drugs or supplies may‘not be resold by the participant pregram.

82| Prescription €ameer drugs billed to and paid for by Medicaid in

83| long-term care facilities that are eligible for return to stock

Page 3 of 7

PCB HCC 08-23 .
CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.



FLORIDA H O U S E O F R EPRESENTATIVE S

PCB HCC 08-23 ORIGINAL YEAR

84| wunder federal Medicaid regulations shall be credited to Medicaid
85| and are not eligible for donmation under the program. A

86| participant faeility may provide dispensing and consulting

87 servicés to an individual indiwviduals who 1is axe not a patient
88| patients of the participant—hespital.

89 (5) The prescription eaneer drugs or supplies donated to

90| the program may be prescribed only by a prescribing practitioner
91| for use by an eligible patient and may be dispensed only by a

92| pharmacist_or a dispensing practitioner.

93 (6) (a) A prescription eamee¥ drug may only be accepted or

94| dispensed under the program if the drug is in its original,
95 unopened, sealed container, or in a tamper-evident unit-dose

96| packaging, except that a prescription eameer drug packaged in

97| single-unit doses may be accepted and dispensed if the outside
98| packaging is opened but the single-unit-dose packaging is
99| unopened with tamper-resistant packaging intact.

100 (b) A prescription eameer drug may not be accepted or

101| dispensed under the program if the drug bears an expiration date
102 that is less than 6 months after the date the drug was donated
103| or if the drug appears to have been tampered with or mislabeled
104| as determined in paragraph (c).

105 (c) Prior to being dispensed to an eligible patient, the

106| prescription eameer drug or supplies donated under the program

107 shall be inspected by a pharmacist or dispensing practitioner to

108| determine that the drug and supplies do not appear to have been
109| tampered with or mislabeled.

110 (d) A dispenser of donated prescription eameer drugs or

111} supplies may not submit a claim or otherwise seek reimbursement

Page 4 of 7
PCB HCC 08-23

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.



F L ORI DA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

PCB HCC 08-23 | ORIGINAL , YEAR

112y from any public or private third-party payor for donated

113| prescription eameer drugs or supplies dispensed to any patient

114| wunder the program, and a public or private third-party payor is
115  not required to provide reimbursement to a dispenser for donated

116| prescription eameer drugs or supplies dispensed to any patient

117| under the program.

118 (7) (a) A donation of prescription eaneer drugs or supplies

119| shall be made only at a participant’s partieipant facility. A

120| participant faeidity may decline to accept a donation. A
121| participant faeility that accepts donated prescription eaneer

122| drugs or supplies under the program shall comply with all
123 applicable provisions of state and federal law relating to the

124| storage and dispensing of the donated prescription eaneer drugs

125| or supplies.
126 (b) A participant faeility that voluntarily takes part in
127} the program may charge a handling fee sufficient to cover the

128| cost of preparation and dispensing of prescription eaneer drugs

129| or supplies under the progfam. The fee shall be established in
130| rules adopted by the department.

131 (8) The department; upon the recommendation of the Board
132| of Pharmacy, shall adopt rules to carry out the provisions of
133| this section. Initial rules under this section shall be adopted
134| no later than 90 days after the effective date of this act. The
135| zrules shall include, but not be limited to: ‘

136 (a) Eligibility criteria, including a method to determine

137| priority of eligible patients under the program.

Page 5 of 7
PCB HCC 08-23

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.



FLORTIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATI VES

PCB HCC 08-23 ORIGINAL YEAR

138 (b) Standards and procedures for participants participant
139| <£aeilities that accept, store, distribute, or dispense donated

140| prescription earmeer drugs or supplies.

141 (c) Necessary forms for administration of the program,
142| including, but not limited to, forms for use by entities that

143 donate, accept, distribute, or dispense prescription eaneex

144| drugs or supplies under the program.
145 (d) The maximum handling fee that may be charged by a
146| participant faeility that accepts and distributes or dispenses

147| donated prescription earmeer drugs or supplies.

148 (e) Categories of prescription eameer drugs and supplies

149| that the program will accept for dispensing; however, the
150| department may exclude any drug based on its therapeutic
151 effectiveness or high potential for abuse or diversion.
152 (f) Maintenance and distribution of the participant
153| £aeidity registry established in subsection (10).

154 (9) A person who is eligible to receive prescription

155| eaneer diugs or supplies under the state Medicaid program or

156/ under any other prescription drug program funded in whole or in
157| part by the state, by any other prescription drug program funded
158| in whole or in part by the Federal,GdVernment, or by any other
159| prescription drug program‘bffered by a third-party insurer,

160 unless benefits have been exhausted, or a certain prescription

161| eameer drug or supply is not covered by the prescription drug
162| program, is ineligible to participate in the program created
163| under this section.

l64 (10) The department shall establish and maintain a

165 participant £aeility registry for the program. The participant

-Page6of7
PCB HCC 08-23

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.



FLORTIT1TDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVE S

PCB HCC 08-23 ORIGINAL YEAR

166| £aeidity registry shall include the participant’s partieipant
167| <£aeilityls name, address, and telephone number. The department

168| shall make the participant £faeility registry available on the

169| department's website to any donor wishing to donate prescription
170| eaneer drugs or supplies to the program. The department's

171| website shall also contain links to prescription eameer drug

172| manufacturers that offer drug assistance programs or free
173| medication.

174 (11) Any donor of prescription eaneer drugs or supplies,

175| or any participant in the program, who exercises reasonable care

176| in donating, accepting, distributing, or dispensing prescription

177| eaneer drugs or supplies under the program and the rules adopted
178| under this section shall be immune from civil or criminal

179| liability and from professional disciplinary action of any kind
180| for any injury, death, or loss to person or property relating to
181| such activities.

182 (12) A pharmaceutical manufacturer is not liable for any
183| claim or injury arising from the transfer of any prescription

{

184| ecancer drug under this section, including, but not limited to,

185| liability for failure to transfer or communicate product or

186| consumer information regarding the transferred drug, as well as
187| the expiration date of the transferred drug.

188 (13) If any conflict exists between the‘provisions in this
189| section and the provisions in this chapter or chapter 465, the
190| provisions in this section shall control the operation of the
191| <€anecer Drug-Dematien program.

192 Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2008.

Page 7 of 7
PCB HCC 08-23

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.






}._l

©C VW W I O U R W N R

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 01 (for drafter’s use only)'
Bill No. PCB HCC 08-23
COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (/)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(Y/N)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _(Y/N)
WITHDRAWN _ (/N
OTHER

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Representative Harrell offered the following:

Amendment
Remove liné 32 and insert:

(¢) “Dispensing Practitioner” means a practitioner

registered under s. 465.0276.

d) “Donor” means a patient or patient representative

Page 1 of 1
PCB HCC 08-23_1.xml







l...l

O VW W NN o6 U R WD R

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 02 (for drafter’s use only)
Bill No. ‘PCB HCC 08-23
COUNCTIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED _ (y/N)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(Y/N)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT ' _ (Y/N)
WITHDRAWN . (y/mN)
OTHER

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Representative Harrell offered the following:

Amendment

Remove lines 85-86 and insert:
participant faeility may provide dispensing and counseling
- eonsutting services to an eligible patient imdiwiduals who is
are not a patient '

Page 1 of 1
PCB HCC 08-23 2.xml PCB HCC 08-23







HB 121






HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 121 Special Observances

SPONSOR(S): Brisé

TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 78

REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR

1)_.Committee on Healthy Families 8Y,0N Preston Schoolfieid

2) Healthcare Council Preston Gormlefd ¥x
(WA

3)

4)

5)

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The bill designates the second Monday in May of each year as “Child Welfare Professionals Recognition Day,”
to recognize the efforts of all professionals who work with abused children and dysfunctional families. The bill
encourages the Department of Children and Family Services and other agencies, as well as local
governments, to sponsor events to promote awareness of the child welfare system and to recogmze those

individuals who work in this area.

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.

STORAGE NAME: h0121b.HCC.doc
DATE: 3/21/2008



FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS
A. HOUSE PRINCIPLES ANALYSIS:
The bill does not appear to implicate any of the House Principles.

B. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Chapter 683, Florida Statutes, relates to legal holidays and special observances. Section 683.01,
Florida Statutes, designates 21 legal holidays, while other provisions in ss. 683.04-683.325, Florida
Statutes, designate special observances?® or explain the significance of certain legal holidays.®
Additionally, legal holidays for specific counties in the state are listed in the c’hapter.4 Section 683.01,
Florida Statutes, does not authorize state offices to be closed, nor does it authorize the designated
days as paid holidays for state employees. The nine holidays that are paid holidays for state employees
are listed in 5.110.117, Florida Statutes.®

The bill designates the second Monday in May of each year as “Child Welfare Professionals
Recognition Day,” to recognize the efforts of all professionals who work with abused children and
dysfunctional families. The bill encourages the Department of Children and Family Services and other
agencies, as well as local governments, to sponsor events to promote awareness of the child welfare
system and to recognize those individuals who work in this area.

C. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Creates s. 683.34, Florida Statutes, relating to “Child Welfare Professionals Recognition
Day.”

Section 2. Provides for an effective date of upon bécoming law.

' The legal holidays named in s. 683.01, F.S., are: (a) Sunday, the first day of each week; (b) New Year’s Day, January 1;
(c) Birthday of Martin Luther King, January 15; (d) Birthday of Robert E. Lee, January 19; () Lincoln’s Birthday, February
12; (f) Susan B. Anthony’s Birthday, February 15; (g) Washington’s Birthday, the third Monday in February; (h) Good
Friday; (i) Pascua Florida Day, April 2; (j) Confederate Memorial Day, April 26; (k) Memorial Day, the last Monday in May;
(1) Birthday of Jefferson Davis, June 3; (m) Flag Day, June 14; (n) Independence Day, July 4; (o) Labor Day, the first
Monday in September; (p) Columbus Day and Farmers’ Day, the second Monday in October; (q) Veterans’ Day,
November 11; (r) General Election Day; (s) Thanksgiving Day, the fourth Thursday in November; (t) Christmas Day,
December 25; and (u) Shrove Tuesday. . : .
? See Section 683.04, F.S. (Arbor Day), Section 683.05, F.S. (Pan-American Day), Section 683.10, F.S. (Grandmother’s
Day), Section 683.11, F.S. (Law Enforcement Appreciation Month), Section 683.115, F.S. (Law Enforcement Memorial
Day), Section 683.13, F.S. (National Day of Mourning), Section 683.14, F.S. (Patriots’ Day), Section 683.145, F.S. (I Am
An American Day), Section 683.15, F.S. (Teacher’s Day), Section 683.16, F.S. (Retired Teachers’ Day), Section 683.17,
F.S. (Children’s Day), Section 683.18, F.S. (Save the Florida Panther Day), Section 683.21, F.S. (Juneteenth Day),
Section 683.22, F.S. (Law Day and Law Week), Section 683.:23, F.S. (Florida Missing Children’s Day), Section 683.24
F.S. (Florida Alzheimer’s Disease Day); Section 683.25 (Bill of Rights Day); and 683.325 (Homeless Persons’ Memorial
Day).

® See Section 683.06 (discussing Pascua Florida Day), and Section 683.19, F.S. (providing that the chief judge in each
judicial circuit may declare Rosh Hashanah, Yom Kippur, and Good Friday as legal holidays for the courts within the
circuit).

* See Section 683.08, F.S. (designating Gasparilla Day as a legal holiday in Hillsborough County), Section 683.09, F.S.
(designating Desoto Day as a legal holiday in Manatee County), and Section 683.12, F.S. (designating Parade Day as a
legal holiday in Hillsborough County).

® The following holidays are paid holidays observed by all state branches and agencies: (a) New Year’s Day; (b) Birthday
of Martin Luther King, third Monday in January; (c) Memorial Day; (d) Independence Day; (e) Labor Day; (f) Veterans’

Day, November 11; (g) Thanksgiving Day; (h) Friday after Thanksgiving; and (i) Christmas Day.
STORAGE NAME: h0121b.HCC.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/21/2008



Il. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT
A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:
None.

2. Expenditures:
" None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:
None.

2. Expenditures:
None.

C. DIRECT ECONOM!C IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:
None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:
None.

lll. COMMENTS
A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not appear to require counties or municipalities to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds, reduce the authority that counties or municipalities have to raise revenue in the
aggregate, nor reduce the percentage of state tax shared with counties or municipalities.

2. Other:
None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

The phrase “abused children and dysfunctional families” on lines 14-15 of the bill may not accurately or
adequately capture those individuals served by child welfare professionals.

It is unclear who would be included in the category of “professionals” and “personnel” on lines 14 and
18 of the bill, respectively.

STORAGE NAME: h0121b.HCC.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/21/2008 .



D. STATEMENT OF THE SPONSOR
No sponsor statement was submitted.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

STORAGE NAME: h0121b.HCC.doc - PAGE: 4
. DATE: 3/21/2008 :



FLORIDA H O U 8§ E o F R EPRESENTATIVES

HB 121 2008

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to special observances; creating s.

3 683.34, F.S.; designating the second Monday in May as

4 "Child Welfare Professionals Recognition Day"; providing

5 an effective date.

6

7| Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

8

9 Section 1. Section 683.34, Florida Statutes, is created to
10| read:
11 683.34 Child Welfare Professionals Recognition Day.--The
12| second Monday in May of each year is designated ag "Child

13| Welfare Professionals Recognition Day" to recognize the efforts
14| of all professionals who work with abused children and
15| dysfunctional families. The Department of Children and Family
16| Services, local governments, and other agencies are encouraged
17| to sponsor events to promote awareness of the child welfare
18| system and recognize the personnel who work in the system.
19 Section 2. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

Page 1 of 1

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0121-00






NN R R R R B B B B R ‘
H O VW © <~ 60 BT ik W N H O W @ 4 6 U1 b W N B

N
N

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)
Bill No. 121
COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED . _ (¥/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(y/n)

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _(y/n)

FATLED TO ADOPT _ {Y/n)
WITHDRAWN _ (¥/N)

OTHER o

Council hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Representative Brise offered the following:

Amendment (with title amendment)

Remove everything after the enacting clause and insert:
Section 1. Section 683.34, Florida Statutes, is created to
read:

683.34 Child Welfare Professionals Recognition Davy.-- The

second Monday in May of each vear is designated as "Child

Welfare Professionals Recogniticon Day" to recognize the efforts

of all professionals who work with children and families who

have been, or are at risk of being, affected by abuse,

abandonment, or neglect. The Department of Children and Family

Services, local governments, and other agencies are encouraged

to sponsoxr events to promote awareness of the child welfare

system and recognize the professionals who work in the system.

Section 2. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

TITLE AMENDMENT

Remove the entire title and insert:

Page 1 of 2
Council amendment for HB 121.doc




23
24
25
26

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)
An act relating to special observances; creating s. 683.34,
F.S.; designating the second Monday in May as "Child Welfare

Professionals Recognition Day"; providing an effective date.

Page 2 of 2
Council amendment for HB 121.doc




HB 153






HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 153 Human Immunodeficiency Virus and Acquired Immune Deficiency
Syndrome Educational Requirements '
SPONSOR(S): Cusack and others

TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 646
REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR
1) Committee on Health Quality 12Y,0N Owen Lowell

2) Healthcare Council ) Owen ( m Gorml@%

3) Policy & Budget Council
4)

5)

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

This bill modifies the requirement for completion of a continuing educational course on HIV and AIDS from
biennial to one-time for employees and clients of developmental disability facilities, mental health facilities, or
substance abuse facilities, and employees of hospitals, nursing homes, home health agencies, hospices, or
assisted living facilities.

The bill specifies that an employee who has completed an HIV and AIDS educational course is not required to
repeat the course upon changing employment to a different facility. The educational course requirement does
not apply to acupuncturists, physicians, osteopathic physicians, chiropractors, podiatrists, optometrists, nurses,
pharmacists, dentists, dental hygienists, nursing home administrators, occupational therapists, respiratory
therapists, dieticians, nutritionists, or physical therapists, who must follow the requirements for instruction on
HIV and AIDS found in s. 456.033, F.S. '

The bill also requires each nurse registry to obtain proof of completion of a continuing educational course on
HIV and AIDS in the application form of every applicant for contract.
The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

The bill takes effect July 1, 2008.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0153c.HCC.doc
DATE: 3/21/2008



FULL ANALYSIS
I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. HOUSE PRINCIPLES ANALYSIS:

The bill does not appear to implicate any of the House principles.

B. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation:

Continuing Educational Course on HIV and AIDS

All employees and clients of facilities licensed under chapters 393 (developmental disability facilities),
394 (mental health facilities), or 397 (substance abuse facilities), F.S., and employees of facilities
licensed under chapter 395 (hospitals), F.S., part Il (nursing homes), part Ill (home health agencies),
or part IV (hospices) of chapter 400, F.S., or part | (assisted living facilities) of chapter 429, F.S., are
required by the Department of Health (department) to biennially complete a continuing educational
course on the transmission, infection control procedures, clinical management, and prevention of HIV
and AIDS. New employees are also required to complete a similar educational course on HIV and
AIDS.

In 20086, the Legislature repealed the biennial educational course on HIV/AIDS as a requirement of re-
licensure for certain health care practitioners licensed under chapter 456, F.S.,? and, instead, required
a one-time educational course on HIV/AIDS. However, the requirement for facility employees to
complete the biennial educational course on HIV/AIDS remained in statute. Consequently, those health
care practitioners who are employed in certain facilities are still required to complete the biennial HIV
and AIDS course, despite the fact that the requirement was repealed for most professions in 2006.

Licensure of Nurse Registries

Nurse registries provide skilled and personal care. Nurse registries are set-up differently than home
health agencies in that they hire independent contractors who are registered nurses, certified nurse
assistants (CNA), home health aides, licensed practical nurses, homemakers, or companions to
provide services to patients in their homes. These individuals are not direct employees of the nurse
registry, but are independent contractors. A patient contracts with a nurse registry and the independent
contractors for services. The patient makes a direct contract with the individual contractor sent from
the nurse registry.

! House Bill 699; Chapter 2006-251, L.O.F.

2 Health care professionals who are required in s. 456.033, F.S. to complete a one-time HIV/AIDS educational course include:
acupuncturists (chapter 457, F.S.), physicians (chapter 458, F.S. ), osteopathlc physicians (chapter 459, F.S.), chiropractors (chapter
460, F.S.), podiatrists (chapter 461, F.S.), optometrists (chapter 463, F.S.), nurses (part I of chapter 464, F.S.), pharmacists (chapter
465, F.S.), dentists and dental hygienists (chapter 466, F.S.), nursing home administrators (part IT of chapter 468, F.S.), occupational
therapists (part III of chapter 468, F.S.), respiratory therapists (part V of chapter 468, F.S.), dieticians and nutritionists (part X of
chapter 468, F.S.), and physical theraplsts (chapter 486, F.S.). However, s. 456.034, F.S., maintains the biennial HTV/AIDS

educational course requirement for athletic trainers and massage therapists.
STORAGE NAME: h0153c.HCC.doc PAGE: 2
" DATE: 3/21/2008



A nurse registry is required to obtain the following information from the independent contractors they
refer: name, address, date of birth, and social security number; educational background and
employment history; number and date of the applicable license or certification and renewal information.

On April 10, 2006, the Joint Administrative Procedures Committee (JAPC) sent a letter to the Agency
for Health Care Administration (agency) providing comments on the agency’s proposed amendment to
Rule 59A-18.0081(11). This proposed amendment required CNA’s and home health aides referred by
nurse registries to have completed a continuing education course biennially on HIV/AIDS pursuant to s.
381.0035, F.S. The JAPC advised the agency that s. 381.0035, F.S., states “The department [of
health] may adopt rules to carry out the provisions of this section.” Accordingly, the JAPC requested
the agency to “provide the specific rulemaking authority to adopt rules to implement this statute.”
Following the JAPC inquiry, the agency changed its proposed rule to strike this course requirement.

Effect of Proposed Changes:

This bill amends s. 381.0035, F.S., to require all employees and clients of facilities licensed under
chapters 393, 394, or 397, F.S., and employees of facilities licensed under chapter 395, F.S., part |l
part lIl, or part IV of chapter 400, F.S., or part | of chapter 429, F.S., to complete a one-time educational
course on the transmission, infection control procedures, clinical management, and prevention of HIV
and AIDS. The proposed changes in this bill will standardize the HIV and AIDS course requirement for
most health care practitioners and employees of health care facilities.

The bill exempts an employee from repeating the HIV and AIDS éducational course upon changing
employment to a different facility. The bill also exempts an employee who is subject to the HIV and
AIDS course requirements found in s. 456.033, F.S, from the course requirements in the bill.

The bill also amends s. 400.506, F.S., to direct each nurse registry to require every applicant for
contract to include proof of completion of a continuing educational course on HIV and AIDS in their
application form.

C. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Amends s. 381.0035, F.S,, relating to educational courses on HIV and AIDS for employees
and clients of specified licensed health care facilities.

Section 2. Amends s. 400.506, F.S., relating to licensure of nurse registries.

Section 3. Provides an effective date of July 1, 2008.

Il. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT
A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:
None.

2. Expenditures:

STORAGE NAME: h0153c.HCC.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/21/2008



None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:
None.

2. Expenditures:
None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:
There is a potential revenue loss to entities that provide an HIV and AIDS course for a fee.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:
None."

ll. COMMENTS
A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

Not applicable because the bill does not appear to require counties or cities to spend funds or take
action requiring the expenditure of funds; reduce the authority that cities or counties have to raise
revenues in the aggregate; or reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with cities or counties.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:
The agency and department have sufficient rulemaking authority to implement the provisions of the bill.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:
None.

D. STATEMENT OF THE SPONSOR

| am proud to sponsor this good bill. It provides consistency in training for healthcare professionals
regardless of where they work. It makes it easier for individuals who work in the various types of
facilities and healthcare settings to follow the same rules and guidelines for HIV/AIDS education.

Based on the recommendation of committee staff, | will be offering a technical amendment to HB 153
which clarifies that an employee, whether new or an existing staff member, will have the same
HIV/AIDS training requirement. However, employers if they prefer will have the flexibility to offer more
training to employees than is mandated by my bill.

STORAGE NAME: h0153c.HCC.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 3/21/2008



| appreciate the opportunity to present this important legislation.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

On December 11, 2007, the Health Quality Committee adopted one amendment to the bill. The
amendment removes the reference to “new employees” and clarifies that the one-time HIV/AIDS course
requirement applies to all employees of the facilities listed. It also removes the reference to a certificate
received by those who complete the course. Finally, the amendment clarifies that the bill does not
apply to an employee subject to the educational requirements of s. 456.033, F.S.

The bill was reported favorably with recommended Council Substitute.

STORAGE NAME: h01563c.HCC.doc PAGE: 5

DATE:

3/21/2008






FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 153 2008
1 A bill to be entitled
2 An acﬁ relating to human immunodeficiency virus and
3 gcquired immune deficiency syndrome educational
4 requirements; amending s. 381.0035, F.S.; revising
5 requirements relating to educational courses on HIV and
6 AIDS for certain employees and clients of specified
7 licensed health care facilities; specifying applicability;
8 amending s. 400.506, F.S.; revising requirements with
9 respect to educational courses on HIV and AIDS for nurse
10 registries; providing an effective date. |
11
12| Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:
13
14 Section 1. Section 381.0035, Florida Statutes, is amended
15{ to read:
16 381.0035 Educational course on HIV and AIDS; employees and
17| clients of certain health care facilities.--
18 (1) The Department of Health shall require all employees
19| and clients of facilities licensed under chapter ehaepters 393,
20| chapter 394, or chapter amd 397 and employees of facilities
21 licensed'under chapter 395, part parts II, part III, or part and
22 IV of chapter 400, or amd part I of chapter 429 to complete+
23| bierniallyr a one-time eentinwing educational course on the
24| modes of transmission, infection control procedures, clinical
25| management, and prevention of human immunodeficiency virus and
26| acquired immune deficiency syndrome with an emphasis on
27| appropriate behavior and attitude change. Such instruction shall
28| include information on current Florida law and its impact on |

Page 1 of 3

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
: : ' hb0153-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F R EPRESENTATIVE S

HB 153 2008

29| testing, confidentiality of test results, and treatment of v

30| patients and any protocols and procedures applicable to human

31| immunodeficiency counseling and testing, reporting, the offering
32| of HIV testing to pregnant women, and partner notification

33 issues pursuant to ss. 381.004 and 384.25.

34 (2) New employees shall be required to complete or provide

35| proof that they have completed a course on human

36| immunodeficiency virus and acquired immune deficiency syndrome,
37| with instruction to include information on current Florida law
38| and its impact on testing, confidentiality of test results, and

39| treatment of patients. Upon completing training on human

40| Aimmunodeficiency virus and acquired immune deficiency syndrome,

41 a certificate shall be issued. The certificate shall be evidence

42| of completion of training, and the employee is not required to

43| repeat training in that topic upon changing employment to a

44| different facility licensed under chapter 393, chapter 394,

45| chapter 395, or chapter 397, part II, part III, or part IV of

46| chapter 400, or part I of chapter 429.

47 (3) Facilities licensed under chapter ehapters 393,

48 chapter 394, chapter 395, or chapter amd 397, part paxres II,

49| part III, or part amd IV of chapter 400, or angd part I of

50| chapter 429 shall maintain a record of employees and dates of
51| attendance at human immunodeficiency virus and acquired immune
52| deficiency syndrome educational courses.

53 (4) The department shall have the authority to review the
54| records of each facility to determine compliance with the

55| requirements of this section. The department may adopt rules to

56| carry out the provisions of this section.

Page 2 of 3

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0153-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 153 2008

57 (5) This section does not apply to an employee who is

58| licensed or certified under chapter 458, chapter 459, chapter

59| 461, part I of chapter 464, part II of chapter 468; or chapter

60| 486. However, the employee must comply with the human

61| immunodeficiency virus and acquired immune deficiency syndrome

62| educational requirements for the employee's profession.

63 Section 2. Paragraph (e) is added to subsection (8) of

64| section 400.506, Florida Statutes, to read:

65 400.506 Licensure of nurse registries; requirements;

66| penalties.--

67 (8) Each nurse registry must require every applicant for
68| contract to‘complete an application form providing the following
69| information:

70 ~ (e) Proof of completion of a continuing educational course

71} on modes of transmission, infection control procedures, clinical

72| management, and prevention of human immunodeficiency virus and

73| acquired immune deficiency syndrome with an emphasis on

74| appropriate behavior and attitude change. Such instruction shall

75| include information on current Florida law and its impact on

76| testing, confidentiality of test results, and treatment of

77| patients and any protocols and procedures applicable to human

78| immunodeficiency counseling and testing, reporting, offering HIV

79| testing to pregnant women, and partner notification issues

80| pursuant to ss. 381.004 and 384.25.

81 Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 2008.

Page 3 of 3

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
, ‘ hb0153-00






O VW 0 N O U Bk W N B

N HOHEH R H B R B popRpop
© LV W T O U W N R

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)
Bill No. 153
COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION |

ADOPTED _ (¥y/N)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(Y/N)
ADOPTED W/0O OBJECTION _(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _(y/w)
WITHDRAWN _ (y/m)
OTHER

Council/Committee hearing bill: -Healthcare Council

Committee on Health Quality offered the following:

Amendment (with directory and title amendments)
Remove line(s) 33-62 and insert:

issues pursuant to ss. 381.004 and 384.25. An employee who has

completed the educational course required in this subsection is

not required to repeat the course upon changing employment to a

different facility licensed under chapter 393, chapter 394,

chapter 395, or chapter 397, part II, part III, or part IV of

chapter 400, or part I of chapter 429.

(2)43)> Facilities licensed under chapter ehapters 393,
chapter 394, chapter 395, or chapter and 397, part parts ITI,

part III, or part amd IV of chapter 400, or and part I of

chapter 429 shall maintain a record of .employees and dates of

This amendment was adopted in HQ on 12/11/07 and is traveling
with the bill and requires no further action.

Page 1 of 2
HO0153-hcec-01




21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)
attendance at human immunodeficiency virus and acquired immune
deficiency syndrome educational courses.

{3)44)> The department shall have the authority to review
the records of each facility to determine compliance with the
requirements of this section. The department may adopt rules to
carry out the provisions of this section.

(4) This section does not apply to an emplovee who is

subiject to the requirements of s. 456.033.

This amendment was adopted in HQ on 12/11/07 and is traveling
with the bill and requires no further action.

Page 2 of 2
H0153-hcec-01




HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES

Amendment No. 02 (for drafter’s use only)

Bill No.

COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED __ (y/m)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED S (Y/N)
ADOPTED W/0O OBJECTION _ (Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _(Y/N)
WITHDRAWN _ (y/nN)
OTHER

153

" Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Representative Cusack offered the following:

Amendment
Remove line 78 and insert:

immunodeficiency virus counseling and testing, reporting,

offering HIV

W W g 6 U W N R

Page 1 of 1

H0153-hce-02.xml







HB 243






HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 243 Automated External Defibrillators
SPONSOR(S): Anderson and others
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS:
REFERENCE_ ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR
1) Committee on Health Quality 11Y,0N Owen  ~—~_ Lowell

2) Healthcare Council - Owen (@ Gorml&w
, | 4 = v/

3)

4)

5)

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

An Automated External Defibrillator (AED) is a small, lightweight device used to assess a person’s heart
rhythm and, if necessary, administer an electronic shock to restore a normal heart rhythm in a victim of cardiac
arrest. -

The bill broadens the scope of those who are required to receive training in the use of an AED by removing
provisions requiring a person who uses an AED to obtain proper training that includes demonstrated
proficiency in the use of an AED and, instead, requires any “person or entity in possession” of an AED to
properly maintain and test the device and provide training to anyone who is expected to be a potential user of
the AED.

The bill encourages persons who possess an AED to notify, rather than register with, the local emergency
medical services director of the location of the device.

The bill broadens the civil immunity provided under the Cardiac Arrest Survival Act for harm resulting from the
use of an AED by removing several provisions which specify instances when a person and an acquirer of the
device are not immune from civil liability.

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

The bill provides an effective date of July 1, 2008.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0243b.HCC.doc
DATE: 3/21/2008



FULL ANALYSIS

. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. HOUSE PRINCIPLES ANALYSIS:
This bill does not appear to implicate any of the House Principles.

B. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation

Use of an AED

The American Heart Association (AHA) describes cardiac arrest as “the sudden, abrupt loss of heart
function. The victim may or may not have diagnosed heart disease. It’s also called sudden cardiac
arrest or unexpected cardiac arrest. Sudden death (also called sudden cardiac death) occurs within
minutes after symptoms appear.”

According to the AHA, brain death and permanent death start to occur within four to six minutes after
someone experiences cardiac arrest. Cardiac arrest can be reversed if it is treated within a few
minutes with an electric shock to the heart to restore a normal heartbeat - a process called

_defibrillation. The AHA states that a victim’s chances of survival are reduced by seven to ten percent
with every passing minute without cardiopulmonary resuscitation and defibrillation, and few attempts at
resuscitation succeed after ten minutes. :

An automated external defibrillator (AED) is an electronic device that can shock a person’s heart back
into rhythm when he or she is having a cardiac arrest. The AHA estimates that more than 95 percent of
cardiac arrest victims die before reaching the hospital. In situations where defibrillation is provided
within five to seven minutes, the survival rate from sudden cardiac arrest can be up to 49 percent.

Section 401.2915, Florida Statutes, requires any person who uses an AED to:
¢ Obtain appropriate training, including completion of a course in cardiopulmonary resuscitation or
completion of a basic first aid course that includes cardiopuimonary resuscitation training, and
demonstrated proficiency in the use of an AED; and
» Activate the emergency medical services system as soon as possible upon use of the AED.

In addition, this section encourages any person or entity in possession of an AED to register the
existence and location of the AED with the local emergency medical services medical director.

Tort Liability -
Section 768.13, F.S., the Good Samaritan Act, among other provisions, provides lmmunlty from any

civil damages for a person who renders emergency care, without objection of the injured victim, as long
as the person has acted as an ordinary reasonably prudent person would have acted under the same
or similar circumstances.

Section 768.1325, F.S., the Cardiac Arrest Survival Act, provides immunity from civil liability for a
person who uses or attempts to use, without the objection of the victim, an AED in a perceived medical
emergency. In addition, any person who acquired the device, including a community association, is
immune from civil liability, if the harm was not due to the failure of the acquirer of the AED to:

¢ Notify the local emergency medical services medical director of the most recent placement of
the device within a reasonable period of time after the device was placed;
o Properly maintain and test the device; or

STORAGE NAME: h0243b.HCC.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/21/2008



» Provide adequate training in the use of the device to an employee or agent of the acquirer when
the employee or agent was the person who used the device on the victim, except that the
training requirement does not apply if:

o. The employee or agent was not someone who would have been reasonably expected to
use the device.

o The period of time elapsing between the person’s employment date and the occurrence
of the harm, or between the acquisition of the AED and the occurrence of the harm was
not a reasonably sufficient period in which to provide the training.

However, s. 768.1325(4), F.S., states that the immunity does not apply to a person if:

e The harm was caused by that person’s willful or criminal misconduct, gross negligence, reckless
disregard or misconduct, or a conscious, flagrant indifference to the rights or safety of the victim
who was harmed;

e The person is a licensed or certlfled health professional who used the AED while acting within
the scope of their license or certification and within the scope of their employment or agency;

e The person is a hospital, clinic, or other health care entity, and the harm was caused by an
employee or agent of the entity who used the AED while acting within the scope of the
employment or agency of the employee or agent;

e The person is an acquirer of the AED who leased the device to a health care entity and the
harm was caused by an employee or agent of the entity who used the device while acting within
the scope of the employment or agency of the employee or agent; or

o The person is the manufacturer of the device.

Effect of Proposed Changes

House Bill 243 broadens the scope of those who are required to receive training in the use of an AED
by removing provisions requiring a person who uses an AED to obtain proper training that includes
demonstrated proficiency in the use of an AED and, instead, requiring any “person or entity in
possession” of an AED to properly maintain and test the device and provide training in cardiopulmonary
resuscitation and AED proficiency from the American Heart Association or the American Red Cross, or
a substantially similar program from another provider, to any of its employees or agents who are
reasonably expected to be potential users of the AED.

The bill encourages a person or entity in possession of an AED to notify, rather than register with, the
local emergency medical services medical director of the location of the device.

The bill broadens the civil immunity provided under the Cardiac Arrest Survival Act, s. 768.1325(3),
F.S., by first removing the requirement that the victim of the perceived medical emergency not object to
the use of the AED. Second, the bill removes several provisions that specify instances in which the
acquirer of the AED is not immune from civil liability. These provisions specify that the harm must not
be due to the failure of acquirer of the device to:
* Notify the local emergency medical services director of the most recent placement of the device.
e Properly maintain and test the device; or
» Provide adequate training in the use of the device to an employee or agent of the acquirer when
the employee or agent was the person who used the device on the victim, except that such
requirement of training does not apply if: "
o The employee or agent was not someone who would have been reasonably expected to
use the device.
o The period of time elapsing between the person’s employment date and the occurrence
of the harm, or between the acquisition of the AED and the occurrence of the harm was
not a reasonably sufficient period in which to provide the training.

However, the bill does not amend s. 768.1325(4), F.S., which, as previously discussed, provides
additional instances in which a person is not immune from civil liability.

STORAGE NAME: h0243b.HCC.doc PAGE: 3

DATE:

3/21/2008



C. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Amends s. 401.2915, F.S., revising provisions relating to maintenance and training
requirements and notice to the local emergency medical services medical director.

Section 2. Amends s. 768.1325, F.S., revising requirements for civil immunity for use or attempted use
of a defibrillator on a victim of a perceived medical emergency.

Section 3. Provides an effective date of July 1, 2008.

ll. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT
A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:
None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:
None.

2. Expenditures:
None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

There is a potential impact to private businesses that possess an AED. The bill requires these entities
to provide training to any employees or agents who are reasonably expected fo be users of the AED.
The exact economic impact to the private sector is unknown.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:
None.

lll. COMMENTS
A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicébility of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

Not a'pplicable because the bill does not appear to require counties or cities to spend funds or take
action requiring the expenditure of funds; reduce the authority that cities or counties have to raise
revenues in the aggregate; or reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with cities or counties.

2. Other:

STORAGE NAME: h0243b.HCC.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 3/21/2008



None.

RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

B.
N/A.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:
None.

D. STATEMENT OF THE SPONSOR
The intention of this bill is to limit liability to Good Samaritans trying to resuscitate individuals using an
Automated External Defibrillator (AED) which will encourage more usage, thus saving more lives.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL SUBSTITUTE CHANGES
On January 22, 2008, the Health Quality Committee adopted one amendment to the bill. The
amendment removes the reference to “the American Heart Association or the American Red Cross, or
a substantially similar program from another provider” when directing a person or entity in possession
of an AED to provide CPR and AED proficiency training to its employees or agents.
The bill was reported favorably with recommended Council Substitute.
STORAGE NAME: h0243b.HCC.doc » PAGE: 5

DATE:

3/21/2008






FLORIDA H O U S E O F R EPRESENTATIVES

HB 243 2008
1 A bill to be entitled
2 An act relating to automated external defibrillators;
3 amending s. 401.2915, F.S.; revising provisions relating
4 to maintenance and training requirements and notice to the
5 local emergency medical services medical director;
6 amending s. 768.1325, F.S.; revising requirements for
7 civil immunity for use or attempted use of a defibrillator
8 on a victim of a perceived medical emergency;'providing an
-9 effective date. |
10
11|{ Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:
12 '
13 Section 1. Paragraphs (a) and (b) of subsection (2) of
14 section 401.2915, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:
15 401.2915 Automated external defibrillators.--It is the
16| intent of the Legislature that an automated external
17| defibrillator may be used by any person for the purpose of
18| saving the life of another person in cardiac arrest. In order to
19| achieve that goal, the Legislature intends to encourage training
20| in lifesaving first aid and set standards for and encourage the
21| wuse of autbmated external defibrillators.
22 | (2) 1In order to ensure public health and safety:
23 (a) Any person or entity in possession of an automated
24| external defibrillator shall:
25 ‘ 1. Properly maintain and test the device.
26 2. Provide training in cardiopulmonary resuscitation and
27| automated external defibrillator proficiency from the American
28| Heart Association or the American Red Cross, or a substantially

Page 1 of 3

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0243-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPREGSENTATIVE S

HB 243 2008

29| similar program from another provider, to any of its employees

30| or agents who are reasonably expected to be potential users of

31| the defibrillator. All-persens—who—use—an—auytomated—external
32 defibritlater-mustobtain opprepriate—training—to—inelude

33 i i ! i :
34

35

36
37 (b) Any person or entity in possession of an automated

38| external defibrillator is encouraged to notify register—with the
39| local emergency medical services medical director of the

40| existenee—and location of the automated external defibrillator.
41 Section 2. Subsection (3) of section 768.1325, Florida

42| Statutes, is amended to read:

43 768.1325 Cardiac Arrest Survival Act; immunity from civil
44| 1liability.--

45 (3) Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the

46| contrary, and except as provided in subsection (4), any person
47| who uses or attempts to use an automated external defibrillator
48| device on a victim of a perceived medical emergency—without

49

50, immune from civil liability for any harm resulting from the use
51| or attempted use of such device. In addition, any person who

52| acguired the device, including,.but not limited to, a community
53| association organized under chapter 617, chapter 718, chapter
54| 719, chapter 720, chapter 721, or chapter 723, is immune from
55| such liability.;—if—the-harm—was—not—due—to—the failure of such

tth
ar

:
56 WP L IV G VSN
oo T =TT

Page 2 of 3

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0243-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 243 2008

57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65

66
67
68
69
70
71
72

73 Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 2008.

Page 3 of 3

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0243-00






W 0 g U R W NN

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)
Bill No.
COUNCTIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED _ (y/N)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(Y/N)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _(Y/N)
WITHDRAWN (Y/N)

OTHER

243

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Committee on Health Quality offered the following:

Amendment
Remove lines 27-29 and insert:

automated external defibrillator proficiency to any of its

employees

This amendment was adopted in HQ on 1/22/08 with recommended
council substitute.
‘ Page 1 of 1
HB 243-1.hcc







O W 0 g 6O U ok W N R

N N H R R R R R PR R
H O YV 0o 3 o0 U1 B~ W N B

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 2 (for drafter’s use only)
Bill No. 0243
COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED _ _ (¥/N)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(Y/N)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _(Y/N)
WITHDRAWN (Y/N)

OTHER

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Representative Anderson offered the following:

Amendment (with title amendment)

Remove everything after the enacting clause and insert:

Section 1. Subsection (2) of section 401.2915, Florida
Statutes, is amended to read:

401.2915 Automated extermnal defibrillators.--It is the
intent of -the Legislature that an automated external
defibrillator may be used by any person for the purpose of
saving the life of another person in cardiac arrest. In order to .
achieve that goal, the Legislature intends to encourage training
in lifesaving first aid and set standards for and encourage the
use of automated external defibrillators.

(2) In order to promote emsure public health and safety:

(a) All persons who use an automated external

defibrillator are encouraged to must obtain appropriate

training, to include completion of a course in cardiopulmonary
resuscitation or successful completion of a basic first aid

course that includes cardiopulmonary resuscitation training, and

‘ , Page 1 of 4
HB 243-2 ; draft 24250.xml




22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30

31|

32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
‘41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 2 (for drafter’s use only)
demonstrated proficiency in the use of an automated external
defibrillator.

(b) Any person -or entity in possession of an automated
external defibrillator is encouraged to notify register—with the
local emergency medical services medical director of the
existenee—and location of the autbmated external defibrillator.

(¢) Any person who uses an automated external
defibrillator shall activate the emergency medical services
system as soon as possible upon use of the automated external
defibrillator.

Section 2. Subsection (3) of section 768.1325, Florida
Statutes, is amended to read: ‘

768.1325 Cardiac Arrest Survival Act; immunity from civil
liability.-- ]

(3) Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the
contrary, and except as provided in subsection (4), any person
who uses or attempts to use an automated external defibrillator
device on a victim of a perceived medical emergency, without
objection of the victim of the perceived medical emergency, is

immune from civil liability for any harm resulting from the use

or attempted use of such device. In addition, notwithstanding

any other provigion of law to the contrary, and except as

provided in subsection (4), any person who acquired the device

and makes it available for use, including, but not limited to, a

community association organized under chapter 617, chapter 718,
chapter 719, chapter 720, chapter 721, or chapter 723, is immune
from such 1iability,'if the harm was not due to the failure of
such person aeeguirerof the-deviee to:

) e he 3 ] ical . iead
14 £ el . £ ¢ 3 oved el
feaseﬁ:&b}e ?efi ed e£ Ei:' e aﬁEeEE E}ie é-'e"’a:lee WarsS P}aeed‘:

Page 2 of 4
HB 243-2 ; draft 24250.xml




53
54
55
56

57|

58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 2 (for drafter’s use only) |
(a)4ts)> Properly maintain and test the device; or
ipl+e} Provide appropriate training in the use of the
device to an employee or agent of the acquirer when the employee
or agent was the person who used the device on the victim,

except that such requirement of training does not apply if:

1. The device is equipped with audible, visual, or written

instructions on its use, including any such visual or written

instructions posted on or adiaceﬁt to the device;

2.3~ The employee or agent was not an employee or agent
who would have been reasonably expected to use the device; or

3.2+ The period of time elapsing between the engagement of
the person as an employee or agent and the occurrence of the
harm, or between the acquisition of the device and the
occurrence of the harm in any case in which the device was
acquired after engagement of the employee or agent, was not a
reasonably sufficient period in which to provide the training.

Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 2008.

TITLE AMENDMENT

Remove the entire title and insert:

o A bill to be entitled
An act relating to automated external defibrillators;
amending s. 401.2915, F.S.; revising provisions relating
to the maintenance of and traihing requirements for the
use of automated external defibrillators; revising
provisions encouraging notice to the local emergency
medical services medical director; amending s. 768.1325,

F.S.; revising requirements for civil immunity for the use

Page 3 of 4
HB 243-2 ; draft 24250.xml




83
84

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 2 (for drafter’s use only)
or attempted use of a defibrillator on a victim of a

perceived medical emergency; providing an effective date.

: Page 4 of 4
HB 243-2 ; draft 24250.xml




HB 247






HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 247 " Nursing Facilities
SPONSOR(S): Murzin and others
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 686
REFERENCE ACTION : ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR
1) Committee on Healthy Seniors 8Y,ON DePalmas~ ™,  Ciccone

2) Healthcare Council DePalm_) Gor%

-3)_Policy & Budget Council
4)

5)

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

HB 247 amends several provisions contained in Part Il of Chapter 400, F.S., relating to the licensure,
regulation, and maintenance of state nursing home facilities.

Specifically, the bill reduces the frequency of visits made by quality-of-care monitors to nursing home facilities
from quarterly to annually. The bill continues to require quarterly quality-of-care monitoring for conditionally-
licensed facilities — and other facilities as determined by the Agency for Health Care Administration (the
“agency”) — and allows individual facilities to request quarterly visits if not conditionally-licensed.

The bill also permits nursing homes operating under a standard license to develop a plan to provide training for
certified nursing assistants (CNAs), and provides for agency approval of such training programs. The bill
redefines what constitutes an “adverse incident” and removes the requirement that facilities notify the agency
within one business day of a risk manager’s receipt of a report detailing an adverse incident.

The bill clarifies that the last survey conducted within a six-month survey cycle may be counted as a “licensure
survey” under certain circumstances where a facility’s original deficiencies are administratively overturned.
Finally, the bill provides that a facility’s compliance with federal posting requirements sufficiently satisfies state
posting requirements, and eliminates certain requirements relating to licensed nurses performing CNA duties
for purposes of computing minimum staffing requirements for CNAs.

The legislation appears to have no fiscal impact to state or local governments.

The bill provides an effective date of July 1, 2008.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0247b.HCC.doc
DATE: 3/21/2008



FULL ANALYSIS

. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. HOUSE PRINCIPLES ANALYSIS:

Provide Limited Government — This bill reduces the frequency of visits made by quality-of-care
monitors to certain nursing home facilities from quarterly to annually.

B. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation

Quality-of-Care Monitoring

In 1999, the Florida Legislature established the Nursing Home Quality of Care Monitoring Program.’
Quality-of-care monitors are licensed nurses possessing training and experience in nursing facility
regulation, standards of practice in long-term care, and in the evaluation of patient care. Their
statutorily-prescribed role is to “assess the overall quality of life in the nursing facility and ... assess
specific conditions in the facility directly related to resident care, including the operations of internal
quality improvement and risk management programs and adverse incident reports.”? Additionally,
monitors conduct formal and informal interviews with residents, family members, facility staff, resident
guests, volunteers, other regulatory staff, and representatives of a long-term care ombudsman council
or Florida advocacy council.

Quality-of-care monitors are responsible for monitoring all nursing facilities in their respective districts
‘on a regular, unannounced, aperiodic basis, including nights, evenings, weekends, and holidays.” At
a minimum, this entails quarterly monitoring visits.

Findings of a monitoring visit ~ both positive and negative — are provided orally and in writing to the
facility administrator, and may include recommendations for procedural or policy changes within the
facility. Conditions observed by a quality-of-care monitor evidencing a threat to the health or safety of a
facility resident are required to be immediately reported to the agency and, as appropriate or as
required by law, to law enforcement, adult protective services, or other responsible agencies.

Gold Seal Designation

The Governor’s Panel on Excellence in Long-Term Care is the entity charged with implementing and
administering the state’s Gold Seal Program, an award and recognition program for nursing facilities
that demonstrate excellence in long-term care over a sustained period. The panel considers the quality
of care provided to facility residents during its evaluation for Gold Seal designation. Additionally, a
facility must:*

» not have class | or Il deficiencies within the 30 months preceding application;

! ch. 99-394, L.O.F.
%5.400.118(2)(a), F.S.
*1d

*s.400.235, F.S.

STORAGE NAME: h0247b.HCC.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/21/2008



» evidence financial soundness and stability according to standards adopted by the agency in
administrative rule; .

e participate in a consumer satisfaction process;
evidence the involvement of families and community members in the facility on a regular basis;

e maintain a stable workforce, as demonstrated by a relatively low rate of turnover among CNAs
and licensed nurses within the 30 months preceding application;

¢ evidence an outstanding record regarding the number and types of substantiated complaints
reported to the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman Council within the 30 months preceding
application; and

¢ provide targeted in-service training provided to meet training needs identified by internal or
external quality assurance efforts.

[ ]

Presently, there are 15 state nursing homes operating under a Gold Seal designation.®
CNA Training

Presently, nursing homes designated as Gold Seal facilities are permitted to develop a plan to provide
certified nursing assistant training as prescribed by federal regulations and state rules. A facility wishing
to provide CNA training must not have been either cited for substandard quality-of-care, terminated
from the Medicare/Medicaid program, or had an enforcement action instituted against the facility to
satisfy certain federal requirements. The state is required to withdraw its approval of a training program
if any of these and/or other specified conditions occur.®

In Florida, CNA training is subject to approval by the Board of Nursing within the Department of Health,
following certification by the Department of Education. Currently, there are approximately five state
nursing homes that are certified by the Department of Education to offer CNA training.”

Incident Reporting

Each nursing home facility must notify the agency in writing within one business day of any adverse
incident, as they are presently defined by statute.® Subsequently, the facility must initiate an
investigation and provide a complete report to the agency within 15 calendar days of the event giving
rise to the investigation. If, following a complete investigation, the facility’s risk manager determines that
the event in question does not constitute an “adverse incident”, the facility must include this information
in the report submitted to the agency.

Licensure Evaluation and Facility Licensure Status

At least every 15 months, the agency is required to evaluate each nursing home facility to determine
the degree of compliance with state licensure requirements. Following this evaluation, a nursing home
is assigned either a standard or conditional licensure status. A “standard” licensure indicates that a
facility has no class | or Il deficiencies, and has successfully corrected all class 11l deficiencies within
the time established by the agency. A “conditional” license is provided to a nursing facility that is not in
substantial compliance with licensure standards at the time of the survey, due to the presence of one or

> Agency for Health Care Administration’s Nursing Home Guide, available at: http://ahcaxnet.fdhc.state.fl.us/nhcguide/. Information
retrieved January 25, 2008 and revised by agency staff.

®42 C.F.R. 483.151

7 Agency for Health Care Administration Agency Analysis, January 2008, record maintained by committee staff.

¥5.400.147(7), F.S.

STORAGE NAME: h0247b.HCC.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/21/2008




more class | or |l deficiencies, or to class Ill deficiencies left uncorrected within the time prescribed by
the agency.®

The various classes of deficiencies are defined as follows:'°

¢ Class | — a deficiency that the agency determines requires immediate corrective action
because the nursing home’s noncompliance has caused, or is likely to cause, serious injury,
harm, impairment, or death to a resident receiving care in the nursing home.

e Class Il — a deficiency that the agency determines has compromised a resident’s ability to
maintain or reach his or her highest practicable physical, mental, and psychological well-
being, as defined by an accurate and comprehensive resident assessment, plan of care,
and provision of services.

 Class Ill - a deficiency that the agency determines will result in no more than minimal
physical, mental, or psychological discomfort to the resident, or one that has the potential to
compromise a resident’s ability to maintain or reach his or her highest practicable physical,
mental, or psychological well-being, as defined by an accurate and comprehensive resident
assessment, plan of care, and provision of services.

e Class IV — a deficiency that the agency determines has the potential for causing no more
than a minor negative impact on a resident.

Additionally, a facility may be placed on a six-month survey cycle for a period of two years if it has been
cited for a class | deficiency, two or more class Il deficiencies from separate surveys/investigations
within a 60-day period, or has received three substantiated complaints within a six-month period, each
resulting in at least one class | or |l deficiency.

State Nursing Home Posting Requirements
Under state law," each nursing home is required to document compliance with the staffing standard
requirements imposed by s. 400.23(3)(a), F.S., and post daily the names of staff on duty for the benefit

of facility residents and the public.

Effect of Proposed Changes

HB 247 reduces the frequency of visits made by quality-of-care monitors to nursing home facilities from
quarterly to annually. The bill continues to require quarterly quality-of-care monitoring for conditionally-

licensed facilities — and other facilities as determined by the agency — and permits individual facilities to
request quarterly visits if not conditionally-licensed. The bill further specifies that such a request applies

only to a facility’s current licensure period, and must be resubmitted at the time of license renewal in
order to be continued.

The bill also permits nursing homes operating under a standard license to develop a plan to provide
CNA training, and provides for agency approval of such training programs.

Moreover, the bill specifies when an event reported to law enforcement constitutes an “adverse
incident” by providing that only events reported to a law enforcement agency for further investigation

®S.400.23(7), F.S.

95 400.23(8), F.S.

5. 400.23(3)(a)3, F.S.

STORAGE NAME: h0247b.HCC.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 3/21/2008



are adverse incidents within the meaning of s. 400.147(5)(a)7, F.S. The bill also removes the
requirement that facilities notify the agency within one business day of a risk manager's receipt of a
report detailing an adverse incident. The facility would continue to submit a 15-day final report to the
agency.'?

The bill clarifies that the last survey conducted within a six-month survey cycle may be counted as a
“licensure survey” under certain circumstances where a facility’s original deficiencies are
administratively overturned.

The bill provides that a facility’s compliance with federal posting requirements sufficiently satisfies state
posting requirements. The relevant federal posting reqwrement13 specifies that nursing facilities must
post the following information on a daily basis:

Facility name;
The current date;
The total number and the actual hours worked by the following categories of licensed and
unlicensed nursing staff directly responsible for resident care per shift: (1) registered nurses,
(2) licensed practical nurses or licensed vocational nurses (as defined under State law), and
(3) certified nurse aides; and

¢ Resident census.

In its agency analysis, AHCA notes that the state and federal posting requirements serve a similar
intent, and “either would be appropriate for providing information to the public about nursing home
‘14

staffing.

Finally, the bill eliminates certain requirements relating to licensed nurses performing CNA duties for
purposes of computing minimum staffing requirements for CNAs.

C. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Amends s. 400.118(2)(a), F.S., requiring quality-of-care monitors to visit state nursing
facilities annually instead of quarterly, to visit each conditionally-licensed nursing facility at least
quarterly, and to visit other facilities as directed by the agency; providing for quarterly visits of facilities
which are not conditionally-licensed upon a request by the facility; and clarifying that such requests
apply only to a facility’s current licensure period.

2 AHCA notes that, “based on adverse incidents submitted during 2006, 77.1% of the one-day adverse incident [reports] were
determined not to meet the definition of an adverse incident by the facility upon completing the final 15-day report.” Noting that
there is a similar federal five-day adverse incident report requirement, the agency continues, “[flederal nursing home regulations
include the requirement to immediately report to the agency all [instances] of abuse, neglect, and exploitation. Based upon the
continued requirement to submit the 15-day report and the federal reporting requirement, the elimination of the one- day report
would not create significant gaps in monitoring regulatory compliance.” Agency for Health Care Administration Agency Analysis,
January 2008, record maintained by committee staff.

B 42 CER. 483.30(e); note that postings must also be made in a “clear and readable format” and in a “prominent place readily
accessible to residents and visitors.” Additionally, the facility must, upon oral or written request, make nurse staffing data available
to the public for review at a cost not to exceed the community standard, and must also maintain such nursing staff data for a
minimum of 18 months, or as required by State law, whichever is greater.

" Agency for Health Care Administration Agency Analysis, January 2008, record maintained by committee staff.

STORAGE NAME: h0247b.HCC.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 3/21/2008



Section 2. Amends s. 400.141, F.S., permitting nursing facilities maintaining a standard license to
develop a plan to provide certified nursing assistant training, and to apply to the agency for program
approval; granting rulemaking authority to the agency.

Section 3. Amends s. 400.147, F.S,, clarifying that the term “adverse incident” applies to events
reported to law enforcement only where such event is reported to a law enforcement agency for
investigation; and eliminating the facility requirement to notify the agency within one business day of a
risk manager’s receipt of a report detailing an adverse incident.

Section 4. Amends s. 400.19(3), F.S., permitting the last survey conducted within a six-month survey
cycle to be counted as a “licensure survey” in the event that the administrative action giving rise to the
six-month survey cycle results in the original deficiencies being overturned.

Section 5. Amends s. 400.195(1)(d), F.S., correcting a statutory cross-reference.

Section 6. Amends s. 400.23, F.S., providing that a facility’s compliance with certain federal posting
requirements satisfies the state posting requirements contained in Chapter 400, F.S.; eliminating
certain requirements relating to licensed nurses performing certified nursing assistant duties for
purposes of computing minimum staffing requirements for certified nursing assistants.

Section 7. Provides an effective date of July 1, 2008.

Il. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT
A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:
None.

2. Expenditures:
None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:
None.

2. Expenditures:
None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:
None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

STORAGE NAME: h0247b.HCC.doc PAGE: 6
DATE: 3/21/2008



In its agency analysis, AHCA notes that, while there is no direct fiscal impact on the agency, “original
staffing for adverse incident reporting was based upon an estimate of 3,600 nursing home and assisted
living facility adverse incidents per year; however, this estimate fell significantly short of actual adverse
incidents received each year. During Fiscal Year 2006-07, 4,728 adverse incidents were processed by
the agency, approximately 30% higher than [the number originally] estimated. The agency has
previously allocated necessary resources to handle this higher-than-anticipated workload from adverse
incident reports, and will require all existing resources to continue to manage the remaining activities.”'®

lll. COMMENTS
A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This legislation does not appear to require counties or municipalities to spend funds or take any
action requiring the expenditure of funds; reduce the authority that municipalities or counties have to
raise revenue in the aggregate; or reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:
None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:
None. ‘

D. STATEMENT OF THE SPONSOR
No statement submitted.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

On February 5, 2008, the Committee on Healthy Seniors adopted two amendments by the bill sponsor.
These amendments:

* Removed section 1 of the original bill, thereby making no changes to existing law regarding
quality-of-care monitoring visits.

o Clarified that federal reporting requirements remain in place.

The committee reported the bill favorably with two amendments.

B,

STORAGE NAME: h0247b.HCC.doc PAGE: 7
DATE: 3/21/2008






FLORIDA H O U 8 E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 2008
1 A bill to be entitled
2 An act relating to nursing facilities; amending s.
3 400.118, F.S.; revising the frequency of visits to nursing
4 facilities by quality-of-care monitors from the Agency for
5 Health Care Administration; amending s. 400.141, F.S.;
6 authorizing certain licensed nursing facilities to develop
7 a plan to provide certain training for nursing aséistants;
8 .providing for rules relating to agency approval of
9 training programs; amending s. 400.147, F.S.; redefining
10 the term "adverse incident"; deleting the requirement that
i1 a‘nursing facility notify the agency of an adverse
12 incident; deleting notification requirements; requiring
13 that a risk manager determine if an incident was an
14 adverse incident; amending s. 400.19, F.S.; providing that
15 the most recent survey is a licensure survey under certain
16 conditions for purposes of future survey scheduling;
17 amending s. 400.195, F.S.; conforming a cross-reference;
18 amending s. 400.23, F.S.; requiring that federal posting
19 requirements for staffing standards comply with state
20 posting requirements; revising provisions relating to a
21 facility's use of licensed nurses to meet certain minimum
22 staffing requirements; providing an effective date.
23
24| Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:
25 ‘
26 Section 1. Paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of section
27| 400.118, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:
28 400.118 Quality assurance; early warning system;

Page 1 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. .
' hb0247-00



F L ORIDA H O U S E O F REPREGSENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

29| monitoring; rapid response teams.--

30 (2) (a) The agency shall establish within each district

31| office one or more quality-of-care monitors, based on the number
32| of nursing facilities in the district, to monitor all nursing

33| facilities in the district on a regular, unannounced, aperiodic
34| basis, including nights, evenings, weekends, and holidays.

35| Quality-of-care monitors shall visit each nursing facility

36| annually, shall visit each conditionally licensed nursing

37| facility at least quarterly, and shall visit other facilities as

38| directed by the agency. However, upon the reqguest of a facility,

39| the agency shall make quarterly visits to a nursing home that is

40| not conditionally licensed. The request applies only to the

41| current licensure period and must be made again by the facility

42 at the time of license renewal in order to be continued.

43| Priority for additional monitoring visits shall be given to

44| nursing facilities that have with a history of resident care
45| deficiencies. Quality-of-care monitors shall be registered

46| nurses who are trained and experienced in nursing facility

47| regulation, standards of practicé in long-term care, and

48| evaluation of patient care. Individuals in these positions may
49| shaltt not be deployed by the agency as a part of the district
50| survey team in the conduct of routine, scheduled surveys, but
51| shall function solely and independently as quality-of-care

52| monitors. Quality-of-care monitors shall assess the overall

53| quality of life in the nursing facility and shall assess

54| specific conditions in the facility directly related to resident

55| care, including the operations of internal quality improvement

56| and risk management programs and adverse incident reports. The
Page 2 of 22

CODING: Words stricken aré deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPREZSENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

57| quality-of-care monitor shall include in an assessment visit
58| observation of the care and services rendered to residents and
59 formal and informal interviews with residents, family members,
60| facility staff, resident guests, volunteers, other regulatory
61| staff, and representatives of a long-term care ombudsman council
62| or Florida advocacy council.
63 Section 2. Section 400.141, Florida Statutes, is amended
64| to read:
65 400.141 Administration and management of nursing home
66| facilities.--Every licensed facility shall comply with all
67| applicable standards and rules 6f the agency and shall:
68 (1) Be under the administrative direction and charge of a
69| licensed administrator.
70| (2) Appoint a medical director licensed pursuant to
71| chapter 458 or chapter 459. The agency may establish by rule
72| more specific criteria for the appointment of a medical
73| director. _
74 (3) Have available the regular, consultative, and
75| emergency services of physicians licensed by the state.
76 (4) Provide for resident use of a community pharmacy as’
77| specified in s. 400.022(1) (g). Any other law to the contrary
78| notwithstanding, a registered pharmacist licensed in Florida,
79| that is undér contract with a facility licensed under this
80| chapter or chapter 429, shall repackage a nursing facility
81| resident's bulk prescription medication which has been packaged
82| by another pharmacist licensed in any state in the United States
83| into a unit dose system compatible with the system used by the

84| nursing facility, if the pharmacist is requested to offer such
Page 3 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F R EPRESENTATIVE S

HB 247 2008

85| service. In order to be eligible for the repackaging, a resident
86| or the resident's spouse must receive prescription medication

87| benefits provided through a former employer as part of his or

88| her retirement benefits, a qualified pension plan as specified
89 in s. 4972 of the Internal Revenue Code, a federal retirement
90| program as specified under 5 C.F.R. s. 831, or a long-term care
91| policy as defined in s. 627.9404(1). A pharmacist who correctly
92| repackages and relabels the medication and the nursing facility
93| which correctly administérs such repackaged medication under the
94| provisions of this subsection shall not be held liable in any |
95| civil or administrative action arising from ﬁhe repackaging. In
96| order to be eligible for the repackaging, a nursing facility

97| resident for whom the medication is to be repackaged shall sign
98| an informed consent form provided by the facility which indludes
99| an explanation of the repackaging process and which notifies the
106 resident of the immunities from liability provided herein. A

101} pharmacist who repackages and relabels prescription medications,
102| as authorized under this subsection, may charge a reasonable fee
103| for costs resulting from the implementation of this provision.
104 (5) Provide for the access of the facility residents to
105 dental and other health-related services, recreational services,
106| rehabilitative services, and social work services appropriate to
107| their needs and conditions and not directly furnished by the

108| licensee. When a geriatric outpatient nurse clinic is conducted
109| in accordance with rules adopted by the agency, outpatients

110| attending such clinic shall not be counted as part of the

111| general resident population of the nursing home facility, nor

112| shall the nursing staff of the geriatric outpatient clinic be’
Page 4 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions. :
' hb0247-00



FLORIDA H OU S8 E O F REPRESENTATIVE S

HB 247 2008

113| counted as part of the nursing staff of the facility, until the
114| outpatient clinic load exceeds 15 a day.

115 (6) Be allowed and encouraged by the agendy to provide

116| other needed services under certain conditions. If the facility
117| has a standard licensure status, and has had no class I or class
118| II deficiencies during the past 2 years or has been awarded a
119| Gold Seal under the program established in s. 400.235, it may be
120 encouraged by the agency tb provide services, including, but not
121| limited to, respite and adult day services, which enable

122| individuals to move in and out of the facility. A facility is
123| not subject to any additional licehsure requirements for

124| providing these services. Respite care may be offered to persons
125| in need of short-term or temporary nursing home services.

126| Respite care must be provided in accordance with this part and
127| rules adopted by the agency. However, the agency shall, by rule,
128| adopt modified requirements for resident assessment, resident
129| care plans, resident contracts, physician orders, and other

130| provisions, as appropriate, for short-term or temporary nursing
131| home services. The agency shall allow for shared programming and
132| staff in a facility which meets minimum standards and offers

133| services pursuant to this subsection, but, if the facility is
134| cited for deficiencies in patient care, may require additional
135| staff and programs appropriate to the needs of service

136| recipients. A person who receives respite care may not be

137| counted as a resident of the facility for purposes of the

138| facility's licensed capacity unless that peison receives 24-hour
139| respite care. A person receiving either respite care for 24

140| hours or longer or adult day services must be included when
Page 5 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



s

FLORIDA HOUSE O F R EPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

141| calculating minimum staffing for the facility. Any costs and
142| revenues generated by a nursing home facility from

143| nonresidential programs or services shall be excluded from the
144| calculations of Medicaid per diems for nursing home

145| institutional care reimbursement.

l4s - (7) If the facility has a standard license or is a Gold
147| Seal facility, exceeds the minimum required hours of licensed
148| nursing and certified nursing assistant direct care per resident
149 per‘day, and is part of a continuing care facility licensed

150| wunder chapter 651 or a retirement community that offers other
151} services pursuant to part III of this chapter or part I or part
152| IITI of chapter 429 on a single campus, be allowed to share

153| programming and staff. At the time of inspection and in the

154| semiannual report required pursuant to subsection (15), a ‘

155| continuing care facility or retirement community that uses this
156| option must demonstrate through staffing records that minimum
157| staffing requirements for the facility were met. Licensed nurses
158| and certified nursing assistants who work in the nursing home
159| facility may be used to provide services elsewhere on campus if
160| the facility exceeds the minimum number of direct care hours
161| required per resident per day and the total number of residents
162 receiving direct care services from a licensed nurse or a

163| certified nursing assistant does not cause the facility to

164| wviolate the staffing ratios required under s. 400.23(3) (a).

165| Compliance with the minimum staffing ratios shall be based on
166| total number of residents receiving direct care services,

167| regardless of where they reside on campus. If the facility

168| receives a conditional license, it may not share staff until the
Page 6 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 ' 2008

169| conditional license status ends. This subsection does not

170| restrict the agency's authority under federal or state law to
171| require additional staff if a facility is cited for deficiencies
172| in care which are caused by an insufficient number of certified
173| nursing assistants or licensed nurses. The agency may adopt

174| rules for the documentation necessary to determine compliance
175{ with this provision. |

176 (8) Maintain the facility premises and equipment and

177| conduct its operations in a safe and sanitary manner.

178 (9) If the licensee furnishes food service, provide a

179| wholesome and nourishing diet sufficient to meet generally

180{ accepted standards of proper nutrition for its residents and

181| provide such therapeutic diets as may be prescribed by attending
182| physicians. In making rules to implement this subsection, the
183| agency shall be guided by standards recommended by naticnally
184| recognized professional groups and associations with knowledge
185| of dietetics.

186 (10) Keep full records of resident admissions and

187| discharges; medical and general health status, including medical
188| records, personal and social history, and identity and address
189| of next of kin or other persons who may have responsibility for
190| the affairs of the residents; and individual resident care plans
191| including, but not limited to, prescribed services, service

192| frequency and duration, and service goals. The records shall be
193| open to inspection by the agency.

194 (11) Keep such fiscal records of its operations and

195| conditions as may be necessary to provide information pursuant

196| to this part.

Page 7 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

197 (12) Furnish copies of personnel records for employees
198| affiliated with such facility, to any other facility licensed by
199| this state requesting this information pursuant to this part.
200 Such information contained in the records may include, but is
201| not limited to, disciplinary matters and any reason for
202| termination. Any facility releasing such records pursuant to
203| this part shall be considered to be acting in good faith and may
204| not be held liable for information contained in such records,
205| absent a showing that the facility maliciously falsified such
206| records. ‘
207 (13) Publicly display a poster provided by the agency
208 containing the names, addresses, and telephone numbers for the
209| state's abuse hotline, the State Long-Term Care Ombudsman, the
210| Agency for Health Care Administration consumer hotline, the
211| Advocacy Center for Persons with Disabilities, the Florida
212| Statewide Advocacy Council, and the Medicaid Fraud Control Unit,
213| with a clear description of the assistance to be expected from
214| each.
215 (14) Submit to the agency the information specified in s.
216| 400.071(1) (b) for a management company within 30 days after the
217| effective date of the management agreement.
218 (15) Submit semiannually to the agency, or more frequently
219| 1if requested by the agency, information regarding facility
220| staff-to-resident ratios; staff turnover, and staff stability,
221} including information regarding certified nursing assistants,
222| licensed nurses, the director of nursing, and the facility
223| administrator. For purposes of this reporting:
224 (a) Staff-to-resident ratios must be reported in the

Page 8 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



F L ORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

225| categories specified in s. 400.23(3) (a) and applicable rules.
226| The ratio must be reported as an average for’the most recent

227| calendar guarter.

228 (b) sStaff turnover must be reported for the most recent
229| 12-month period ending on the last workday of the most recent
230| calendar quarter prior to the date the information is submitted.
231| The turnover rate must be computed quarterly, with the annual
232| rate being the cumulative sum of the‘quarterly rates. The

233| turnover rate is the total number of terminations or separations
234| experienced during the quarter, excluding any employee

235| terminated during a probationary period of 3 months or less,

236| divided by the total number of staff employed at the end of the
237| period for which the rate is computed, and expressed as a

238 percentage.

239 (c) The formula for determining staff stability is the

240| total number of employees that have been employed for more than
241| 12 months, divided by the total number of employees employed at
242| the end of the most recent calendar quarter, and expressed as a
243 pércentage.

244 (d) A nursing facility that has failed to comply with

245| state minimum-staffing requirements for 2 consecutive days is
246| prohibited from accepting new admissions until the facility has
247| achieved the minimum-staffing requirements for a period of 6

248| consecutive days. For the purposes of this paragraph, any person
249 Who was a resident of the facility and was absent from the

250 facility for the purpose of receiving medical care at a separate '
251| location or was on a leave of absence is not considered a new

252| admission. Failure to impose such an admissions moratorium

Page 9 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

hb0247-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F R EPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

253| constitutes a class II deficiency.

254 (e) A nursing facility which does not have a conditional
255| license may be cited for failure to comply with the standards in
256| s. 400.23(3)(a)l.a. only if it has failed to meet those

257| standards on 2 consecutive days or if it has failed to meet at
258| least 97 percent of those standards on any one day.

259 (f) A facility which has a conditional license must be in
260| compliance with the standards in s. 400.23(3) (a) at all times.
261
262| Nothing in this section shall limit the agency's ability to

263| impose a deficiency or take other actions if a facility doesg not
264| have enough staff to meet the residents' needs.

265 (16) Report monthly the number of vacant beds in the

266 facility which are available for resident~occupancy on the day
267| the information is reported.

268 (17) Notify a licensed physician when a residentbexhibits
269| signs of dementia or cognitive impairment or has a change of

270| condition in order to rule out the presence of an underlying

271| physiological condition that may be contributing to such

272| dementia or impairment. The notification must occur within 30
273| days after the acknowledgment of such signs by facility staff.
274] If an underlying condition is determined to exist, the facility
275| shall arrange, with the appropriate health care provider, the
276| necessary care and services to treat the condition.

277 (18) If the facility implements a dining and hospitality
278 attendant program, ensure that the program is developed and

279| implemented under the supervision of the facility director of

280| nursing. A licensed nurse, licensed speech or occupational
Page 10 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



FLORTIDA H O U S E OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

281| therapist, or a registered dietitian must conduct training of
282| dining and hospitality attendants. A person emplbyed by a

283| facility as a dining and hospitality attendant must perform

284| tasks under the direct supervision of a licensed nurse.

285 (19) Report to the agency any filing for bankruptcy

286| protection by the facility or its parent corporation,

287| divestiture or spin-off of its assets, or corporate

288| reorganization within 30 days after the completion of such

289| activity.

290 (20) Maintain general and professional liability insurance
291| coverage that is in force at all times. In lieu of general and
292| professional liability insurance coverage, a state—designated
293| teaching nursing home and its affiliated assisted living

294| facilities created under s. 430.80 may demonstrate proof of

295| financial responsibility as provided in s. 430.80(3) (h).

296 _ (21) Maintain in the medicél record for each resident a
297| daily chart of certified nursing assistant services provided to
298| the resident. The certified nursing assistant who is caring for
299| the resident must complete this record by the end of his or her
300f{ shift. This record must indicate assistance with activities of
301| daily living, assistance with eating, and assistance with

302| drinking, and must record each offering of nutrition and

303| hydration for those residents whose plan of care or assessment
304 indicates a risk for malhutrition or dehydration.

305 (22) Before November 30 of each yéar, subject to the

306| availability of an adequate supply of the necessary‘vaccine,
307| provide for immunizations against influenza viruses to all its

308| consenting residents in accordance with the recommendations of
Page 11 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F R'EPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

309| the United States Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
310 subject to exemptions for medical contraindications and

311| religious or personal beliefs. Subject to these exemptions, any
312| consenting person who becomes a resident of the facility after
313| November 30 but before March 31 of the following year must be
314 dimmunized within 5 working days after becoming a resident.

315| Immunization shall not be provided to any resident who provides
316| documentation that he or she has been immunized as required by
317| this subsection. This subsection does not prohibit a resident
318 from receiving the immunization from his or her personal

319 vphyéician if he or she so chooses. A resident who chooses to

320| receive the immunization from his or her personal physician

321| shall provide proof of immunization to the facility. The agency
322| may adopt and enforce any rules necessary to comply with or

323| implement this subsection.

324 (23) Assess all residents for eligibility for pneumococcal
325 polysaccharide vaccination (PPV) and vaccinate residents when
326| indicated within 60 days after the effective date of this act in
327| accordance with the recommendations of the United States Centers
328| for Disease Control and Prevention, subject to exemptions for
329| medical contraindications and religious or personal beliefs.

330| Residents admitted after the effective date of this act shall be
331| assessed within 5 working days of admission and, when indicated,
332| vaccinated within 60 days in accordance with the recommendations
333| of the United States Centers for Disease Control and Prevention,
334 subject to exemptions for medical contraindications and

335 religious or personal beliefs. Immunization shall not be

336| . provided to any resident who provides documentation that he or
Page 12 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



FL ORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVE S

HB 247 , 2008

337| she has been immunized as required by this subsection. This

338| subsection does not prohibit a resident from receiving the

339| immunization from his or her peréonal physician if he or she so
340 chooses. A resident who chooses to receive the immunization from
341| his or her personal physician shall provide proof of

342 immunization to the facility. The agency may adopt and enforce
343| any rules necessary to comply with or implement this subsection.
344 (24) Annually encourage and promote to its employees the
345| Dbenefits associated with immunizations against influenza viruses
346 1in accordance with the recommendations of the United States

347| Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. The agency may adopt
348| and enforce any rules necessary to comply with or implement this
349| subsection.

350
351} Facilities having a standard license t£hat—have beenawarded—a
352| Getd—FSeal-under—the progromeostablished—in5—4060-235 may

353| develop a plan to provide certified nursing assistant training

354| as prescribed by federal regulations and state rules and may
355| apply to the agency for approval of their program. The agency

356| may adopt rules relating to the approval, suspension, or

357| termination of a certified nursing assistant training program.

358 Section 3. Subsections (5) through (15) of section

359) 400.147, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

360 400.147 Internal risk management and quality assurance
361 program. - - '

362 (5) For purposes of reporting to the agency under this
363 section, the term "adverse incident" means:

364 (a) An event over which facility personnel could exercise
Page 13 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
vhb0247-00



FLORIDA H OUSE. OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

365| control and which is associated in whole or in part with the
366| facility's intervention, rather than the condition for which
367| such intervention occurred, and which results in one of the

368| following:

369 1. Death;

370 2. Brain or spinal damage;

371 3. Permanent disfigurement;

372 4. Fracture or dislocation of bones or joints;

373 5. A limitation of neurological, physical, or sensory

374| function;

375 6. Any condition that required medical attention to which
376| the resident has not given his or her informed consent,

377 including failure to honor advanced directives; or

378 7. Any condition that required the transfer of the

379| resident, within or outside the facility, to a unit providing a
380| more acute level of care due to the adverse incident, rather
381| than the resident's condition prior to the adverse incident;
382 (b) Abuse, neglect, or exploitatidn as defined in s.

383 415.102;

384 (c) Abuse, neglect and harm as defined in s. 39.01;
385 (d) Resident elopement; or
386 (e) An event that is reported to a law enforcement agency

387| for investigation.

388 (6) The internal risk manager of each licensed facility

389| shall:
390 (a) Investigate every allegation of sexual misconduct

391| which is made against a member of the facility's personnel who
392| has direct patient contact when the allegation is that the
Page 14 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPREZSENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

393| sexual misconduct occurred at the facility or at the grounds of
394| the facility;

395 (b) Report every allegation of sexual misconduct to the
396 administrator of the licensed facility; and

397 (c) Notify the resident representative or guardian of the
398| wvictim that an allegation of sexual misconduct has been made and
399| that an investigation is being conducted.

400 (7) (a) The facility shall initiate an investigation and

401| shalt—metify—the ageney within 1 business day after the risk

402| manager or his or her designee has received a report pursuant to
403| paragraph (1) (d). Fhe-notification must-be made—inwriting and
404 i ! : e 3 &% '

405 ma%L4kHéﬁefyr4Hm}%EﬁéééeaEH%%%HSE%HEH%&€—E&RH%@£%eﬁV

406| regarding-the—identityof the affeeted resident—the type—of
407| eadverse—ineident—the—initiation of an—investigation by—the
408| £aeility—and-—whether the eventseausingor-resultinginthe
409| adverse—ineident represent—apotential -risk te—anyother

410| resident-—The neotification is confidential as provided by law
411 and—is—not—discoverable—oradmisgible—in any-eivil—oxr

412

413
414
415

416
417
418
419

420 (b)483++s)> Each facility shall complete the investigation
Page 15 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
v . hb0247-00 -



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATI!I!I VE S

HB 247 | 2008

421| and submit an adverse incident report to the agency for each
422| adverse incident within 15 calendar days after its occurrence.
423| If, after a complete investigation, the risk manager determines
424| that the incident was met an adverse incident as defined in

425| subsection (5), the facility shall include this information in
426| the report. The agency shall develop a form for reporting this
427| information.

428 (c)4> The information reported to the agency pursuant to
429| paragraph (b) +4&) which relates to persons licensed under

430 chapfer 458, chapter 459, chapter 461, or chapter 466 shall be
431| reviewed by the agency. The agency shall determine whether any
432| of the incidents potentially involved conduct by a health care
433| professional who is subject to disciplinary action, in which
434 case the provisions of s. 456.073 shall apply.

435 (d)+4e> The report submitted to the agency must also

436| contain the name of the risk manager of the facility.

437 (e)4d)> The adverse incident report is confidential as

438| provided by law and is not discoverable or admissible in any
439| civil or administrative action, except in disciplinary

440| proceedings by the agency or the appropriate regulatory board.
441 (8)+48)> By the 10th of each month, each facility subject to
442| this section shall report any notice received pursuant to s.
443| 400.0233(2) and each initial complaint that was filed with the
444| clerk of the court and served on the facility during the

445| previous month by a resident or a resident's family member,

446 guardian,.conservator, or personal legal representative. The

447| report must include the name of the resident, the resident's

448| date of birth and social security number, the Medicaid
‘ Page 16 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



FL ORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

449| identification number for Medicaid-eligible persons, the date 6r
450 dates of the incident leading to the claim or dates of

451| residency, if applicable, and the type of injury or violation of
452| rights alleged to have occurred. Each facility shall also submit
453| a copy of the notices received pursuant to s. 400.0233(2) and
454| complaints filed with the clerk of the court. This report is

455| confidential as provided by law and is not discoverable or

456 admissible in any civil or administrative action, except in such
457| actions brought by the agency to enforce the provisions of this
458 part.

459 (9) 436> The agency shall review, as part of its licensure
460| inspection process, the internal risk management and quality

461| assurance program at each facility regulated by this section to
462| determine whether the program meets standards established in

463| statutory laws and rules, is being conducted in a manner

464| designed to reduce adverse incidents, and is appropriately

465| reporting incidents as required by this section.

466 (10)43+3> There is no monetary liability on the part of,
467| and a cause of action for damages may not arise against,-any

468| risk manager for the implementation and oversight of the

469| internal risk management and quality assurance program in a

470| facility licensed under this part as required by this section,
471| or for any act or proceeding undertaken or performed within the
472| scope of the functions of such internal risk management and

473| quality assurance program if the risk manager acts without

474| intentional fraud.

475 (11)43+23> TIf the agency, through its receipt of the adverse

476| incident reports prescribed in subsection (7), or through any
Page 17 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



FLORIDA H OU S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

477 investigation, has a reasonable belief that conduct by a staff
478| member or employee of a facility is grounds for disciplinary
479| action by the appropriate regulatory board, the agency shall
480| report this fact to the regulatory board.
481 (12)4#3)> The agency may adopt rules to administer this
482| section.
483 (13)4%4)> The agency shall annually submit to the
484| Legislature a report on nursing home adverse incidents. The
485| report must include the following information arranged by
486| county: )
487 (a) The total number of adverse incidents.
488 (b) A listing, by category, of the types of adverse
489| incidents, the number of incidents occurring within each
490| category, and the type of staff involved.
491 (c) A listing, by category, of the types of injury caused
492| and the number of injuries occurring within each category.
493 (d) Types of liability claims filed based on an adverse
494| incident or reportable injury.
495 (e) Disciplinary action taken against staff, categorized
496| by type of staff involved. ‘
497 (14)435) Information gathered by a credentialing
498| organization under a quality assurance program is not
499| discoverable from the credentialing organization. This
500 subsection does not limit discovery of, access to, or use of
501| facility records, including those records from which the
502| credentialing organization gathered its information.
503 Section 4. Subsection (3) of section 400.19, Florida
504| Statutes, is amended to read:

Page 18 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



F L ORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

505 400.19 Right of éntry and inspection.--

506 (3) The agency shall every 15 months conduct at least one
507| wunannounced inspection to determine compliance by the licensee
508| with statutes, and with rules adopted premulgated under the

509| provisions of those statutes, governing minimum standards of

510| construction, quality and adequacy of care, and rights of

511| residents. The survey shall be conducted every 6 months for the
512| next 2-year period if the facility has been cited for a class I
513 deficiency; hés been cited for two or more class II deficiencies
514| arising from separate surveys or investigations within a 60-day
515| period, or has had three or more substantiated complaints within
516 a 6-month period, each resulting in at least one class I or

517| class II deficiency. In addition to any other fees or fines in
518 this.part, the agency shall assess a fine for each facility that
519| 1is subject to the 6-month survey cycle. The fine for the 2-year
520| period shall be $6,000, one-half to be paid at the completion of
521 each survey. The agency may adjust this fine by the change in
522 the Consumer Price Index, based on the 12 months immediately

523| preceding the increase, to cover the cost of the additional

524| surveys. If such deficiencies are overturned as the result of

525| administrative action but additional surveys have already been

526| conducted pursuant to this section, the most recent survey shall

527| be considered a licensure survey for purposes of scheduling

528| future surveys. The agency shall verify through subsequent

529{ inspection that any deficiency identified during inspection is
530| corrected. However, the agency may verify the 'correction of a
531| class III or class IV deficiency unrelated to resident rights or

532| resident care without reihspecting the facility if adequate
Page 19 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



FLORIDA H O U 8§ E-‘ O F R EPRESENTATIVE S

HB 247 2008

533| written documentation has been received from the facility, which
534| provides assurance that the deficiency has been corrected. The
535| giving or causing to be given of advance notice of such

536| unannounced inspections by an employee of the agency to any

537| wunauthorized person shall constitute cause for suspension of not
538| fewer than 5 working days according to the provisions of chapter
539 110.

540 Section 5. Paragraph (d) of subsection (1) of section

541/ 400.195, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

542 400.195 Agency reporting requirements.--

543 (1) For the period beginning June 30, 2001, and ending

544| June 30, 2005, the Agency for Health Care Administration shall
545| provide a report to the Governor, the President of the Senate,
546 and the Speaker of the House of Representatives with respect to
547| nursing homes. The first report shall be submitted no later than
548| December 30, 2002, and subsequent reports shall be submitted

549| every 6 months thereafter. The report shall identify facilities
550| based on their oWnership characteristics, size, business

551| structure, for-profit or not-for-profit status, and any other
552| characteristics the agency determines useful in analyzing the
553| varied segments of the nursing home industry and shall report:
554 (d) Information regarding deficiencies cited, including
555| information used to develop the Nursing Home Guide WATCH LIST
556| pursuant to s. 400.191, and applicable rules, a summary of data
557| generated on nursing homeé by Centers for Medicare and Medicaid

558| Services Nursing Home Quality Information Project, and

0.0
A"~

19
H

559/ information collected pursuant to s. 400.147(8) 5

560| relating to litigation.

Page 20 of 22

CODING: Words strieken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



FLORIDA H O U S E OF REPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 : 2008

561 Section 6. Paragraph (a) of subsection (3) of section
562| 400.23, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

563 400.23 Rules; evaluation and deficiencies; licensure

564 status.--

565 (3)(a)1l. The agency shall adopt rules providing minimum
566| staffing requirements for nursing homes. These requirements
567| shall include, for each nursing home facility:

568 a. A minimum certified nursing assistant staffing of 2.6
569| hours of direct care per resident per day beginning January 1,
570| 2003, and increasing to 2.7 hours of direct care per resident
571| per day beginning January 1, 2007. Beginning January 1, 2002, a
572| =e facility may not shaitr staff below one certified nursing

573| assistant per 20 residents, and must provide a minimum licensed

574| nursing staffing of 1.0 hour of direct care per resident per day
575| but never below one licensed nurse per 40 residents.

576 b. Beginning January 1, 2007, a minimum weekly average

577 certified nursing assistant staffing of 2.9 hours of direct care
578| per resident per day. For the purpose of this sub-subparagraph,
579| a week is defined as Sunday through Saturday.

580 2. Nursing assistants employed under s. 400.211(2) may be
581| included in computing the staffing ratio for certified nursing
582| assistants only if their job responsibilities include only

583| nursing-assistant-related duties.

584 - 3. Each nursing home must document compliance with

585| staffing standards as required under this paragraph andvpost

586| daily the names of staff on duty for the benefit of facility

587| residents and the public. Compliance with federal posting

588| requirements satisfies the posting requirements in this
Page 21 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0247-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F R EPRESENTATIVES

HB 247 2008

589| subparagraph.

590 4. The agency shall recognize the use of licensed nurses
591| for compliance with minimum staffing requirements for certified
592| nursing assistants, provided that the facility otherwise meets
593| the minimum staffing requirements for licensed nurses and that
594| the licensed nurses are performing the duties of a certified

595| nursing assistant. Yrless—etherwise approvedbythe—ageney,

596| Licensed nurses counted toward the minimum staffing requirements
597| for certified nursing assistants must exclusively perform the
598| duties of a certified nursing assistant fer—the entire-shift and

599 not also be counted toward the minimum staffing requirements for

600 licensed nurses. H—the—ageney—approved—ea—facilitylas—reguest—+te

601| use—aticensed—nurse—to—perform bothlicensed nursing and
602| eertifiednursingassistent dutiesr The facility must allocate

603| the amount of staff time specifically spent on certified nursing
604| assistant duties for the purpose of documenting compliance with
605| minimum staffing requirements for certified and licensed nursing
606| staff. In no event may the hours of a licensed nurse with dual
607| Jjob responsibilities be counted twice.

608 Section 7. This act shall take effect July 1, 2008.

Page 22 of 22

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
: ' hb0247-00



e S
NoH

O VW W U AW N R

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)
Bill No. HB 247
COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED _ _ (¥y/N)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(Y/N)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _(Y/N)
WITHDRAWN __ (¥/N)
OTHER

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Committee on Healthy Seniors offered the following:

Amendment (with title amendment)

Remove lines 26-62

TITLE AMENDMENT
Remove line(s) 2-5 and insert:

An act relating to nursing facilities amending s. 400.141, F.S.;

This amendment was adopted in HS on 2/5/08 and is travelling
with the bill and requires no further action.
Page 1 of 1
h0247-1 hcc.xml







W 0 3 & U1 B W N B

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No.2 (for drafter’s use only)
Bill No. HB 247
COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED __ (¥/nN)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(Y/N)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _(Y/N)
WITHDRAWN _(Y/N)
OTHER

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Committee on Healthy Seniors offered the following:

Amendment (with directory and title amendments)
Between line(s) 440 and 441 insert:

(f£) Nothing herein sghall affect any federal reporting

requirements.

This amendment was adopted in HS on 2/5/08 and is travelling
with the bill and requires no further action.
' Page 1 of 1

h0247-2.hcc.xml







o W W 9 O Ul kWD B

BB
H

12
13

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 3 (for drafter’s use only)
} Bill No.
COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/ﬁ)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(Y/m
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION  __ (Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _(Y/m
WITHDRAWN _ (y/w)
OTHER

HB 247

Council/Committee hearing bill: Health Care Council

Representative Murzin offered the following:

Amendment (with title amendments)
Remove line(s) 587-589 and insert:

residents and the public.

TITLE AMENDMENT
Remove line(s) 18-20 and insert:

amending s. 400.23, F.S.; revising provisions relating to a

Page 1 of 1
HB 247 Murzin 3 HCC.doc







O U o~ W N R

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 4 (for drafter’s use only)
Bill No. HB 247
COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED _ (¥/n)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _ (y/w)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION __ (y/wN)
FAILED TO ADOPT _(Y/N)
WITHDRAWN __ (¥/N)
OTHER

Council/Committee hearing bill: Health Care Council

Representative Murzin offered the following:

Amendment
Remove line 598 and insert:

duties of a certified nursing assistant for the entire shift and

Page 1 of 1
HB 247 Murzin 4 HCC.doc







HB 333






HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 333 : Developmentai Disabilities Institutions
SPONSOR(S): Nehr .
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 862

REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR
1) Committee on Healthy Families 6Y,0N Schoolfield Schoolfield
2) Healthcare Council : Schoolfield 7% Gormféygﬂ’ ‘
3) : - s
4)
5)

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The bill requires the Agency for Persons with Disabilities to prepare plans for review and comment if there is an
announced intent to close or reduce census by 20 percent or more at either Tacachale or Sunland
Developmental Disabilities Institution. The plans must ensure proper notification to residents and others,
involvement of residents in planning their transition, and planning for quality and safety of residents during a
transition from the institution. A detailed description of the required report/plan is included in the bill.

The bill requireé the Governor to approve or4disapprove any closure or reduction in census plans, after
receiving comments from the Speaker of the House and President of the Senate.

The bill also requires quarterly reports by the agency on progress of closure or reduction in census at an
institution. :

The effective date of the bill is July 1, 2008.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0333b.HCC.doc
DATE: 3/21/2008



FULL ANALYSIS

. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. HOUSE PRINCIPLES ANALYSIS:

Safeguard Individual Liberty: The bill seeks to ensure individuals have adequate choices of residential
setting and services when institutions for persons with developmental disabilities are closed or their
populations significantly reduced.

Empower Families: The bill requires the Agency for Persons with Developmental Disabilities to ensure
residents and their families, are informed and participate in the planning to receive services as they go
through transition to another placement when the institutions where they live is closed or significantly
reduced in population. ' ' ’

B. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

This bill requires the Agency for Persons with Disabilities to provide a report to the Senate President,
Speaker of the House and the Governor subsequent to an announcement of intent to close or reduce
census by 20 percent or more at either the Sunland (Marianna, Fl.) or Tacachale (Gainesville, FL)
developmental disabilities institution. The Senate and House will have 90 days to provide comments
prior to the Governor’s decision on whether to approve or disapprove plans to close or reduce census
at the developmental disabilities institution.

The bill also expresses Legislative intent that the Agency provide timely notification to residents,
guardians and others when there is an intent to close or reduce census. The intent language also
directs the agency to provide assurances to residents that they will be involved in planning their
transition, that the planning process will be thorough and that the agency will ensure health and safety
of the residents during transition.

The bill specifies that the report include at a minimum, plans to address:

» notification of residents, family, guardian or designees regarding closure or census reduction;

e education of institution staff, residents, families and guardians about placement opportunities in the
community; '

» providing services and residential placements to residents who move to the community;

» assessing the capacity of providers in the community to meet service needs for residents who
transition; -

e . recruitment of providers to ensure adequate capacity in the community;

e monitoring of residents to ensure quality and safety after they leave the institution ;

o the process for support plan development;

o the appeals process for residents and guardians on the support plan process;

» adjustments to staffing levels at the institutions as they are closed or reduced:;

» the timeline for closure or reduction including a financial plan;

e ongoing communication with interested parties during closure or reduction;

» the responsibilities of each agency involved and the disposition of property at the physical plant.

- STORAGE NAME: h0333b.HCC.doc . PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/21/2008



This bill also requires quarterly progress reports by the agency on closure or census reduction at a
developmental disability institution. The content of the quarterly report is specified in the bill.

PRESENT SITUATION

The Agency for Persons with Disabilities currently operates three developmental disabilities institutions.
These include Tacachale in Gainesville, Sunland in Marianna and Gulf Coast Center in Leigh High
Acres. As of October 2007, there were 866 people residing in these facilities. Gulf Coast Center is
currently being phased down to closure by June 30, 2010. - Another institution, the Community of
Landmark in Miami-Dade was closed in 2005. The Agency for Persons with Disabilities reports there
are no plansto close the two remaining developmental disabilities institutions (Sunland and
Tacachale).

The closure of Landmark in Miami-Dade County in 2005, and the planned closure of Gulf Coast Center
by 2010, are part of the agency’s 1998 settlement agreement in the federal Brown v. Bush lawsuit
initiated by the Advocacy Center for Persons with Disabilities. The agency developed detailed plans for
the closure of Landmark and Gulf Coast to ensure the health and safety of residents. The Legislative
oversight for the closure of these institutions is currently through the budget process. During the
closure process for Gulf Coast Center and Landmark the downsizing of these facilities was reflected in
reductions in appropriations and personnel in the agency’s budget request and subsequent Legislative
appropriations.

The choice of where to live is an important part of the Medicaid program which provides the federal
funding to these institutions. Federal law gives residents the right to choose the treatment setting. The
closure of an institution does not obligate an individual or guardian to choose a home and community-
based waiver placement if the individual, in fact, wants an institutional placement. In addition, federal
law, 42 C.F.R. 431.220, provides that an individual retains the right to challenge placement decisions
through the fair hearing process. If a resident of an institution that is closing has the desire to remain in
an institution, they would have the choice of other public or private institutions for persons with
developmental disabilities. The location of an institutional placement could be anywhere in the state
and would depend on vacancies and the ability of the specific institution to adequately meet the needs
of the resident.

Florida Statute 393.062 states that “The Legislature finds and declares that existing state programs for
the treatment of individuals with developmental disabilities, which often unnecessarily place clients in
institutions, are unreasonably costly, are ineffective in bringing the individual client to his or her
maximum potential, and are in fact debilitating to many clients” The Office of Program Policy Analysis
and Government Accountability ('OPPAGA) of the Florida Legislature conducted a review of the
Developmental Disabilities Program in 2000 (Report No: 00 -17). The report found “Many clients who
currently live in state institutions and private intermediate care facilities could be appropriately served in
less costly settings, saving about $35 million per year. Closing one or more of the state institutions
could save another $4 million annually, although some investment in community-based services would
be needed to expand services for these clients.”

C. SECTION DIRECTORY:
Section 1. Creates section 393.35, Florida Statutes, regarding closure of developmental disabilities
institutions.

STORAGE NAME: h0333b.HCC.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/21/2008 :



Section 2. Provides an effective date of July 1, 2008.

Il. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT
A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:
None.

2. Expenditures:
None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:
None.

2. Expenditures:
None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:
None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS
None. '

Ill. COMMENTS
A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not appear to require counties or municipalities to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds, reduce the authority that counties or municipalities have to raise revenue in the
aggregate, nor reduce the percentage of state tax shared with counties or municipalities.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:
None.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:
None. ‘

STORAGE NAME: h0333b.HCC.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 3/21/2008 -



D. STATEMENT OF THE SPONSOR
No statement submitted.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

STORAGE NAME: h0333b.HCC.doc : ) PAGE: 5
DATE: 3/21/2008






FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

S W o g o0 U W N

NONNNN NN NN R R R P R R R R R
0 < o0 R WN R O W o Ndoe U W N o

HB 333 2008

A bill to be entitled
An act relating to developmental disabilities
institutions; creating s. 393.35, F.S.; providing
legislative intent; requiring the Agency for Persons with
Disabilities to submit a plan to the Governor and the
Legislature if the agency or the Legislature proposes to
close or reduce by a certain percentage the resident
population of a developmental disabilities institution;
providing for content of the plan; requiring the Governor
to approve or disapprove the plan to close or reduce the
population of an institution; providing that the
Governor's decision is not binding on the Legislature;
requiring the agency to provide quarterly reports;
providing for content of the reports; providing an

effective date.
Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:
Section 1. Section 393.35, Florida Statutes, is created to

read:

393.35 Developmental disabilities institutions.--

(1) LEGISLATIVE INTENT.--It is the intent of the

Legislature that:

(a) The agency timely notify residents and guardians of

residents of the Marianna Sunland developmental disabilities

institution or the Tacachale developmental disabilities

institution when the agency or the Legislature announces its

intent to close or reduce the census by 20 percent or more at

Page 1 0of 6

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0333-00




FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 333 2008

29 either the Marianna Sunland institution or the Tacachale

30 institution. For purposes of this section, "census reduction" or

31 "reduce the census" means to reduce the current resident

32| population of an institution over a l-year period that begins on

L

33| July 1 and ends on June 30 annually. Residents placed in the

34| institution under court order and residents or their guardians

35| who have requested in writing to leave the institution shall not

36| be included in the census reduction calculation.

- 37 (b) The agency provide assurance to residents and their

38| guardians that planning for transition to another residential

39| setting shall be conducted with the involvement of the residents

40| and their guardians, designated family members, or designees and

41| shall address the needs of the resident in the most appropriate
42| setting. ‘
43 (c) The agency ensure the health and safety of the

44| residents of a developmental disgabilities institution duriné a

45| transition to closure of or a census reduction of 20 percent or

46 more at the institution.

47 (d) The agency conduct a thorough planning process for

48 activities associated with closure of or a census reduction of

49| 20 percent or more at a developmental digabilities institution

50| and comply with the provisions of this section.

51 (2) INTENT TO CLOSE OR REDUCE CENSUS OF MARIANNA SUNLAND

52 OR TACACHALE DEVELOPMENTAL DISABILITIES INSTITUTIONS.--

53 (a) If the agency or the Legislature announces its intent

54| to close or reduce the census by 20 percent or more at either

55| the Marianna Sunland developmental disabilities institution or

56| the Tacachale developmental disabilities institution after July
' Page 2 of 6

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0333-00



FLORTIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 333 ' 2008

57| 1, 2008, the agency must first provide a report regarding plans

58| related to closure of or census reduction at the developmental

59 disabilities institution to the Governor, the President of the

60| Senate, and the Speaker of the House of Representatives. The

61| President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of

62| Representatives shall have 90 days to provide comments to the

63| Governor after receipt of notification of intent to close or

64| reduce the census by 20 percent or more at the institution. The

65| report shall include, but not be limited to, the following

66 activities:

67 1. A plan for providing notification of closure or census

68| reduction. The agency shall notify each affected resident of the

69| institution, the resident's guardian, designated members of the

70| resident's family, or a designee of the intent to close or

71 reduce the census at the institution. The notice must be

72| delivered by registered mail and include the reasons for closure

73 or census reduction, the timeline for closure or census

74| reduction activities, and contact information for the recipient

75 of the notice to obtain additional information.

76 2. A plan for providing education to staff and to

77| residents and their guardians, family members, or designees

78| about residential placement opportunities available to residents

79| after leaving the institution.

80 3. A plan for providing services and other residential

81| placements for residents after they leave the institution.

82 4. An assessment of the capacity of service providers and

83| their ability to meet the needs of the residents in the

84| communities where residents will likely reside after they leave
Page 3 of 6

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0333-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 333 2008

85 the institution.

86 5. A plan for service provider recruitment, development,

87| and training, as needed, to ensure that adequate services are

88| available to residents as they make the transition into the

89 community.

90 6. A plan for monitoring and ensuring safety and service

91| gquality for residents after they have left the institution.

92 7. A process for developing a support plan that includes

93| consultation with the residents and their guardians and provides

94| a community living plan for delivering services to those

95 residents.

96 8. A process for residents and their guardians to appeal

97| the services planned throﬁgh the support planning process.

98 9. A plan for adjusting employee staffing levels during

99 the census reduction or transition to closure to ensure the

100| safety of and gquality of care for residents and assistance for

101| employees seeking new employment.

102 10. A complete timeline for closure of or census reduction

103| at the institution that includes a financial plan for the

104| closure or census reduction and the projected savings associated

105 with the closure or census reduction.

106 11. A communications plan to keep residents, guardians of

107| residents, designated family members, employees, and designees

108| informed of the progress of the closure or census reduction.

109 '~ 12. The responsibility of each state agency involved in

110 the closure of or census reduction at the institution.

111 13. A plan for closure activities and the disposition of

112| property of the physical plant of the institution.
Page 4 of 6

CODING: Words stneken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
4 hb0333-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 333 2008

113 (b) After consideration of comments from the President of

114} the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives and

115| other evidence, the Governor shall approve or disapprove the

116| plan of the agency to close or reduce the census by 20 percent

117| or more at the developmental disabilities institution. The

118| Governor's approval or disapproval of the closure of or census

119{ reduction at an institution is not binding on the Legislature.

120 (3) REPORTS ON CLOSURE ACTIVITIES OR CENSUS REDUCTION. --

121 (a) The agency shall provide a quarterly report to the

122| Governor, the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the

123| House of Representatives on the progress of the closure of or

124| census reduction at an institution and shall post‘the report on

125| the agency's Internet website. This report requirement shall

126| apply to the closure of the Gulf Coast Center and any other

127| developmental disabilities institution closure or census

128| reduction activities approved after July 1, 2008.

129 (b) The report shall document the progress of the plan,

130 including, but not limited to, the requirements in subsection

131 (2), and shall also include the following:

132 1. The number of residents, guardians, designated family

133| members, and designees that have been notified and have yet to

134| be notified of the planned closure or census reduction

135 activities.

136 2. Current resident population compared to targeted census

137 reduction.

138 3. The locations of residential placements by number and

139| type of facilities.

140 4. The number of significant reportable events for
Page 5 of 6

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0333-00



F

141
142
143
144
145
l4e6
147

L ORI DA H OUSE  OF R EPRESENTATIVE S

HB333 ‘ 2008

residents in the institution.

5. Statistics that indicate the successful placement of

residents in locations in the community or in other institutions

chosen by those residents or their guardians and an assessment

of the efforts made by the agency in assisting residents and

their guardians in making those choices.

Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2008.

Page 6 of 6

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0333-00



o VW 0 g o U WN R

R =
W N B

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES

Amendment No. 1(for drafter’s use only)

COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED __ (¥/N)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(Y/N)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT Y/
WITHDRAWN | (Y/N)

OTHER

Bill No.

333

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Representative(s) Nehr offered the following:

Amendment (with directory and title amendments)
Remove line(s) 27 and insert:

institution when the agency announces its

TITLE AMENDMENT
Remove line(s) 6 and insert:

Legislature if the agency proposes to

Page 1 of 1
HB333 Nehr-1.doc







W o N o6 L1 W R

BB
R o

12
13
14

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES

Amendment No. 2 (for drafter’s use only)

COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED __ (¥/N)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(Y/N)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT __ (¥/N)
WITHDRAWN . (y/N).
OTHER

Bill No.

333

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Representative (s) Nehr offered the following::

Amendment (with directory and title amendments)
Remove line(s) 53 and insert: ‘

(a) If the agency announces its intent

TITLE AMENDMENT
Remove line(s) 6 and insert:

Legislature if the agency proposes to

Page 1 of 1
HB 333 Nehr -2.doc







N 0 o WO

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES

Amendment No. 3 (for drafter’s use only)

COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED _ (¥/N)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _ (Y/N)
'ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _ (Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _ (Y/N)
WITHDRAWN (Y/N)

OTHER

Bill No.

333

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Representative (s) Nehr offered the following:

Amendment

Remove lines 80-81

Page 1 of 1
HB333 Nehr-3.doc







O W W 9 6 U Bk W N R

B
I_l

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES

Amendment No. 4 (for drafter’s use only)

Bill No.

COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED __ (¥/N)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(Y/N)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _(Y/N)
WITHDRAWN (Y/N)

OTHER

333

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Representative(s) Nehr offered the following:

Amendment (with directory and title amendments)
Remove line(s) 92-95 and insert:

7. A process for developing a support plan that includes

consultation with the residents and their gquardians for

providing servicesg and other residential placement plans for

residehts after they leave the institution.

HB333 Nehr -4.doc

Page 1 of 1







u s W N R

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 5(for drafter’s use only)

BRill No.

COUNCTL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED __ (y/N)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(Y/N)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _{(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _(Y/N)
WITHDRAWN (Y/N)

OTHER

333

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

RepresentatiVe(s) Nehr offered the following:

Amendment (with directory and title amendments)

Remove line(s) 96-97

Page 1 of 1
HB333 Nehr-5.doc







HB 341






HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 341 Treatment Programs for Impaired Practitioners
SPONSOR(S): Holder and others B
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS:
REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR
1) Committee on Health Quality 10Y,0N Owen Lowell
2) Healthcare Council Owen é?@ Gormlﬁﬂ/\/
 — U7
3) Policy & Budget Council
4)
5)
SUMMARY ANALYSIS

HB 341 revises provisions relating to the impaired practitioner program within the Department of Health. The
bill authorizes the Department of Health to contract with impaired practitioner program consultants to provide
services to students enrolled in schools that provide training for health care practitioners licensed under
Chapter 456, F. S., if the school requests such services. The bill provides immunity to the schools from a civil
action for the referral of a student to a consultant or for disciplinary actions that adversely affect the status of a
student.

The bill grants sovereign immunity to an impaired practitioner consultant, its officers, employees, and persons
acting at the direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of an emergency intervention, when the
consultant is unable to perform the intervention, for actions taken within the scope of a contract with the
Department of Health. The bill specifies contractual conditions that must exist in order for sovereign immunity -
to be granted.

This bill may implicate Article I, section 21 of the Florida Constitution, the right of access to the courts, by
barring a civil recovery against schools that provide training for health care practitioners licensed under chapter
456, F.S., under specific circumstances.

The bill appears to have a significant negative fiscal impact on the Medical Quality Assurance Trust Fund (see
fiscal analysis).

The bill provides for an effective date of July 1, 2008.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0341b.HCC.doc
DATE; 3/21/2008



FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. HOUSE PRINCIPLES ANALYSIS:

Provide limited government — this bill will grant sovereign immunity to contractor consultants for actions
taken within the scope of a contract with the Department of Health.

B. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation

Impaired Practitioner Programs

Healthcare professions are established within individual practice acts and are governed by

Chapter 456, Florida Statutes, within the Department of Health (department) in the Division of Medical
Quality Assurance (division). Section 456.076, Florida Statutes, authorizes the department to contract
with impaired practitioner consultants for services relating to intervention, evaluation, referral, and
monitoring of |mpa|red practitioners who have voluntarily agreed to treatment through an impaired
practitioner program.! Impaired practitioner programs are available to all healthcare practitioners
licensed under Chapter 456, F.S. as well as other licensed professionals regulated by the department.

Consultants do not provide medical treatment, nor do they have the authority to render decisions
relating to licensure of a particular practitioner. However, the consultant is required to make
recommendations to the department regarding a practitioner patient’s ability to prac;tice.2 Consultants
are required by department rules to refer practitioner patients to department-approved treatment
programs and providers. They have specified case managenient duties with regards to practitioner
patient progress in a treatment program. Further, the consultant acts as the records custodian for all
treatment information on the practitioner patients they are contracted to monitor. A typical contract
between a consultant and an impaired practitioner under treatment is 5 years.

Currently, the department contracts with two groups for impaired practitioner consulting services: the
intervention Project for Nurses (IPN) for nurses licensed under Chapter 464, F.S., and the
Professionals Resource Network (PRN) for all other licensed heaith care professionals. According to
the department, there are approximately 2,700 participants enrolled in the programs: 1,600 in the IPN
and 1,100 in the PRN. .

Sovereign Immunity

Sovereign immunity is the legal doctrine which provides that a government may not be sued for a claim
without its consent. However, the federal government and most states have waived their immunity from
“suit in varying degrees in certain cases. Article X, section 13 of the Florida Constitution establishes that
laws may be enacted in the statutes for suits to be brought against the state for its liabilities.
Accordingly, s. 768.28(1), F.S., provides that the state “waives sovereign immunity for liability for torts,
but only to the extent specified in this act.”

Specifically, the act provides that the state has limited its financial liability for a tort action by any one
person to $100,000 or to $200,000 for additional claims and judgments arising from the same incident
or occurrence. If a judgment is rendered by a court in excess of those amounts, the plaintiff may pursue
a claim bill in the Legislature for the amount in excess of the statutory limit.

' Rules 64B31-10.10.001 and 64B31-10.002, F.A.C.

2 Section 456.076(5)(a), F.S.
STORAGE NAME.: h0341b.HCC.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/21/2008



The act further provides that the exclusive remedy for injury or damage suffered as a result of an act,
event, or omission of an officer, employee, or agent of the state is an action against the governmental
entity, the head of such entity in his or her official capacity, or the constitutional officer of which the
officer, employee, or agent is an employee, uniess the act or omission was committed in bad faith, with
malicious purpose, or in a manner exhibiting wanton and willful disregard of human rights, safety, or
property. “Officer, employee or agent” is defined to include any health care provider providing services
pursuant to s. 766.1115, F.S.,* any member of the Florida Health Services Corps, as defined in s.
381.0302, F.S., who provndes uncompensated care to medically indigent persons referred by the
department, and any public defender or his or her employee or agent, including among others, an
assistant public defender and an investigator.

In addition, an officer, employee, or agent of the state or any of its subdivisions may not be held
personally liable or named as a defendant for an injury or damage if the act occuirred in the scope of his
or her employment unless the officer, employee, or agent acted in bad faith; with malicious purpose, or
in a manner that exhibited a wanton and willful disregard of human rights, safety, or property.

The Bureau of State Liability Claims within the Department of Financial Services provides protection
against general liability claims and suits filed pursuant to Section 768.28, F.S.*

Effect of Proposed Changes |

The bill increases the qualifications required for impaired practitioner program consultants by requiring
that each consultant, instead of at least one, be a practitioner or recovered practitioner licensed under
chapters 458, 459, or Part | of 464, or an entity that employs a medical director who is a practitioner or
recovered practitioner licensed as an allopathic or osteopathic physician or nurse under chapters 458,
459 or part | of 464, F.S., respectively.

The bill authorizes the department to contract with impaired practitioner program consultants to provide
services to students enrolled in schools that provide training for health care practitioners licensed under
Chapter 456, F.S.,° if the school requests such services. In addition, the bill provides civil immunity to
the schools that refer a student to an impaired practitioner program consultant or take disciplinary
actions that adversely affect the status of a student, provided the school adheres to due process
procedures adopted by the applicable accreditation entities and does not act with intentional fraud.

The bill provides sovereign immunity to an impaired practitioner consultant, its officers, employees, and
persons acting at the direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of an emergency intervention,
when the consultant is unable to perform the intervention, for actions taken within the scope of a
contract with the Department of Health. The bill specifies contractual conditions that must exist in order
for sovereign immunity to be granted.

The bill requires the Department of Financial Services to defend the consultant, its officers, employees,
and persons acting at the direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of an emergency

intervention, when the consultant is unable to perform the intervention, from any legal action brought as
a result of contracted program activities.

C. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Amends s. 456.076, F.S., revising provisions relating to treatment for impaired practitioners.

Section 2. Provides an effective date of July 1, 2008.

? Otherwise known as the “Access to Health Care Act.”
* http://www.fldfs.com/Risk/SLC/index htm.
5 According to the department, while there are 95 healthcare licenses issued by the department, it is unknown how many educational

institutions offer curricula that may lead to licensure in these professions.
STORAGE NAME: h0341b.HCC.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/21/2008



Il. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT
A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

As of 2008 there were 96,423 students enrolled in a health program® within a state community
college or state university in Florida.” The Professional Resource Network has determined that
approx1mately 3 percent of currently licensed health practitioners may be eligible for treatment
services.® If the assumption is made that the Department of Health enters into contracts with
consultants and 3 percent of the student population seeks treatment services provided by either the
IPN or PRN program, participation may increase upwards of 2,393 participants annually.

The current contract with IPN and PRN costs $1,046 per participant annually. However, additional
participants may increase the annual contract amount per participant.

Estimated Recurring Expenditures 1% Year 2" Year

Medical Quality Assurance Trust Fund $3,025,754 $3,025,754

The Medical Quality Assurance (or MQA) Trust Fund is funded by fees collected from all licensed
practitioners under chapter 456, F.S. Currently, students do not pay fees until they are licensed.
However, the MQA Trust Fund will pay for the consultant/vendor fees associated with providing
treatment services to eligible students. As of December 2007, there were 4 medical students
receiving services provided by PRN and 14 nursing students receiving services provided by IPN.°

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:
None.

2. Expenditures:
None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

Approved treatment providers may experience an increase in demand for services with the addition of
students enrolled in schools that provide training for students licensed under chapter 456, F.S., in
impaired practitioner programs.

6 Not all enrolled students may be in a health discipline that leads to licensure regulated under chapter 456, F.S.

72008 Fact Book Tables 10 and 11 (http://www.fldoe.org/arm/cctcmis/pubs/factbook/default. asp) and 2007-08
Baccalaureate Program Enrollment Reports emailed by Dept of Education to House staff on 1/14/08.

Impalred Practitioners Program of Florida: Professionals Resource Network Inc., Monthly report prepared for the
Department of Health (December 2007).

® Impaired Practitioners Program of Florida: Professional Resource Network, Inc., and Intervention Project for Nurses

Monthly Reports prepared for the Department of Health (December 2007).
STORAGE NAME: h0341b.HCC.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 3/21/2008




Students who are found impaired are eligible to enter into a contract to receive services offered by the
PRN or IPN program. Based on impairment contracts for licensed practitioners, a student may be
required to enter into a contract for up to 5-years. While in an impairment program a student is required
to pay for all treatment services such as initial evaluations, urinalysis testing and ongoing
psychotherapy. Initial evaluations can range from $300-$500 and up to $1000 if chronic pain evaluation
is required. The average cost is $42 per urinalysis, the number per month varies depending upon the
recovery process. The cost of four group therapy meetings per month can range from $50- $150 per
month. If the impairment is found to be physical, then the cost may be nominal. All participants are
required to have a primary care physician, but no visits are required. The PRN program offers a loan
forgiveness option to eligible participants. All treatment services are paid directly to the provider or third
party administrator and not through the PRN program.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

Currently, impaired practitioner consultants are not statutorily designated as agents of the department;
rather, they are considered vendors/consultants. Generally, if a claim is brought against a vendor it is
currently the responsibility of the vendor/consultant to pay for all costs associated with defending any
claim, suit, or proceeding.

The bill will require the Department of Financial Services to defend claims against a vendor/consultant,
its officers, employees, and persons acting at the direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of
an emergency intervention by making them agents of the department. The potential fiscal impact is
indeterminate. The department would be liable for a maximum of $200,000 per incident unless the
Legislature approves a claims bill for the incident.

The Department of Health has stated that the MQA Trust Fund would have to reimburse the
Department of Financial Services for all costs associated with defending any claim, suit, or proceeding
against an impaired practitioner consultant.

lll. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or take action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenues.

2. Other:

This bill may implicate Article |, section 21 of the Florida Constitution, which states that the courts “shall
be open to every person for redress of any injury, and justice shall be administered without sale, denial,
or delay.” The test for ensuring the right of access to the courts was declared in Kluger v. White, 281
So.2d 1 (Fla. 1973), in which the Florida Supreme Court held that the Legislature is without power to
abolish or otherwise restrict a statutory law right that predated the adoption of the constitution or a
common law right without providing a reasonable alternative remedy, unless there is a showing of an
overpowering public necessity to limit or abolish such right and no alternative remedy of meeting such
public necessity exists.

The Florida Supreme Court refined the Kluger test in Smith v. Department of Ins., 507 So.2d 1080
(Fla. 1986). There, comprehensive tort reform legislation capping non-economic damages at
$450,000 was challenged on the basis that it denied claimants access to the courts. In that case, the

STORAGE NAME: h0341b.HCC.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 3/21/2008



Court noted the Kluger test requires either (1) providing a reasonable alternative remedy or
commensurate benefit, or (2) a legislative showing of overpowering public necessity for the abolishment
of the right and no alternative method of meeting such public necessity. The Court noted that the right

. to sue and recover non-economic damages of any amount existed at the time the
Florida Constitution was adopted. Consequently, the Court found the cap on non-economic damages
unconstitutional as the Legislature did not provide an alternative remedy or commensurate benefit and
the parties did not assert the existence of an overpowering public necessity.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:
No additional rulemaking authority is required as a result of this bill.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

It appears that the bill may be overbroad with respect to the extension of sovereign immunity to
impaired practitioner consultants’ officers, employees, and persons acting at the direction of the
consultant for the limited purpose of an emergency intervention, when the consultant is unable to
perform the intervention. Extension of sovereign immunity to this degree places the state at risk for the
actions of individuals that the state does not have direct control over, such as persons other than a
contracted consultant performing emergency interventions.

The Department of Health has recommended three amendments:
e The first amendment is recommended to ensure that the department has sufficient rulemaking
authority for all aspects of the impaired practitioner programs.

On lines 30-32, deletes those lines and insert:

treating a professional, and requirements for continued care of impaired professionals by
approved treatment providers, continued monitoring by the consultant of the care provided by
approved treatment providers regarding the professionals under their care, as well as
requnrements related to the consultant’s expulswn of professmnals from the program evaluating

* The second amendment is recommended to clarify that the treatment of impaired students, who
may leave the state after graduation, is the responsibility of the State Board of Education and
not the licensed professionals who pay licensing fees.

On lines 45-47, deletes those lines and insert:

practitioner is, in fact, impaired. The department may use a consultant or contract with its
consultants, for appropriate compensation from the school or from the State Board of Education,
for services to be provided, if requested by a school located in Florida with approval from the
State Board of Education, for students

» The third amendment is recommended to require consultants to indemnify the state for liabilities
incurred under chapter 768 (sovereign immunity).

On line 73, delete that line and insert:
this section. The contract must provide:

1. For the indemnification of the state by the consultant for any liabilities incurred up to
the limits set out in chapter 768.

D. STATEMENT OF THE SPONSOR

I will be introducing a strike all amendment during the Committee meeting that will address the
concerns mentioned in the analysis. | look forward to discussing the bill with aIl of the Committee

members.

STORAGE NAME: h0341b.HCC.doc PAGE: 6
DATE: 3/21/2008 :



IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

On January 22, 2008, the Health Quality Committee adopted one amendment to the bill. The strike-all
amendment narrowed the scope of the bill to apply only to those students in schools in preparation for
licensure as allopathic physicians under chapter 458 or osteopathic physicians under chapter 459.

The bill was reported favorably with a recommended Council Substitute.

STORAGE NAME: h0341b.HCC.doc PAGE: 7

DATE:

3/21/2008






FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 341 2008

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to treatment programs for impaired

3 practitioners; amending s. 456.076, F.S.; revising

4 requirements for program consultants; authorizing the

5 Department of Health to contract with consultants to

6 provide treatment services for allopathic and osteopathic
7 physician students alleged to be impaired; providing

8 certain schools with absence of liability in civil actions
9 when referring students to such consultants or taking
10|- certain actions without intentional fraud; providing
11 limited sovereign immunity for certain program consultants
12 under specific contractual conditions; requiring the

13 Department of Financial Services to defend actions against
14 program consultants; providing an effeétive date.
15

16| Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:
17
18 Section 1. Subsections (1) and (2) of section 456.076,

19| Florida Statutes, are amended, and subsection (7) is added to

20| that section, to read:

21 456.076 Treatment programs for impaired practitioners.--
22 (1) For professions that do not have impaired practitioner
23| programs provided for in their practice acts, the department

24| shall, by rule, designate approved impaired practitioner

25| programs under this section. The department may adopt rules

26| setting forth appropriate criteria for approval of treatment

27| providers. The rules may specify the manner in which the

28| consultant, retained as set forth in subsection (2), works with
Page 1 0of 5 '

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0341-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 341 : : 2008

29| the department in intervention, requirements for evaluating and

30| treating a professional, and requirements for £ke continued care

31| and monitoring ef—a—prefessienat by the consultant by—an

32| opproved—treatmentprovider.

33 (2) The department shall retain one or more impaired

34| practitioner consultants. The & cbnsultant shall be a licensee
35| under the jurisdiction of the Division of Medical Quality

36| 'Assurance within the department who—and—atlteast—oneconsultant
37| must be a practitioner or recovered practitioner licensed under

38| chapter 458, chapter 459, or part I of chapter 464 or shall be

39| an entity that employs a medical director who must be a

40| practitioner or recovered practitioner licensed under chapter

41| 458, chapter 459, or part I of chapter 464. The consultant shall

42| assist the probable cause panel and department in carrying out
43| "the responsibilities of this section. This shall include working
44| with department investigators to determine whether a

45| practitioner is, in fact, impaired. The department may contract

46| with the consultant, for appropriate compensation, for services

47| to be provided, if requested by the school, for students

48| enrcolled in schools for licensure under this chapter who are

49| alleged to be impaired as a result of the misuse or abuse of

50| alcohol or drugs, or both, or due to a mental or physical

51| condition. No school that is governed by accreditation standards

52| that require notice and the provision of due process procedures

53] to students shall be held liable in any civil action for

54| referring a student to the consultant retained by the department

55| or for disciplinary actions that adversely affect the status of

56| a student when the disciplinary actions are instituted in
Page 2 of 5

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0341-00



FLORIDA H OUSE O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 341 ‘ ' 2008

57| reasonable reliance on the recommendations, reports, or

58 conclusions provided by such consultant, provided that the

59| school, in referring the student or taking disciplinary action,

60| adheres to the due process procedures adopted by the applicable

61| accreditation entities and provided that the school committed no

62| intentional fraud in carrying out the provisions of this

63 section.

64 (7) (a) A consultant retained pursuant to subsection (2), a -

65| consultant's officers and employees, and those acting at the

66| direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of an

67| emergency intervention on behalf of a licensee or student as

68 described in subsection (2) when the consultant is unable to

69| perform such intervention shall be considered agents of the

70| department for purposes of s. 768.28 while acting within the

71| scope of the consultant's dutiegs under the contract with the

72| department if the contract complies with the requirements of

73| this section. The contract must provide that:

74 1. The consultant establish a quality assurance program to

75| monitor services delivered under the contract.

76 2. The consultant's quality assurance program, treatment,

77| and monitoring records be evaluated quarterly.

78 3. The consultant's quality assurance program be subject

79| to review and approval by the department.

80 4. The consultant operate under policies and procedures

81| approved by the department.

82 5. The consultant provide to the department for approval a

83| policy and procedure manual that comports with all statutes,

84| rules, and contract provisions approved by the department.
Page 3 of 5

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0341-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 341 2008

85 6. The department be entitled to review the records

86| relating to the consultant's performance under the contract for

87| the purpose of management audits, financial audits, or program

88| evaluation.

89 7. All performance measures and standards be subject to

90| wverification and approval by the department.

91 8. The department be entitled to terminate the contract

92| with the consultant for noncompliance with the contract.

93 (b)  In accordance with s. 284.385, the Department of

94| Financial Services shall defend any claim, suit, action, or

95| proceeding against the consultant, the consultant's officers or

96| employees, or those acting at the direction of the consultant

97| for the limited purpose of an emergency intervention on behalf

98 of a licensee or student as described in subsection (2) when the

99| consultant is unable to perform such intervention brought as a

©100| result of any act or omission of action of any of the

101| consultant's officers and employees and those acting at the

102| direction of the consultant for the limited purpose of an

103| emergency intervention on behalf of a licensee or student as

104 described in subsection (2) when the consultant is unable to

105| perform such intervention when such act or omission arises out

106| of and in the scope of the consultant's duties under its

107{ contract with the department.

108 (c) If the consultant retained pursuant to subsection (2)

109| is retained by any other state agency, and if the contract

110| between such state agency and the consultant complieg with the

111| requirements of this section, the consultant, the consultant's

112| officers and employees, and those acting at the direction of the
Page 4 of 5

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0341-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120

HB 341 2008

consultant for the limited purpose of an emergency intervention

on behalf of a licensee or student as described in subsection

(2) when the consultant is unable to perform such intervention

shall be considered agents of the state for the purposes of this

section while acting within the scope of and pursuant to

guidelines established in the contract between such state agency

and the consultant.

Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2008.

Page 5 of 5

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
. hb0341-00






o W W g o6 U s W NN PR

N i o i i = I =
O VW W N O U A W N PR

OTHER

- HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES

. Amendment No. 1

Bill No. 341
COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED _ __ (¥/N)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _ (Y/N)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _ (Y/N)
WITHDRAWN _ (y/N)

1

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Committee on Health Quality offered the following:

Amendment (with title amendment)

Remove everything after the enacting clause and insert:

Section 1. Subsections (1) and (2) of section 456.076,
Florida Statutes, are amended, and subsection (7) is added to
that section, to read: '

456.076 Treatment programs for impaired practitioners.--

(1) For professions that do not have impaired practitioner
programs provided for in their practice acts, the department
shall, by rule, designate approved impaired practitioner
programs under this section. The department may adopt rules
setting forth appropriate criteria for approval of treatment
providers. The rules may specify the manner in which the
consultant, retained as set forth in subsection (2), works with
the department in intervention, requirements for evaluating and

treating a professional, and requirements for ke continued care

and monitoring ef—a—prefessienal by the consultant by—an
approved—treatment—provider.
The strike all amendment was adopted in HQ on 1/22/08 with

recommended council substitute.
Page 1 of 5

Strike all to HB 341 .hcc




21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1
(2) The department shall retain one or more impaired
practitioner consultants. The A consultant shall be either a
licensee under the jurisdiction of the Division of Medical
Quality Assurance within the department who—and—at—teast—one
eonsultant must be a practitioner or recovered practitioner

licensed under chapter 458, chapter 459, or part I of chapter

464 or an entity that employs a medical director who must be a

practitioner or recovered practitioner licensed under chapter

458, chapter 459, or part I of chapter 464. The consultant shall

assist the probable cause panel and department in carrying out
the responsibilities of this section. This shall include working
with department investigators to determine whether a

practitioner is, in fact, impaired. The department may contract

‘with the consultant, for appropriate compensation, for services

to be provided, if requested by the school, for students

enrolled in schools in preparation for licensure as allopathic

physicians under chapter 458 or osteopathic physicians under

chapter 459 who are alleged to be impaired as a result of the

misuse or abuse of alcohol or drugs, or both, or due to a mental

or physical condition. No medical school accredited by the

Liaison Committee on Medical Education or Commission on

Osteopathic College Accreditation, or other school that provides

for the education of students enrolled in préparation for

licensure as allopathic physicians under chapter 458 or

osteopathic physicians under chapter 459, which is governed by

accreditation standards that require notice and the provision of

due process procedures to students shall be held liable in any

civil action for referring a student to the consultant retained

by the department or for disciplinary actions that adversely

affect the status of a student when the disciplinary actions are
The strike all amendment was adopted in HQ on 1/22/08 with
recommended council substitute.

Page 2 of 5

Strike all to HB 341.hcc




51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78

79

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/ COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1

- instituted in reasonable reliance on the recommendations,

reports, or conclusions provided by such consultant, provided

that the school, in referring the student or taking disciplinary

action, adheres to the due process procedures adopted by the

applicable accreditation entities and provided that the school

committed no intentional fraud in carrying out the provisions of

this section.

(7)(a) A consultant retained pursuant to subsection (2),

and its officers and employees and those acting at the direction

of the consultant for the limited purpose of an emerqehcv

intervention of a licensee or student as described in subsection

(2) when the consultant is .unable to perform such intervention,

shall be considered agents of the department for purposes of s.

768.28 while acting within the scope of the contractor's duties

under the contract with the department if the contract complies

with the requirements of this section. The contract must

provide:

1. That the consultant establish a quality assurance

program to monitor services delivered under the contract.

2. That the consultant's quality assurance program,

treatment, and monitoring records be evaluated quarterly.

3. That the consultant's gquality assurance program be

subject to review and approval by the department.

4. That the consultant operate under policies and

procedures approved by the department.

5. That the consultant provide to the department for

approval a policy and procedure manual that comports with all

statutes, rules, and contract provisions approved by .the

department.

The strike all amendment was adopted in HQ on 1/22/08 with
‘recommended council substitute.
Page 3 of 5
Strike all to HB 341.hcc




80
81
82
83

84

85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1

6. That the department be entitled to review the records

relating to the consultant's performance under the contract for

the purpose of management audits, financial audits, or program

evaluation.

7. That all performance measures and standards be subiject

to verification and approval by the department.

8. That the department be entitled to terminate the

contract with the consultant for noncompliance with the

contract.

(b) In accordance with s. 284.385, the Department of

Financial Services shall defend any claim, suit, action, or

proceeding against the consultant,_or its officers or emplovees

or those acting at the direction of the consultant for the

limited purpose of an emergency intervention of a licensee or

studeht ag described in subsection (2) when the consultant is

unable to perform such intervention, brought as a result of any

act or omission of action of any of its officers and emplovees

and those acting at the direction of the consultant for the

limited purpose of an emergency intervention of a licensee or

student as described in subsection (2) when the consultant is

unable to perform such intervention, when such act or omisgsion

arigses out of and in the scope of the consultant's duties under

its contract with the department.

(c) If the consultant retained pursuant to subsection (2)

is retained by any other state agency, and if the contract

between such stateé agency and the consultant complies with the

requirements of this section, then the consultant, and its

officers and employees and those acting at the direction of the

consultant for the limited purpose of an emergency intervention

of a licensee or student as described in subsection (2) when the
The strike all amendment was adopted in HQ on 1/22/08 with
recommended council substitute.

Page 4 of 5

Strike all to HB 341.hcc




110
111
112

113

114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131

132¢

133
134
135

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1

consultant is unable to perform such intervention, shall be

considered agents of the state for the purposes of this sectién,

while acting within the scope of and pursuant to quidelines

established in the contract between such state agency and the

consultant.

Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2008.

TITLE AMENDMENT

Remove the entire title and insert:
A bill to be entitled

An act relating to treatment programs for impaired
practitioners; amending s. 456.076, F.S.; revising
requirements for program consultants; authorizing the
Department of Health to contract with consultants to
provide treatment services for allopathic and osteopathic
physician students alleged to be impaired; providing for
absence of liability in civil actions of certain schools
for referring students to such consultants or taking
certain actions without intentional fraud; providing
limited sovereign immunity for certain program consultants
under specific contractual conditions; requiring the
Department of Financial Services to defend actions against

program consultants; providing an effective date.

The strike all amendment was adopted in HQ on 1/22/08 with
recommended council substitute.
Page 5 of 5
Strike all to HB 341.hcc







HB 637






HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 637 Electronic Health Records
SPONSOR(S): Grimsley and others
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 1998
REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR

1) Healthcare Council Owen @ Gorm@%
W%

2) Policy & Budget Council
3)
4)

5)

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The bill creates the “Florida eHealth Initiative Act” to “promote and coordinate the establishment of a secure,
privacy-protected, and interconnected statewide health information exchange.” The bill amends the agency’s
authority to provide grants to RHIOs by requiring dollar for dollar match of state funds with local or private
funds and issuance of grants in three categories: development, operation, and collaboration. The bill also
creates an Electronic Medical Records System Adoption Loan Program. The agency is required to provide
one-time, no-interest loans to physicians or business entities whose shareholders are physicians for the initial
costs of implementing an electronic medical records system.

The bill creates the Florida Health Information Exchange Advisory Council, composed of 12 members, to
promote participation in health information exchanges, conduct outreach to stakeholders, and provide
guidance regarding the effective use of health information exchanges and standards for privacy and security.

The bill clarifies that a patient’s records held by a hospital may be disclosed without the consent of the patient,
or his or her legal representative, to health care practitioners and providers involved in the care or treatment of
the patient. The bill also clarifies that clinical lab results may be provided by a lab to other health care
practitioners and providers involved in the care or treatment of the patient for use in connection with the
treatment of the patient.

The bill requires the agency to maintain on its internet website information regarding federal and private sector
health information exchange funding programs and a clearinghouse of state and national legislative,
“regulatory, and public awareness activities related to health information exchanges.

The bill requires the agency to develop and implement a plan to promote participation in health information
exchanges and the adoption of electronic medical record systems by physicians in consultation with the council
and professional associations.

Finally, the bill requires the OPPAGA to complete an independent evaluation of the grants program
administered by the agency. The report must be provided to the Governor and the Legislature by July 1, 2009.

The bill has an indeterminate fiscal impact on the agency (see fiscal analysis).

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0637.HCC.doc
DATE: 3/21/2008



FULL ANALYSIS
. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. HOUSE PRINCIPLES ANALYSIS:
Provide limited government — the bill creates a loan program to encourage and to provide incentives for
the use of electronic medical records by physicians.

B. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation

Widespread adoption of electronic medical records holds the promise of improving patient safety and
reducing the cost of health care by preventing unnecessary procedures. However, in a recent report,
the National Center for Health Statistics (NCHS) within the United States Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention noted that adoption of information technology within the health care sector is trailing
behind other sectors in the economy of the United States.' The adoption of electronic medical records
(EMRs) by hospitals and physicians has been particularly slow. As part of its annual National Health
Care Survey, NCHS found that, from 2001 through 2003:

* The most frequent IT application used in physician offices was an electronic billing system.
Nearly three-fourths (73 percent) of physicians submitted claims electronically. Electronic
submission of claims was more likely among physicians in the Midwest and South, in
nonmetropolitan areas, among physicians under 50 years of age, and for physicians with 10 or
more managed care contracts. Physicians in medical specialties such as psychiatry,
dermatology, or sports medicine (among others) were least likely to submit claims electronically.

e EMRSs were used more frequently in hospital settings (31 percent in emergency departments)
than in physician offices (17 percent). Among physician office practices, there were no
statistically significant differences in EMR use by region, metropolitan status, specialty,
physician age, type of practice, or number of managed care contracts.

Federal

On April 27, 2004, President George W. Bush issued an Executive Order? in order to encourage the
development of a nationwide interoperable health information technology infrastructure. The Executive
Order directed the Secretary of Health and Human Services to establish within the Office of the
Secretary the position of National Health Information Technology Coordinator. The Office of the
National Coordinator (ONC) is tasked with developing, maintaining, and implementing a strategic plan
to guide the nationwide implementation of interoperable health information technology in both the public
and private health care sectors in order to reduce medical errors, improve quality, and produce greater
value for health care expenditures.

In 2004, President Bush also set the goal for most Americans to have access to an interoperable
electronic medical record by the year 2014. In order to accomplish this goal, the United States _
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) created a “Strategic Framework”,® which outlines the
vision and goals of HHS’ health information technology initiative. The plan of action consists of four
sequential Tain goals; each goal is supported by three major strategies. The four goals are diagramed
in Figure 1.

! C.W. Burt and E. Hing, Use of Computerized Clinical Support Systems in Medical Settings: United States, 2001-03, Advance Data
from Vital and Health Statistics no. 353, March 15, 2005
2 Executive Order: Incentives Jor the Use of Health Information Technology and Establishing the Position of the National Health
Information Technology Coordinator (visited December 4, 2007) hitp://www.whitehouse.gov/news/releases/2004/04/20040427-
4.html
*U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, “Summary of Strategic Framework,” (visited December 13, 2007)
4vvww.hhs.gov/healthit/framework.h’cml.

Id

STORAGE NAME: h0637.HCC.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/21/2008




Federal Strategic Framework

Goal #1: | Goal #3:
Inform - Personalize
Clinicians of Care (via use of a

personal heaith
EHRs HIT record)

Strategic
F
Goal #2: ramework —
Interconnect
Clinicians (via Imprt.:)ve
regional Population
collaboration) Health
Figure 1

The federal government has taken an active role in ensuring the necessary steps are taken to achieve
~ the outlined goals. The ONC awarded multiple contracts in 2005 to entities conducting work in the field
of health information technology (HIT). Project goals included:
 Identifying interoperability standards (such as to facilitate the exchange of patient health data),
through a contract with the Healthcare Information Technology Standards Panel (HITSP).
o Defining a certification process for health IT products, through a contract with the Certification
Commission for Healthcare Information Technology (CCHIT).
¢ Designing and evaluating standards-based prototype architectures for the Nationwide Health
Information Network (NHIN).

State and federal governments are both actively working to set technical interoperability standards,
though for different purposes. Technical interoperability standards are important to state governments
to enable the multiple participating entities to connect to each other, whether through a statewide HIE
or other means. The federal government is pursuing technical interoperability standards to enable
states to communicate with each other through the NHIN. Both state and federal government technical
standards are equally important to overall HIE and should complement each other.

The federal government has also created a program aimed at increasing the adoption of electronic
health records (EHR) among physician practices. The five-year project, which will begin in the spring of
2008, will provide annual bonuses to physician groups using nationally certified EHR systems to meet
clinically qualified measures. During the five year project, it is estimated that 3.6 million consumers will
be directly affected as their primary care physicians adopt certified EHRs in their practices.®

Other States

States across the nation have recognized the potential benefit of HIT and many are moving forward
with HIT efforts. However, states differ in their vision of incorporating HIT into their healthcare system
and the roadmap to achieve their vision. Smaller states are better positioned to create a statewide
health information exchange (HIE), due to the fact that they have smaller, centrally-located populations
and fewer healthcare stakeholders to coordinate, while larger states tend to have a greater number of
stakeholders and a larger, more diverse population.® Regional health information organizations

°U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, “HHS Announces Project to Help 3.6 Million Consumers Reap Benefits of
Electronic Health Records,” October 30, 2007.

§ Avalere Health, “Evolution of State Health Information Exchange, A Study of Vision, Strategy, and Progress, as prepared for the
Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality,” AHRQ Publication No. 06-0057, January 2006, 5.

STORAGE NAME: h0637.HCC.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/21/2008



(RHIOs) across states are many and varied, with minimal inter-RHIO connection. Many states have
multiple RHIOs, but their participants, organization, structure, and activities are as varied as the
communities they represent.”

The state plays a variety of roles in statewide HIE projects across the nation, including:
The main cross-stakeholder facilitator.

A primary driver of the project.

A funding resource.

A data resource.®

Some states have partnered in creating a legal entity, such as a 501(c)(3), to implement a roadmap to
statewide HIE, while others have formed a steering committee, advisory council, or task force to
continue to research the process by which statewide interoperability should be achieved. One
commonality across states is the presence of a statewide advisory body to oversee the process by
which % state reaches interoperability. Figure 2 illustrates the varied level of HIE adoption across the
nation.

State-level HIE Efforts as of October 2007

Bl Early Planning
B Foundational Component
B Early Implementation

[ | Operafing Implementation

Figure 2

For example, the state of Georgia has formed an advisory board to advise the state Department of
Community Health in establishing a statewide strategy that will enable health information to be
available across the full continuum of care."® Georgia also administers a grants program to foster health
information exchange, which awarded $853,088 in grants in 2007."" The state of Minnesota has formed

"Id

$1d at7. _

® American Health Information Management Association’s Foundation of Research and Education, “Building Sustainable Health
Information Exchange: Roles for State Level Public-Private Partnerships,” State-Level HIE Consensus Project, Consensus
Conference, November 5-6, 2007, 15.

1% Executive Order of Georgia Governor Sonny Perdue, October 17, 2006.

" Press release, Georgia Department of Community Health, “Four Georgia Health Partnerships Receive $853,088 in Grants,”

November 5, 2007. .
STORAGE NAME: h0637.HCC.doc PAGE: 4
DATE: 3/21/2008



a public-private collaborative to enhance the statewide HIE infrastructure, which is scheduled to go live
in early 2008."* Minnesota also operates an EHR adoption grant program aimed at supporting the
adoption and use of EHRs by healthcare providers in rural and underserved areas of the state.'®

The state of Kentucky’s roadmap to statewide HIE is very similar to the previously proposed Florida
Health Information Network. The state approved the creation of the Kentucky e-Health Corporation
which is an independent public-private entity responsible for managing the development and operations
of the statewide Kentucky e-Health Network currently under development.

According to the e-Health Initiative, the top sources of upfront funding in the United States for health
information exchange initiatives in 2007 were hospitals (53%), federal government grants and contracts
(44%),1§tate government grants and contracts (43%), private payers (32%), and philanthropic sources
(31%).

Florida
In Florida, the development of a statewide HIE began on May 4, 2004, when Governor Jeb Bush
created the Governor’s Health Information Infrastructure Advisory Board (board) by executive order. *°
The executive order required the board to “advise and support the Agency for Health Care
Administration as it develops and implements a strategy for the adoption and use of electronic health

* records and creates a plan to promote the development and implementation of a Florida health
information infrastructure.” Complementing the Governor’'s Executive Order was the passage of the
2004 Affordable Health Care for Floridians Act, which directed the agency to “develop and implement a
strategy for the adoption and use of electronic health records.”®

The board issued an interim report to Governor Bush in 2005 that called for, among other
recommendations, the immediate development of the Florida Health Information Network (FHIN) in
order to encourage the adoption of electronic health records." The vision for the FHIN is outlined in the
board’s white paper, “Florida Health Information Network, Architectural Considerations for State
Infrastructure”.'® The model outlined by the board relies heavily on the RHIO as the vehicle for
statewide HIE. The FHIN will act as the conductor of health information among healthcare providers
and has two main components: regional HIE (through RHIOs) and a statewide infrastructure that will
connect the RHIOs to enable statewide HIE." The report also recognized two main obstacles facing
the development of the FHIN: the low number of healthcare providers who have adopted electronic
health record systems, and the lack of an infrastructure to share health information effectively.

Over the course of three years, the board and the agency worked together to implement
recommendations related to advancing the adoption and utilization of EHRs and establishing RHIOs
and regional HIE.*® The board published its final report to Governor Charlie Crist on July 6, 2007.%"

2 Press release, Minnesota Office of the Governor, “Minnesota Health Information Exchange to be among largest ‘e-initiatives’ in the
nation,” September 10, 2007.

13 Minnesota Department of Health, “Minnesota e-Health Initiative Funding Opportunities,” http://www.health.state.mn.us/e-
health/funding.html (visited January 5, 2008).

" e-Health Initiative, “Fourth Annual Survey of Health Information Exchange at the State, Regional, and Community Levels,”
December 19, 2007, http://www.chealthinitiative.org/2007HIESurvey/Financing.asp (visited January 5, 2008).

13 Executive Order Number 04-93 (2004), available at http://www.fdhc.state.fl.us/dhit/Board/executive_order.pdf. (visited December
17, 2007).

' Chapter 2004-297, L.O.F., s. 408.062(5), F.S.

' Governor’s Health Information Infrastructure Advisory Board, “First Interim Report to Governor Jeb Bush,”
http://ahca.myflorida.com/dhit/Board/interim_rept_gov.pdf (visited December 17, 2007).

18 Governor’s Health Information Infrastructure Advisory Board, “Florida Health Information Network, Architectural Considerations
for State Infrastructure,” Version 6.2, April 19, 2007.

' Florida Health Policy Center, “Florida’s Health Information Network: What will it cost to develop?,” February 2007,
http://www.floridahealthpolicycenter.org/research/pdfs/FHIN%20brief.pdf (visited December 19, 2007).

% Florida Center for Health Information and Policy Analysis, “Privacy and Security Solutions for Interoperable Health Information

Exchange, Florida Implementation and Impact Report,” December 3, 2007, 4.
STORAGE NAME: h0637.HCC.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 3/21/2008




The report said that the foundation for a statewide network is in place and recommended the following
actions to Governor Crist to implement the FHIN:
¢ Promote and support the continuing development of the state’s local health information
exchanges.
e Establish a new advisory board as soon as possible to guide the direction and development of
the FHIN.
¢ Require action on specific steps to assist in developing the network from Florida Medicaid, the
Department of Health, and the Department of Management Services, and possibly other state
agencies.
¢ Insist on a “bias in favor of action” on this initiative by members of the administration, placing an
emphasis on data exchange operations over the occasional government tendency to conduct
further studies before taking substantive action.

The board was not extended by Executive Order and ceased to operate on June 30, 2007. In January
2008, agency Secretary Andrew Agwunobi appointed a 14-member Health Information Exchange
Coordinating Committee. The committee is organized “to advise and support the agency in developing
and implementing a strategy to establish a privacy-protected, secure and integrated statewide network
for the exchange of electronic health records among authorized physicians.”*

FHIN Grants Program ‘
In 2006, the Legislature authorized the agency to administer a grants program to advance the
development of a health information network. 2 According to the agency, grants are currently awarded
in three categories:*
¢ Assessment and planning grants, which support engaging appropriate healthcare stakeholders
to develop a strategic plan for health information exchange in their communities.
» Operations and evaluation grants, which support projects that demonstrate health information
exchange among two or more competing provider organizations.
e Training and technical assistance grants, which support practitioner training and technical
assistance activities designed to increase physician and dentist use of electronic health record
systems.

From Fiscal Year 2005-2006 through Fiscal Year 2007-2008, a total of $5.5 million has been
appropriated by the legislature to fund the grants program.

Approximately half of the RHIOs that have received state grants are operational in exchanging data
within their region, but on a very limited basis. The scope of the exchange and number of users
participating in the exchange is still relatively small. The remaining RHIOs that have received state
grants are pre-operational and continuing to develop and test various elements of their HIE. The RHIOs
and their aggregate funding levels include:

Big Bend RHIO — $810,422

Central Florida RHIO - $200,000

Community Health Informatics Organization — $222,384

Healthy Ocala — no funding sought

Northeast Florida Health Information Consortium — $406,944

Northwest Florida RHIO — $776,589

Palm Beach County Community Health Alliance — $692,812

South Florida Health Information Initiative — $742,151

Tampa Bay RHIO — $1,043,957

2! Governor’s Health Information Infrastructure Advisory Board, “Final Report of the Governor’s Health Information Infrastructure
Advisory Board,” July 6, 2007, http://ahca.myflorida.com/dhit/Board/Brdmtg63007.pdf (visited December 19, 2007).

22 Agency for Health Care Administration, http://ahca.myflorida.com/dhit/Governance/HIECCIndex.shtml (visited J anuary 21, 2008).
2 Section 408.05(4)(b), F.S.

** Agency for Health Care Administration, “FY 2007-2008 Grants Program Requirements,”

http://ahca.myflorida.com/dhit/FHINgrantsProgram/FGPSched0708.pdf (visited January 21, 2008).
STORAGE NAME: h0637.HCC.doc PAGE: 6

3/21/2008



e Veterans’ Health Information Exchange Network — $70,614

Health Information and Security Privacy Collaboration Project

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) established baseline health care
privacy requirements for protected health information and established security requirements for
electronic protected health information.*® However, many states vary on their application of HIPAA -
some have not adopted policies stronger than HIPAA, while some have adopted policies that are
stronger than HIPAA. The inconsistency in the way in which HIPAA is interpreted and applied and the
differences between state privacy laws and HIPAA have caused great concern amongst those
interested in a nationwide HIE.

RTI, Inc. (RTI), a private, nonprofit corporation, was awarded a contract from HHS in 2005 totaling
$11.5 million. The purpose of the project was to asses variations in organization-level business
practices, policies, and state laws that affect HIE and to identify and propose practical ways to reduce
the variation to those “good” practices that will permit interoperability while preserving the necessary
privacy and security requirements set by the local community.?® RTI sub-contracted with 34 states and
territories to complete the project. The state of Florida was among the sub-contract recipients.

The state teams were required to convene steering committees comprised of both public and private
leaders and work groups with specific charges through which all research and recommendations would
be made.

The project enabled states to engage stakeholders on a local level to identify the barriers to electronic
health information exchange specific to their location. The final report issued by RTI in June of 2007,
‘Assessment of Variation and Analysis of Solutions”, outlines issues that state project teams all
identified as possibly affecting a private and secure nationwide HIE along with possible solutions to the
identified challenges, both at the state and national levels.

Among the challenges identified were: differing interpretations and applications of HIPAA privacy rule
requirements, misunderstandings and differing applications of the HIPAA security rule, trust in the
security of health information exchange, fragmented and conflicting state laws relating to privacy and
security of health information exchange, and disclosure of personal health information. Among the
solutions to the challenges identified by the participating states were: creation of uniform state policy as
it relates to the interpretation and application of the HIPAA rules, consolidation of state statutes related
to health information exchange, creation of national standards for a master patient index or record
locater to accurately match records to the appropriate patient, and education of consumers and
healthcare professionals about federal and state privacy law.?’

With regard to Florida law, the agency’s Privacy and Security Project Legal Work Group identified
several barriers to health information exchange in statutory law, including:
¢ Inconsistent language regarding the disclosure of patient records without consent in the hospital
and physician patient records sections.?®
e Lack of authority for treating physicians to access lab results directly from the clinical lab under
chapter 483, F.S.%°

Effect of Proposed Changes

% The MITRE Corporation, “ONC- NIH Analysis Report to the National Institutes of Health, National Center for Research
Resources,” March 2006, 11.

% Dimitropoulos, Linda L., “Privacy and Security Solutions for Interoperable Health Information Exchange, Assessment of Variation
and Analysis of Solutions,” June 30, 2007, 2-1.

" Id. at ES-5 through ES-8. _

2 Sections 395.3025 and 456.057, F.S., respectively.

% Section 483.181, F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h0637.HCC.doc PAGE: 7
DATE: 3/21/2008



The bill clarifies that a patient’s records held by a hospital may be disclosed without the consent of the
patient, or his or her legal representative, to health care practitioners and providers involved in the care
or treatment of the patient. The bill also clarifies that lab results may be provided by a clinical laboratory
to other health care practitioners and providers involved in the care or treatment of the patient for use in
connection with the treatment of the patient.

The bill creates the “Florida eHealth Initiative Act” to “promote and coordinate the establishment of a
secure, privacy-protected, and interconnected statewide health information exchange.” The bill amends
the agency’s authority to provide grants to RHIOs by requiring:
e Dollar for dollar match of state funds with local or private funds.
e Issuance of grants in three categories: development, operation, and collaboration.
¢ Establishment of specific eligibility criteria to qualify for a grant in each area, including
demonstration of local or private matching dollars and policies and procedures to protect the
privacy and security of electronic medical records.

The bill requires grants to be awarded in consultation with the Florida Health Information Exchange
Advisory Council. The agency is prohibited from awarding a grant to a recipient for more than 2 years
within each grant category (i.e., a total of 6 years of funding is available).

The bill creates an Electronic Medical Records System Adoption Loan Program. The agency is required
to provide one-time, no-interest loans to physicians or business entities whose shareholders are
physicians for the initial costs of implementing an electronic medical records system. The agency is
prohibited from providing a loan to an applicant who has:
e Been found guilty of violating s. 456.072(1) or been disciplined under the applicable licensing
chapter in the previous 5 years.
e Been found guilty of or entered a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to a violation of ss. 409.920
or 409.9201, F.S. (Medicaid fraud).
e Been sanctioned pursuant to s. 409.913 for fraud or abuse (Medicaid fraud).

The agency is authorized to distribute the loan in a lump-sum amount, and the loan proceeds may be
used to purchase hardware and software, as well as subscription services, professional consultations,
and staff training. The agency is required to provide loan recipients a list of electronic medical record
systems recognized or certified by national standards-setting entities. The agency is further required to
distribute a minimum of 25 percent of loan funds to physicians or business entities operating within a
rural county. The loan must be repaid within 6 years and payments must commence within 3 months of
the funding of the loan.

The physician or business entity must further provide the following security for the loan:
e Anirrevocable letter of credit in an amount equal to the amount of the loan;
¢ An escrow account in an amount equal to the amount of the loan; or
* A pledge of the accounts receivable of the physician or business entity.

If a physician or business entity defaults, and the default continues for 30 days, the entire balance of
the loan becomes due and payable, subject to an interest rate of 18 percent annually.

The bill creates the Florida Health Information Exchange Advisory Council adjunct to the agency. The
stated purpose of the council is to promote participation in health information exchanges, conduct
outreach to inform stakeholders of the benefits of using a health information exchange, and provide
guidance to stakeholders regarding the effective use of health information exchanges and standards for
protecting the privacy and security of electronic medical records.

The council is composed of 12 members:
e The Secretary of the agency, or his or her designee.
e The State Surgeon General, or his or her designee.

STORAGE NAME: h0637.HCC.doc PAGE: 8
DATE: 3/21/2008



e Two members appointed by and serving at the pleasure of the Governor:
o A person from the health insurance industry.
o A consumer who is a resident of the state.
e Four members appointed by and serving at the pleasure of the President o the Senate:
o A person from a public hospital utilizing an electronic medical records system.
o A physician utilizing an electronic medical records system in his or her practice.
o A representative of an operating health information organization in the state.
o A person from a federally-qualified health center or other rural health organization
utilizing an electronic medical records system.
e Four members appointed by and serving at the pleasure of the Speaker of the House of
Representatives:
A person from a public hospital utilizing an electronic medical records system.
o A physician utilizing an electronic medical records system in his or her practice.
o A representative of an operating health information organization in the state.
o A person from a federally-qualified health center or other rural health organization
utilizing an electronic medical records system.

o]

Members serve for a term of 4 years. The council must meet at least quarterly and may be held via
teleconference or other electronic means. :

The duties of the council include developing recommendations to:

Establish standards for all state-funded health information exchange efforts.
Remove barriers that limit participation by health care providers and facilities and health
insurers in health information exchanges.
Remove barriers that prevent consumers from accessing their electronic medical records.
Provide incentives to promote participation by health care providers and facilities and health
insurers in health information exchanges.

o |dentify health care data held by state agencies and remove barriers to making that data
available to authorized recipients through health information exchanges.

¢ Increase state agency participation in health information exchanges.
Partner with other state, regional, and federal entities to promote and coordinate health
information exchange efforts.

¢ Create a long-term plan for an interoperable statewide network of health information
organizations.

The council is required, beginning July 1, 2009, to annual provide a report to the Governor and the
Legislature recommendations regarding the council’s duties described above. In addition, the council
must, by July 1, 2012, recommend a long-term plan to create an interoperable statewide network of
health information organizations to the Governor and the Legislature.

The council is repealed effective July 1, 2012.

The bill requires the agency to maintain on its internet website information regarding:
¢ Federal and private sector health information exchange funding programs. ,
e A clearinghouse of state and national legislative, regulatory, and public awareness activities
related to health information exchanges.

In addition, the agency is required to develop and implement a plan to promote participation in health
information exchanges and the adoption of electronic medical record systems by physicians in
consultation with the council and professional associations.

Finally, the bill requires the Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability
(OPPAGA) to complete and independent evaluation of the grants program administered by the agency,
including assessments of the distribution process, the spending of grant dollars, the level of

STORAGE NAME: h0637.HCC.doc PAGE: 9
DATE: 3/21/2008



participation by entities within each grantee’s project; the extent of clinical data exchange among
entities within each grantee’s project; the sources of funding for each grantee; and the feasibility of
each grantee achieving long-term sustainability without state funding. The report must be provided to
the Governor and the Legislature by July 1, 2009.

C. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Amends s. 395.3025, F.S, relating to patient and personnel records.

Section 2. Amends s. 408.05, F.S., relating to the Florida Center for Health Information and Policy
Analysis.

Section 3. Creates s. 408.051, F.S., relating to the Florida eHealth Initiative Act.
Section 4. Amends s. 408.062, relating to research, analyses, studies, and reports.

Section 5. Amends s. 483.181, relating to acceptance, collection, identification, and examination of
specimens.

Il. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:
None

2. Expenditures:

The agency has requested four positions to review and process loan applications, monitor loan
repayments, and conduct outreach activities. According to the agency, the bill will have a $380,981
fiscal impact on the agency in Fiscal Year 2008-09 and $282,861 in Fiscal Year 2009-10, apart from
funding for the loan program. '

Healthcare Council staff believes that the fiscal impact of the bill is indeterminate, as it is not clear
that four positions are justified in light of the unknown, but likely small, number of applications and
loan recipients. :

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:
None

2. Expenditures:
None

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

The bill will provide one-time, no-interest loans to physicians or business entities whose shareholders
are physicians for the initial costs of implementing an electronic medical records system.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

STORAGE NAME: h0637.HCC.doc PAGE: 10
DATE: 3/21/2008



None.

lll. COMMENTS
A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:
1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:
This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or take action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenues.
2. Other:
None.
B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:
The agency is provided rulemaking authority to implement the provisions of this bill.
C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:
None.
D. STATEMENT OF THE SPONSOR
While all other sectors of our economy have reaped the enormous benefits of information technology,
the healthcare sector is lagging behind. Healthcare needs an injection of transformative information
technology solutions like electronic medical records to revolutionize the delivery and quality of patient
care.
IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL SUBSTITUTE CHANGES
STORAGE NAME: h0637.HCC.doc PAGE: 11

DATE:

3/21/2008






FLORTIDA H O U S E O F R EPRESENTATIVES

HB 637 : 2008

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to electronic health records; amending s.
3 395.3025, F.S.; expanding access to a patient's medical

4 records to facilitate electronic exchange of data between
5 certain health care facilities, practitioners, and

6 providers and attending physicians; revising terminology

7 regarding disclosure of patient records to conform to

8 changes made by the act; amending s. 408.05, ‘F.S.;

9 removing responsibility of the Agency for Health Care

10 Administration for monitoring certain grants and health

11 care data; creating s. 408.051, F.S.; creating the

12 "Florida eHealth Initiative Act"; providing legislative

13 intent; providing definitions; requiring the agency to

14 award and monitor grants to certain health information

15 organizations; providing rulemaking authority regarding’
16 establishment of eligibility criteria; establishing the

17 Electronic Medical Records System Adoption Loan Program;
18 providing eligibility criteria; providing rulemaking

19 authority regarding terms and conditions for the granting
20 of loans; creating the Florida Health Information Exchange
21 Advisory Council; providing for purpose, membership, terms
22 of office, and duties of the council; requiring the
23 Florida Center for Health Information and Policy Analysis
24 to provide staff support; requiring reports to the
25 Governor and Legislature; providing for future repeal of
26 s. 408.051, F.S., and abolition of the council; providing
27 duties of the agency With regard to availability of
28 specified information on the agency's Internet website;

Page 1 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



FLORIDA HOUSE O F REPRESENTATIVE S

HB 637 ' 2008

29 requiring the agency to develop and implement a plan to

30 promote participation in regional and statewide health

31 information exchanges; requiring the Office of Program

32 Policy Analysis and Government Accountability to complete

33 an independent evaluation of the grants program

34 administered by the agency and submit the report to the

35 Governor and Legislature; amending s. 408.062, F.S.;

36 removing responsibility of the agency for developing an
37 electronic health information network; amending s.

38 483.181, F.S.; ekpanding access tb laboratory reports to

39 facilitate electronic exchange of data between certain

40 health care practitioners and providers; providing an

41 effective date.

42
43| Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:
44
45 Section 1. Paragraphs (a), (e), and (f) of subsection (4)
46| of section 395.3025, Florida S;atutes, are amended to read:

47 395.3025 Patient and personnel records; copies;

48| examination.--

49 (4)  Patient records are confidential and must not be

50| disclosed without the consent of the patient or his or her legal

51| representative persen—te—whemthey pertain, but appropriate

52| disclosure may be made without such consent to:

53 (a) Licensed facility personnel, amd attending physicians,

54| or other health care practitioners and providers involved in the

55| care or treatment of the patient for use in connection with the

56| treatment of the patient.

Page 2 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 637 2008

57 (e) The department agermey upon subpoena issued pursuant to
58] s. 456.071, but the records obtained thereby must be used solely
59| for the purpose of the department agemey and the appropriate

60| professional board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal
61| of disciplinary proceedings. If the department agemney requests
62| copies of the records, the facility shall charge no more than

63| its actual copying costs, including reasonable staff time. The
64| records must be sealed and must not be available to the public
65| pursuant to s. 119.07(1) or any other statute providing access
66| to records, nor may they be.available to the public as part of
67| the record of investigation for and prosecution in disciplinary
68| proceedings made available to the public by the department

69| agemey or the appropriate regulatory board. However, the

70| department ageamey must make available, upon written request by a
71| practitioner against whom probable cause has been found, any

72| such records that form the basis of the determination of

73| probable cause.

74 () The department efHealth or its agent, for the purpose
75| of establishing and maintaining a trauma registry and for the

76| purpose of ensuring that hospitals and trauma centers are in

77| compliance with the standards énd rules established under ss.

78 395.401, 395.4015, 385.4025, 395.404, 395.4045, and 395.405, and
79 for the purpose of monitoring patient outcome at hospitals and
80| trauma centers ﬁhat provide trauma care services.

81 Section 2. Subsection (4) of section 408.05, Florida

82| Statutes, is amended to read:

83 408.05 Florida Center for Health Information and Policy

84| Analysis.--
Page 3 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 637 2008

85 (4) TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE.--

86 4&3> The center shall provide technical assistance to

87| persons or organizations engaged in health planning activities
88| 1in the effective use of statistics collected and compiled by the
89| center. The center shall also provide the following additional
90 téchnical assistance services:

91 (a) 3~ Establish procedures identifying the circumstances
92| wunder which, the places'at which, the persons from whom, and the
93| methods by whiéh a person may secure data from the center,

94| including procedures governing requests, the ordering of

95| requests, timeframes for handling requests, and other procedurés
96| mnecessary to facilitate the use of the center's data. To the

97| extent possible, the center should provide current data timely
98| in response to requests from pubiic or private agencies.

99 (b)2+ Provide assistance to data sources and users in the
100| areas of database design, survey design, sampling procedures,
101| statistical interpretation, and data access to promote improved
102| health-care-related data sets. (

103 (c) 3~ Identify health care data gaps and provide technical
104| assistance to other public or private organizations for meeting
105| documented health care data needs.

106 (d)4~ Assist other organizations in developing statistical

107| abstracts of their data sets that could be used by the center.

108 (e)5+~ Provide statistical support to state agencies with

109| regard to the use of databases maintained by the center.

110 (f)6+ To the extent possible, respond to multiple requests
111} for information not currently collected by the center or l
112| available from other sources by initiating data collection.

Page 4 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
: hb0637-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVE S

HB 637 2008

113 (g)%= Maintain detailed information on data maintained by
114| other local, state, federal, and private agencies in order to
115| advise those who use the center of potential sources of data

116| which are regquested but which are not available from the center.
117 (h)8+ Respond to requests for data which are not available
118 in published form by initiating special computer runs on data
119| sets availlable to the center.

120 (i)9~ Monitor innovations in health information

121| technology, informatics, and the exchange of health information
122 and maintain a repository'of technical resources to support the
123| development of a health information exchange network.

l24y
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135

136 Section 3. Section 408.051, Florida Statutes, is created
137 to read: ‘
138 408.051 Florida eHealth Initiative Act.--

139 (1) SHORT TITLE.--This section may be cited as the

140 "Florida eHealth Initiative Act."
Page 5 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



FL ORIDA H O U 8 E O F R EPRESENTATI VES

HB 637 ’ 2008

141 (2) LEGISLATIVE INTENT.--The Legislature recognizes that

142} the exchange of electronic medical records will benefit

143| consumers by increasing the quality and efficiency of health

144| care throughout the state. It is the intent of the Legislature

145| that the state promote and coordinate the establishment of a

146| secure, privacy-protected, and interconnected statewide health

147| information exchange.

148 (3) DEFINITIONS.--As used in this section, the term:

149 (a) "Electronic medical record" means a record of a

150| person's medical treatment created by a licensed health care

151| provider and stored in an interoperable and accessible digital

152 format.

153 (b) "Electronic medical record system" means an

154| application environment composed of at least two of the

155| following systems: a clinical data repository; clinical decision

156| support; controlled medical vocabulary; computerized provider

157| order entry; pharmacy; or clinical documentation. The

158| application must be used by health care practitioners to

159| document, monitor, and manage health care delivery within a

160; health care delivery system and must be capable of

161 interoperability within a health information exchange.

162 (¢) "Health information exchange" means an electronic

163| system used to acquire, process, and transmit electronic medical

164| records that can be shared in real time among authorized health

165 care providerg, health care facilities, health insurers, and

166| other recipients, as authorized by law, to facilitate the

167| provision of health care services.

Page 6 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



F L ORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIHIVES

HB 637 2008

168| (d) "Health information organization" means an entity with

169| a formal structure and established policies and procedures that

170 serves as a neutral convener of local stakeholders to enable the

171| secure and reliable exchange of electronic medical records among

172 authorized health care stakeholders within a defined geographic

173 region to facilitate improvements in health care quality,

174| safety, and coordination of care.

175 (4) MATCHING GRANTS.--

176 " (a) Subject to a specific appropriation, the agency shall

177 award and monitor matching grants to health information

178| organizations that submit proposals that advance the development

179| of a statewide health information exchange. Funds awarded under

180| this subsection shall be awarded on the basis of matching each

181 $1 of state funds with $1 of local or private funds. Local or

182| private funds may be provided in the form of cash or in-kind

183| support or services. Grants may be awarded within the following

184| categories: development, operation, and collaboration.

185 (b) The agency shall, by rule, establish specific

186| eligibility criteria for a health information organization to

187| gqualify for a grant under this subsection. These criteria shall

188| include, at a minimum, documentation of the following:

189 1. For development grants, the proposed organizational

190] structure, the level of community support, including a list of

191| key participants, a demonstration of available local or private

192| matching funds, a timeline for development of the health

193| information exchange, and proposed goals and metrics.

194 2. For operation grants, a demonstration of available

195| local or private matching funds and a detailed business plan,
Page 7 0f 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 637 , 2008

196| which shall include a timeline for implementation of the health

197| information exchange, policies and procedures to protect the

198 privacy and security of electronic medical records, and proposed

199| goals and metrics.

200 3. For collaboration grants, a demonstration of available

201| local or private matching funds, memoranda of understanding

202| between at least two health information organizations for the

203 exchange of electronic medical records, a demonstration of

204| consistent utilization of the health information exchange by

205| members within each participating health information

206| organization, and a detailed business plan, which shall include

207| a timeline for the impiementation of the exchange of electronic

208| medical records between participating health information

209{ organizations, policies and procedures to protect the privacy

210| and security of electronic medical records, and proposed goals

211 and metrics.

212 (c) Beginning July 1, 2008, the agency shall not award a

213| health information organization more than 2 years of funding

214| within each grant category.

215 (d) The agency shall award grants in consultation with the

216| Florida Health Information Exchange Advisory Council.

217 (5) ELECTRONIC MEDICAL RECORDS SYSTEM ADOPTION LOAN

218 PROGRAM. -~

219 - (a) There is created an Electronic Medical Records System

220| Adoption Loan Program within the agency for the purpose of

221| providing a one-time, no-interest loan to eligible physicians

222| licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 459 or to an eligible

223| business entity whose shareholders are licensed under chapter
Page 8 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



FLORTIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 637 2008

224| 458 or chapter 459 for the initial costs of implementing an

225| electronic medical records system.

226 (b) In order to be eligible for a loan under this

227| subsection, each physician must demonstrate that he or she has

228| practiced continuously within the state for the previous 3

229| vyears.
230 (¢) The agency shall not provide a loan to a physician who

231| has or a business entity whose physician has:

232 1. Been found guilty of violating s. 456.072(1) or been

'233| disciplined under the applicable licensing chapter in the

234| previous 5 years.

235 2. Been found guilty of or entered a plea of guilty or

236 nolo contendere to‘a violation of 8. 409.920 or s. 409.9201.

237 3. Been sanctioned pursuant to s. 409.913 for fraud or

238 abuse.

239 (d) A loan may be provided to an eligible physician or

240| business entity in a lump-sum amount to pay for the costs of

241| purchasing hardware and software, subscription services,

242| professional consultation, and staff training. The agency shall

243| provide guidance to loan recipients by providing, at a minimum,

244| a list of electronic medical record systems recognized or

245 certified by national standards-setting entities as capable of

246| being used to communicate with a health information exchange.

247 (e) The agency shall distribute a minimum of 25 percent of

248| funds appropriated to this program to physicians or business

249| entities operating within a rural county as defined in s.

250 288.106(1) (r).

251 (f) The agency shall, by rule, develop standard terms and
Page 9 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



F L ORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 637 2008

252| conditions for use in this program. At a minimum, these terms

253| and conditions shall require:

254 1. TLoan repayment by the physician or business entity

255| within a reasonable period of time, which may not be longer than

256| 72 months after the funding of the loan.

257 2. Equal periodic payments that commence within 3 months

258| after the funding of the loan.

259 3. The eligible physician or business entity to execute a

260| promissory note and a security agreement in favor of the state.

261| The security agreement shall be a purchase—mbney security

262| interest pledging as collateral for the loan the specific

263| hardware and software purchased with the loan proceeds. The

264| agency shall prepare and record a financing statement under

265| chapter 679. The physician or business entity shall be

266| responsible for paying the cost of recording the financing

267 statement. The security agreement shall further require that the

268| physician or business entity pay all collection costs, including

269| attorney's fees.

270 (g) The agency shall further require the physician or

271| business entity to provide additional security under one of the

272| following subparagraphs:

273 1. An irrevocable letter of credit, as defined in chapter

274| 675, in an amount equal to the amount of the loan.

275 2. An escrow account consisting of cash or assets eligible

276| for deposit in accordance with s. 625.52 in an amount equal to

277| the amount of the loan. If the escrow agent is responsible for

278| making the periodic payments on the loan, the required escrow

279| balance may be diminished as payments are made.
Page 10 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 637 2008

280 3. A pledge of the accounts receivables of the physician

281| or business entity. Thisg pledge shall be reflected on the

282| financing statement.

283 (h) All payments received from or on behalf of a physician

284| or business entity under this program shall be deposited into

285| the agency's Administrative Trust Fund to be used to fund new
286| loans. |

287 (1) If a physician or business entity that has received a

288, loan under this section ceases to provide care or services to

289| patients, or if the physician or business entity defaults in any

290| payment and the default continues for 30 days, the entire loan

291| balance shall be immediately due and payable and shall bear

292| interest from that point forward at the rate of 18 percent

293 annually. Upon default, the agency may offset any moneys owed to

294| the physician or business entity from the state and apply the

295| offset against the outstanding balance.

296 (j) If a physician defaults in any payment and if the

297 default_continues for 30 days, the default shall constitute

298| grounds for disciplinary action under chapter 458 or chapter 459

299| and s. 456.072(1) (k).

300 (6) FLORIDA HEALTH INFORMATION EXCHANGE ADVISORY

301 COUNCIL. -~
302 (a) The Florida Health Information Exchange Advisory

303| Council is created as an adjunct to the agency. The council is

304| subject to the requirements of s. 20.052, except that only state

305| officers and employees shall be reimbursed for per diem and

306| travel expenses pursuant -to s. 112.061.

307 (b) The purpose of the council is to:
Page 11 0f 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
: hb0637-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 637 2008

308 1. Promote participation in regional and statewide health

309| information exchanges and adoption of health information

310| technology to support the infrastructure capacity for regiomnal

311| and statewide health information exchanges.

312 2. Conduct outreach and convene forums to educate

313 stakeholders regarding the benefits of utilizing a health

314| information exchange.

315 3. Provide guidance to stakeholders regarding the

316| effective use of health information exchanges and standards for

317| protecting the privacy and security of electronic medical

318 records.

319 (c¢) The council shall consist of the following members:

320 1. The Secretary of Health Care Administration, or his or

321 her'designee.

322 2. The State Surgeon General, or his or her designee.

323 3. Two members appointed by and serving at the pleasure of

324 the Governor, of which:

325 a. One member must be from the health insurance industry.

326 ' b. One member must be a consumer who is a resident of the

327 state.

328 4. Four members appointed by and serving at the pleasure

329 of the President of the Senate, of which:

330 a. One member must be from a public hospital utilizing an

331| electronic medical records system.

332 b. One member must be a physician utilizing an electronic

333| medical records system in his or her practice.

334 c. One member must be a representative of an operating

335{ health information organization in the state.
' Page 12 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F R EPRESENTATI VES

HB 637 2008

336 d. One member must be from a federally qualified health

337| center or other rural health organization utilizing an

338 electronic medical records system.

339 5. Four members app01nted by and serving at the pleasgure

340| of the Speaker of the House of Representatives, of which:

341 a. One member must be from a public hospital utilizing an

342 electronic medical records system

343 -b. One member must be a phy81c1an utilizing an electronic

344| medical records system in his or her practice.

345 C. One member must be a representative of an operating

346| health information organization in the state.

347 d. One member must be from a federally qualified health

348| center or other rural health organization utilizing an

349| electronic medical records system.

350 (d) A member who is a representative of an operating

351| health information organization in the state must recuse himself

352 or herself during discussion, evaluation, or recommendation of a

353 grant application.

354 (e) Fach member of the council subject to appointment

355| shall be appointed to serve for a term of 4 years following the

356| date of appointment. A vacancy shall be filled by appointment

357 for the remainder of the term. Appointments shall be made within

358| 45 days after the effective date of this section.

359 (f) The council may meet at the call of the chair or at

360| the request of a majority of its membership, but the council

361l| must meet at least quarterly. Meetings of the council may be

362 held via teleconference or other electronic means.

363 (g) Members shall elect a chair and vice chair annually.
Page 13 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



FLORIDA H O U S E 0o F REPREG SENTATIVES

HB 637 ’ 2008

364 (h) A majority of the members constitutes a quorum and the

365| affirmative vote of a majority of a quorum is necessary to take

366 action.

367 (i) The council's duties and responsibilities include, but

368| are not limited to, developing recommendations to:

369 1. Establish standards for all state-funded health

370| information exchange efforts. Such standards shall include, but

371} are not limited to, policies and procedures to protect the

-372| privacy and security of electronic medical records.

373 2. Remove barriers, including, but not limited to,

374| technological, regulatory, and financial barriers, that limit

375| participation by health care providers, health care facilities,

376| and health insurers in a health information exchange.

377 3. Remove barriers that prevent consumers from having

378 access to their electronic medical records.

379 4. Provide incentives to promote participation by health

380 care providers, health care facilities, and health insurers in

381| health information exchanges.

382 5. 1Identify health care data held by state agencies and

383| remove barriers to making that data available to authorized

384| recipients through health information exchanges in a private and

385 secure manner.

386 6. Increage state agency participation in health

387| information exchanges.

388 - 7. Partner with other state, regional, and federal

389| entities to promote and coordinate health information exchange

390 efforts.

Page 14 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 637 ' 2008

391 8. Create a long-term plan for an interoperable statewide

392| network of health information organizations.

393

394 The council shall establish ad hoc issue-oriented technical

-395| workgroups on an as-needed basis to make recommendations to the

396 council.

397 (j) The Florida Center for Health Information and Policy

398| Analysis within the agency shall provide, within existing

399 reéources, staff support to enable the council to carry out its

400| responsibilities under this section.

401 (k) Beginning July 1, 2009, the council shall annually

402| provide a report to the Governor, the President of the Senate,

403| the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the chairs of

404| the appropriate substantive committees of the Senate and the

405| House of Representatives that includes, but is not limited to,

406| the recommendations regarding the council's duties and

407| responsibilities. In addition, by July 1, 2012, the council

408| shall recommend a long-term plan to create an interoperable

409| statewide network of health information organizations to the

410| Governor, the President of the Senate, the Speaker of the House

411| of Representatives, and the chairs of the appropriate

412 substantive committees of the Senate and the House of

.413| Representatives.

414 (1) - This section is repealed and the council shall stand

415| abolished July 1, 2012, unless reviewed and saved from repeal

416| through reenactment by the Legislature.

417 (7) AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION; DUTIES.--

Page 15 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



F L ORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 637 2008

418 (a) The agency shall develop and maintain on its Internet

419| website the following information:

420 1. Federal and private sector health information exchange

421| funding programs, including analyses of successful local and

422 state recipients of the programs, as well as unsuccessful local

423| and state applicants of the programs.

424 2. A clearinghouse of state and national legislative,

425| regulatory, and public awareness activities related to health

426| information exchanges.

427 , (b) The agency shall develop and implement a plan that

428| promotes, at a minimum, participation in regional and statewide

429| health information exchanges and the adoption of electronic

430| medical record systems by physicians through the Electronic

431| Medical Records System Adoption Loan Program, in consultation

432| with the Florida Health Information Exchange Advisory Council,

433| organizations representing allopathic and osteopathic practicing

434| physicians, the Board of Medicine, and the Board of Osteopathic

435 Medicine.

436 (8) PROGRAM EVALUATION; REPORT.--The Office of Program

437| Policy Analysis and Government Accountability shall complete an

438| independent evaluation of the grants program administered by the

439| agency. The evaluation must include, at a minimum, assessments

440| of the grant evaluation and distribution process; the way in

441| which grant dollars are spent; the level of participation by

442| entities within each grantee's project; the extent of clinical

443| data exchange among entities within each grantee's project; the

444| sources of funding for each grantee; and the feasibility of each

445| grantee achieving long-term sustainability without state grant
Page 16 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F R EPRESENTATIVES

HB 637 2008

446| funding. The evaluation must assess the level at which the

447| current grants program is advancing the development of a

448| statewide health information exchange and recommend other

449| programs that may accomplish the same goal. The report shall be
450| submitted to the Governor, the President of the Senate, the

451| Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the chairs of the

452 relevant committees in the Senate and the House of

453| Representatives no later than July 1, 2009.

454 Section 4. Subsection (5) of section 408.062, Florida
455| Statutes, is amended to read:

456 ‘ 408.062 Research, anal?ses, studies, and reports:-—
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467

468 Section 5. Subsection (2) of section 483.181, Florida

469| Statutes, is amended to read:

470 483.181 Acceptance, collection, identificétion, and

471 examination of specimens.--

472 (2) The results of a test must be reported directly to the

473| licensed practitioner or other authorized person who requested
Page 17 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



FL ORIDA H O U S E O F REPREGSENTATIVE S8

474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482

HB 637 2008

it, and appropriate disclosure may be made by the clinical

laboratory without a patient's consent to other health care

practitioners and providers involved in the care or treatment of

the patient for use in connection with the treatment of the

patient. The report must include the name and address of the
clinical laboratory in which the test was actually performed,
unless the test was performed in a hospital laboratory and the
report becomes an integral part of the hospital record.

Section 6. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

Page 18 of 18

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0637-00



w 0 3 & U1 B W N R

N NN KB KHE R R B R R R
N H O VW ® 9 0 U A W N R O

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)
Bill No. 637
COUNCTL/COMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED _ (¥y/N)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _ (Y/N)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _ (Y/N)
WITHDRAWN (Y/N)

OTHER

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Representative Grimsley offered the following:

Amendment (with title amendment)

Remove everything after the enacting clause and insert:

Section 1. Paragraphs (a), (e), and (f) of subsection (4)
of section 395.3025, Florida Stafutes, are amended to read:

395.3025 Patient and personnel records; copies;
examination. --

(4) Patient records are confidential and must not be
disclosed without the consent of the patient or his or her legal

representative person—te—whom—they pertain, but appropriate

disclosure may be made without such consent to:

(a) Licensed facility personnel, and attending physicians,

or other health care practitioners and providers currently

involved in the care or treatment of the patient for use only in

connection with the treatment of the patient.

(e) The department agemey upon subpoena issued pursuant to

S. 456.071, but the records obtained thereby must be used solely
for the purpose of the department agerey and the appropriate

professional board in its investigation, prosecution, and appeal

of disciplinary proceedings. If the department agemey requests

Page 1 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43

44|

45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)
copies of the records, the facility shall charge no more than
its actual copyihg costs, including reasonable staff time. The
records must be sealed and must not be available to the public
pursuant to s; 119.07(1) or any other statute providing access
to records, nor may they be avéilable to the public as part of

the record of investigation for and prosecution in disciplinary

proceedings made available to the public by the department
ageney or the appropriate regulatory board. However, the
department agemey must make available, upon written request by a

practitioner against whom probable cause has been found, any
such records that form the basis of the determination of
probable cause. _

(£) The department efHealth or its agent, for the purpose
of establishing and maintaining a trauma registry and for the
purpose of ensuring that hospitals and trauma centers are in
compliance with the standards and rules established under ss.
395.401, 395.4015, 395.4025, 395.404, 395.4045, and 395.405, and
for the purpose of monitoring patient outcome at hospitals and
trauma centers that provide trauma care services.

Section 2. Subsection (4) of section 408.05; Florida
Statutes, is amended to read:

408.05 Florida Center for Health Information and Policy
Analysis.--

(4) TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE.--

42> The center shall provide technical assistance to
persons or organizations engaged in health planning activities
in the effective use of statistics collected and compiled by the
center. The center shall also provide the following additional
technical assistance services:

(a)3+ Establish procedures identifying the circumstances

under which, the places at which, the persons from whom, and the

Page 2 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)
methods by which a person may secure data from the center,
including procedures governing requests, the ordering of
requests, timeframes for handling requests, and other procedures
necessary to facilitate the use of the center's data. To the
extent possible, the center should provide current data timely
in response to requests from public or private agencies.

- {b)2+= Provide assistance to data sources and users in the
areas of database design, survey design, sampling procedures,
statistical interpretation, and data access to promote improved
health-care-related data sets.

{¢)3+ 1Identify health care data gaps and provide technical
assistance to other public or private organizations for meeting
documented health care data needs.

(d) 4~ Assist other organizations in developing statistical
abstracts of their data sets that could be used by the center.

{(e)5~ Provide statistical support to state agencies with
regard to the use of‘databases maintained by the center.

{f)6+ To the extent possible, respond to multiple requests
for information not currently collected by the center or
available from other sources by initiating data collection.

{g)#+ Maintain detailed information on data maintained by
other local, state, federal, and private agencies in order to
advise those who use‘the center of potential sources of data
which are requested but which are not available from the center.

(h)8+= Respond to requests for data which are not available
in published form.by initiating special computer runs on data
sets available to the center.

{(i)9+= Monitor innovations in health information
technology, informatics, and the exchangé of health information
and maintain a repository of technical resources to support the

development of a statewide health information exchange metwexk.

Page 3 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES

Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)

(c) The agency shall initiate, oversee, manage, and

evaluate the integration of health care data from each state
agency that collects, stores, and reports on health care issues
and make that data available to any health care practitioner
through a statewide health information exchange netwoxk.

Section 3. Section 408.051, Florida Statutes, is created
to read:

408.051 Florida eHealth Initiative Act.--

(1) SHORT TITLE.--This section mav be cited as the

"Florida eHealth Initiative Act."

(2) LEGISLATIVE INTENT.--The Legislature recognizes that

the exchange of electronic medical records will benefit

consumers by increasing the quality and efficiency of health

care throughout the state. It is the intent of the Legislature

that the state promote and coordinate the establishment of a

secure, privacyv-protected, and interconnected statewide health

information exchange.

(3) DEFINITIONS.--As used in this section, the term:

(a) "Electronic medical record" means a record of a

person's medical treatment created by a licensed health care

provider and stored in an interoperable and accessible digital
format.

(b) "Electronic medical records syvstem" means an

application environment composed of at least two of the

Page 4 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)

following systems: a clinical data repository; clinical decision

support; controlled medical vocabulary; computerized provider

order entry; pharmacy; or clinical documentation. The

application must be used by health care practitioners to

document, monitor, and manage health care delivery within a

health care delivery system and must be capable of

interoperability within a health information exchange.

() "Health information exchange" means an electronic

system used to acquire, process, and transmit electronic medical

records that can be shared in real time among authorized health

care providers, health care facilities, health insurers, and

other recipients, as authorized by law, to facilitate the

provision of health care services.

(d) "Health information organization" means an entity with

a formal structure and established policies and procedures that

serves as a neutral convener of local stakeholders to enable the

secure and reliable exchange of electronic medical records among

authorized health care stakeholders within a defined geographic

region to facilitate improvements in health care quality,

safety, and coordination of care.

(4) MATCHING GRANTS.--

(a) Subject to a specific appropriation, the agency shall

award and monitor matching grants to health information

organizations that submit proposals that advance the development

of a statewide health information exchange. Funds awarded under

this subsection shall be awarded on the basis of matching each

S1 of state funds with $1 of local or private funds. Local or

private funds may be provided in the form of cash or in-kind

support or services. Grants may be awarded within the following

categories: development, operation, and collaboration.

Page 5 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
le62
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)

(b) The agency shall, by rule, establish specific

eligibility criteria for a health information organization to

qualify for a grant under this subsection. These criteria shall

include, at a minimum, documentation of the following:

1. For development grants, the proposed organizational

structure, the level of community support, including a list of

key participants, a demonstration of available local or private

matching funds, a timeline for development of the health

information exchange, and proposed goals and metrics.

2. For operation grants, a demonstration of available

local or private matching funds and a detailed business plan,

which shall include a timeline for implementation of the health

information exchange, policies and procedures to protect the

privacy and security of electronic medical records, and proposed

goals and metrics.

3.. For collaboration grants, a demonstration of available

local or private matching funds, memoranda of understanding

between at least two health information organizations for the

exchange of electronic medical records, a demonstration of

consistent utilization of the health information exchange by

members within each participating health information

organization, and a detailed business plan, which shall include

a timeline for the implementation of the exchange of electronic

medical records between participating health information

organizations, policieg and procedures to protect the privacy

and security of electronic medical records, and proposed goals

and metrics.

(c) Beginning July 1, 2008, the‘aqencv shall not award a

health information organization more than 6 aggregate vears of

funding.

Page 6 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




176
177
178
179
180
181

182,

183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)

(d) The agency shall award grants in consultation with the

Florida Health Information Exchange Advisory Council.

(5) ELECTRONIC MEDICAL RECORDS SYSTEM ADOPTION LOAN

PROGRAM. - -

(a) Subject to a specific appropriation, the agency shall

operate an Electronic Medical Records System Adoption Loan

Program for the purpose of providing a one-time, no-interest

loan to eligible physicians licensed under chapter 458 or

chapter 459 or to an eligible business entity whose shareholders

are licensed under chapter 458 or chapter 459 for the initial

costs of implementing an electronic medical records svystem.

(b) TIn order to be eligible for a loan under this

subsection, each physician must demonstrate that he or she has

practiced continuously within the state for the previous 3

years.

(¢) The agency shall not provide a loan to a physician who

has or a business entity whose phvsician has:

1. Been found gquilty of violating s. 456.072(1) or been

disciplined’under the applicable licensing chapter in the

previous 5 vears.

2. Been found quilty of or entered a plea of gquilty or

nolo contendere to a violation of g. 409.920 or s. 409.9201.

3. Been sanctioned pursuant to s. 409.913 for fraud or

S

abuse.

(d) A loan may be provided to an eligible physician or

business entity in a lump-sum amount to pay for the costs of

purchasing hardware and software, subscription services,

professional consultation, and staff training. The agency shall

provide guidance to loan recipients by providing, at a minimum,

a list of electronic medical record systems recognized or

Page 7 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)

certified by national standards-setting entities as capable of

being used to communicate with a health information exchange.

(e) The agency shall distribute a minimum of 25 percent of

funds appropriated to this program to physicians or business

entities operating within a rural countv as defined in s.

288.106(1) (r) .

(f) The agency shall, by rule, develop standard terms and

conditions for use in this program. At a minimum, these terms

and conditions shall require:

1. TLoan repayment by the phvsician or business entity

within a reasonable period of time, which may not be longer than

72 months after the funding of the loan.

2. Equal periodic payments that commence within 3 months

after the funding of the loan.

3. The eligible physician or business entity to execute a

promissory note and a security agreement in favor of the state.

The security agreement shall be a purchase-money security

interest pledging as collateral for the loan the specific

hardware and software purchased with the loan proceeds. The

agency shall prepare and record a financing statement under

chapter 679. The physician or business entity shall be

responsible for paying the cost of recording the financing

statement. The security agreement shall further require that the

physician or business entity pay all collection costs, including

attorney's fees.

(g) The agency shall further require the physician or

business entity to provide additional security under one of the

following subparagraphs:

1. BAn irrevocable letter of credit, as defined in chapter

675, in an amount equal to the amount of the loan.

Page 8 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264

265

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)

2. An escrow account consisting of cash or assets eligible

for deposit'in accordance with g. 625.52 in an amount equal to

the amount of the loan. If the escrow aqent'is responsible for

making the periodic payments on the loan, the required escrow

balance may be diminished as payments are made.

3. A pledge of the accounts receijivables of the physician

or business entity. This pledge shall be reflected on the

financing statement.

(h) All payments received from or on behalf of a physician

or business entity under this program shall be deposited into

the agency's Administrative Trust Fund to be used to fund new

loans.

(i) If a physician or business entity that has received a

loan under this section ceases to provide care or services to

patients, or if the physician or business entity defaults in any

payment and the default continues for 30 days, the entire loan

balance shall be immediately due and pavable and shall bear

interest from that point forward at the rate of 18 percent

annually. Upon default, the agency may offset any moneys owed to

the physician or business entity from the state and apply the

offset against the ocutstanding balance.

(1) Tf a physician defaults in any pavment and if the

default continues for 30 days, the default shall constitute

grounds for disciplinary action under chapter 458 or chapter 459

and s. 456.072(1) (k).

(6) FLORIDA HEALTH INFORMATION EXCHANGE ADVISORY

COUNCIL. --

(a) The Florida Health Information Exchange Advisory

Council is created as an adjunct to the agency. The council is

subject to the requirements of s. 20.052, except that only state

. Page 9 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)

officers and employees shall be reimbursed for per diem and

travel expenses pursuant to s. 112.061.

(b) The purpose of the council is to:

1. Promote participation in regional and statewide health

information exchanges and adoption of health information

technology to support the infrastructure capacity for regional

and statewide health information exchanges.

2. Conduct outreach and convene forums to educate

stakeholders regarding the benefits of utilizing a health

information exchange.

3. Provide guidance to stakeholders regarding the

effective use of health information exchanges and standards for

protecting the privacy and security of electronic medical

records.

(c) The council shall consist of the following members:

1. The Secretary of Health Care Administration, or his or

her designee.

2. The State Surgeon General, or his or her designee.

3. Two members appointed by and serving at the pleasure of

the Governor, of which:

a. One member must be from the health insurance industry.

b. One member must be a consumer who is a resident of the

state.

4. Four members appointed by and serving at the pleasure

of the Pregident of the Senate, of which:

a. One member must be from a hospital utilizing an

electronic medical records system.

b. One member must be a physician utilizing an electronic

medical records system in his or her practice.

C. One member must be a repregentative of an operating

health information organization in the state.

Page 10 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




297
298
299

300

301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)

d. One member must be from a federally qualified health

center or other rural health organization utilizing an

electronic medical records svstem.

5. Four members appointed by and serving at the pleasure

of the Speaker of the House of Representatives, of which:

a. One member must be from a hospital utilizing an

electronic medical records svstem.

b. One member must be a physician utilizing an electronic

medical records system in his or her practice.

c. One member must be a representative of an operating

health information organization in the state.

d. One member must be from a federallv qualified health

center or other rural health organization utilizinq an

electronic medical records svstem.

(d) A member who is a representative of an operating

health information organization in the state must recuse himself

or herself during discussion, evaluation, or recommendation of a

grant application.

(e) Each member of the council subiject to appointment

shall be appointed to serve for a term of 4 vears following the

date of appointment. A vacancy shall be filled by appointment

for the remainder of the term. Appointments shall be made within

45 days after the effective date of this section.

(f) The council may meet at the call of the chair or at

the request of a majority of its membership, but the council

must meet at least quarterly. Meetings of the council may be

held via teleconference or other electronic means.

(g) Members shall elect a chair and vice chair annually.

(h). A majority of the members constitutes a gquorum and the

affirmative vote of a majority of a quorum is necessary to take

action.

Page 11 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)

328 (i) The council's duties and responsibilities include, but

329 are not limited to, developing recommendations to:

330 1. Establish étandards for all state-funded health

331 information exchange efforts. Such standards shall include, but:

332 are not limited to, policies and procedures to protect the

333 privacy and security of electronic medical records.

334 2. Remove barriers, including, but not limited to,

335 technological, requlatory, and financial barriers, that limit

336 participation by health care providers, health care facilities,

337 and health insurers in a health information exchange.

338 3. Remove barriers that prevent consumers from having

339 accegs to their electronic medical records.

340 ‘ 4. Provide incentives to promote participation by health

341 care providers, health care facilities, and health insurers in

342 health information exchanges.

343 5. Identify health care data held by state agencies and

344 remove barriers to making that data available to authorized

345 recipients through health information exchanges in a private and

346 sSecure manner.

347 6. Increase state agency participation in health

348 information exchanges.

349 7. Partner with other state, regional, and federal

350 entities to promote and coordinate health information exchange

351 efforts.

352 8. Create a long-term plan for an interoperable statewide

353 network of health information organizations.

354

355 The council shall establish ad hoc issue-oriented technical

356 workgroups on an as-needed basis to make recommendations to the

357 council.

Page 12 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)

(i) The Florida Center for Health Information and Policy

Analysis within the agency shall provide, within existing

resources, staff support to enable the council to carry out its

regponsibilities under this section.

(k) Beginning July 1, 2009, the council shall annually

provide a report to the Governor, the President of the Senate,

the Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the chairs of

the appropriate substantive committees of the Senate and the

House of Representatives that includes, but is not limited to,

the recommendations regarding the council's duties and

responsibilities. In addition, by July 1, 2010, the council

shall recommend a long-term plan to create an interoperable

statewide network of health information organizations to the

Governor, the President of the .Senate, the Speaker of the House

of Representatives, and the chairs of the appropriate

substantive committees of the Senate and the House of

Representatives.

(1) This section is repealed and the council shall stand

abolished July 1, 2012, unless reviewed and saved from repeal

through reenactment by the Legislature.

(7) _AGENCY FOR HEALTH CARE ADMINISTRATION; DUTIES.--

(a) The agency shall develop and maintain on its Internet

website the following information:

1. Federal and private sector health information exchange

funding prodrams, including analyses of successful local and

state recipients of the programs, as well as unsuccessful local

and state applicants of the programs.

2. A clearinghouse of state and national legislative,

requlatory, and public awareness activities related to health

information exchanges.

Page 13 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)

(b) The agency shall develop and implement a plan that

promotes, at a minimum, participation in regional and statewide

health information exchanges and the adoption of electronic

medical record systems by physicians through the Electronic

Medical Records System Adoption Loan Program, in consultation

with the Florida Health Information Exchange Advisory Council,

organizations representing allopathic and osteopathic practicing

physicians, the Board of Medicine, and the Board of Osteopathic

Medicine.

(8) PROGRAM EVALUATION; REPORT.--The Office of Program

Policy Analysis and Government Accountability shall complete an

independent evaluation of the grants program administered by the

agency. The evaluation must jnclude, at a minimum, assessments

of the grant evaluation and distribution process; the way in

which grant dollars are gpent; the level of participation by

entities within each grantee's project; the extent of clinical

data exchange among entities within each grantee's proiject: the

sources of funding for each grantee; and the feasibility of each

grantee achieving long-term sustainability without state grant

funding. The evaluation must assess the level at which the

current grants program is advancing the development of a

statewide health information exchange and recommend other

programs that may accomplish the same goal. The report shall be

submitted to the Governor, the President of the Senate, the

Speaker of the House of Representatives, and the chairs of the

relevant committees in the Senate and the House of

Repregentatives no later than July 1, 2009.

Section 4. Subsection (5) of section 408.062, Florida
Statutes, is amended to read:

408.062 Research, analyses, studies, and reports.--

Page 14 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml ‘




418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES

Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)

Section 5. Subsection (2) of section 483.181, Florida
Statutes, is amended to read:

483.181 Acceptance, collection, identification, and
examination of specimens.-- ‘

(2) The results of a test must be reported directly to the
licensed practitioner or other authorized person who requested

it, and appropriate disclosure may be made by the clinical

laboratory without a patient's consent to other health care

practitioners and providers involved in the care or treatment of

the patient for use in connection with the treatment of the

patient. The report must include the name and address of the
clinical laboratory in which the test was actually performed,
unless the test was performed in a hospital laboratory and the
report becomes an integral part of the hospital record.

Section 6. This act shall take effect upon becoming a law.

TITLE AMENDMENT

Page 15 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/ COMMITTEE‘ PURPOSES

Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)

Remove the entire title and insert:
An act relating to electronic health records; amending s.
395.3025, F.S.; expanding access to a patient's medical records
to facilitate electronic exchange of data between certain health
care facilities, practitioners, and providers and attending
physicians; revising terminology regarding disclosure of patient
records to conform to changes made by the act; amending s.
408.05, F.S.; removing responsibility of the Agency for Health
Care Administration for monitoring certaiﬁ grants; éreating s.
408.051, F.S.; creating the "Florida eHealth Initiative Act";
providing legislative intent; providing definitions; requiring
the agency to award and monitor grants to certain health
information organizations; providing rulemaking authority
regarding establishment of eligibility criteria; establishing
the Electronic Medical Records System Adoption Loan Prbgram;
providing eligibility criteria; providing rulemaking authority
regarding terms and conditions for the granting of loans;
creating the Florida Health Information Exchange Advisory
Council; providing for purpose, membership, terms of office, and
duties of the council; requiring the Florida Center for Health
Information and Policy Analysis to provide staff support;
requiring reports to the Governor and Legislature; providing for
future repeal of s. 408.051, F.S., and abolition of the council;
providing duties of the agency with regard to availability of
specified information on the agency's Internet website;
requiring the agency to develop and implement a plan to promote
participation in regional and statewide health information
exchanges; requiring the Office of Program Policy Analysis and
Government Accountability to complete an independent evaluation
of the grants program administered by the agency and submit the

report to the Governor and Legislature; amending s. 408.062,

Page 16 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml




HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES‘
Amendment No. 1 (for drafter’s use only)
480 F.S.; removing responsibility of the agency for developing an
481| electronic health information network; amending s. 483.181,
482 F.S.; expanding'access to laboratory reports to facilitate
483| electronic exchange of data between certain health care

484 practitioners and providers; providing an effective date.
485

Page 17 of 17
Strike all to HB 637-1.xml







HB 731






HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 731 Personal Care Attendant Program
SPONSOR(S): Gardiner
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 370
REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR
1) Committee on Healthy Seniors 9Y,0N Ciccone/Massengale Ciccone
2) Healthcare Council : Ciccone Q{V Gorml M’
4 b
3)_Policy & Budget Council
N
5)
SUMMARY ANALYSIS

House Bill 731 amends the existing Personal Care Attendant (PCA) program and expands participant eligibility
to provide personal care attendants to persons who have severe and chronic disabilities of all kinds. The bill
names the program the “James Patrick Memorial Work Incentive Personal Attendant Services Program.”

The bill merges the Cross Disability Pilot program that provides personal care attendants to the significantly
disabled in Orange, Osceola, Lake and Seminole counties with the PCA program and specifies that all persons
who are enrolled in the existing PCA and the Cross Disability pilot projects on June 30, 2008, are automatically
eligible for and enrolled in the revised program.

The bill places the administration of the program within the Florida Association of Centers for Independent
Living (FACIL) and provides that FACIL receive 15 percent of the funds that are deposited in the Florida
Endowment Foundation for Vocational Rehabilitation from the Tax Collection Enforcement Diversion Program
and the Motorcycle Specialty License Tab to administer the program.

The bill deletes obsolete language regarding eligibility criteria, training and program development. The bill
establishes a program oversight group and requires the FACIL to work with the oversight group to provide
training to program participants regarding hiring and managing personal care attendants and to adopt and
revise policies and procedures governing the program.

The bill increases the allocation to the PCA program and redirects 90 percent of the sales tax collections
obtained through the Tax Collection Enforcement Diversion program from the General Revenue Fund to the
Able Trust as one source of funding for the expanded PCA program. The Revenue Estimating Conference
analysis dated February 29, 2008, estimates the fiscal impact of the bill to be $1M from the General Revenue
Fund in Fiscal Year 2008-09.

The bill takes effect July 1, 2008.

This doeument does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0731b.HCC.doc
DATE: 3/21/2008



FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS
A. HOUSE PRINCIPLES ANALYSIS:

Ensure Lower Taxes — House Bill 731 does not propose any additional taxes or fees; however the
proposal redirects 90 percent of the sales tax collections obtained through the tax collection
enforcement diversion program from the General Revenue Fund to the Able Trust as one source of
funding for the expanded personal care attendant program.

Promote Personal Responsibility —~ House Bill 731 provides personal care attendants to disabled
persons who, without such assistance, would be unable to obtain or maintain employment or who
would otherwise be in need of government assistance.

B. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Background
Personal Care Attendant Program

The Personal Care Attendant (PCA) program was established to assist eligible persons, who are
disabled because of a traumatic spinal cord injury, to return to work in their communities by providing
personal care attendants. The PCA program was initially established as a pilot program in 2002 in
select counties in Florida. ' Under the pilot project, the law required the Department of Revenue (DOR)
in coordination with the Florida Association of Centers for Independent Living (FACIL) and the Florida
Prosecuting Attorneys Association, to select counties in which to operate the pilot project. 2 The
following counties currently participate in the program: Miami-Dade, Broward, Palm Beach,
Hillsborough and Duval.

Responsibility for implementation and administration of the program is with the Personal Care
Attendant Program Oversight Workgroup established by the Department of Health (DOH.) The
workgroup consists of: one representative from the Brain and Spinal Cord Injury Program in the DOH;
one representative from the Department of Revenue (DOR); one representative from the Florida
Medicaid program in the AHCA; one representative from the Florida Endowment Foundation for
Vocational Rehabilitation (FEFVR); one representative from the Florida Association of Centers for
Independent Living (FACIL); one representative from the Division of Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) of
the Department of Education (DOE); and two members who are persons with traumatic spinal cord
injuries or are family members of persons with traumatic spinal cord injuries.®

Persons eligible to participate in the program must:

- Be at least 18 years of age who are significantly disabled because of a traumatic spinal cord
injury;

' Ch.2002-286, L.O.F., established the PCA program as a pilot; the program was made permanent in Ch. 2005-172, L.O.F
> Ch.2002-286 section 2, L.O.F.

3S. 413.402(6), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h0731b.HCC.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/21/2008



e Require a personal care attendant for bathing, dressing, bowel and bladder management, and
transportation;

e Require a personal care attendant to obtain or maintain substantial gainful employment;

e Be able to hire and supervise a personal care attendant; and

¢ Meet one of the following requirements:

o Live ina nursing home;

o Have recently moved out of a nursing home to participate in a Medicaid home; and
community-based waiver program targeted to persons with brain or spinal cord injuries;
or

o Presently be employed, but because of a loss of a caregiver, will lose employment and
potentially return to a nursing home.*

The PCA program consists of two major components:

» - Recruiting, screening, selecting, and training candidates as personal care attendants; and
» Selecting eligible individuals for participation in the program and providing financial assistance
to eligible participants. Program participants are provided approximately $670 per month
($8,000 per year) as reimbursement for the cost of his or her personal care attendant.®
Current enrollment in the program is as follows:

Date Enrollment
January 2006 3
January 2007 22
January 2008 ~ 30

Program Care Attendant Program Funding

There are two funding sources for the PCA program: proceeds from the Tax Collection Enforcement
Diversion Program, and from the Motorcycle Specialty License Tag.®

Tax Collection Enforcement Diversion Program

In conjunction with establishing the personal care attendant program, the Legislature directed the
FACIL and the State Attorney’s offices in the participating counties to implement a Tax Collection
Enforcement Diversion program, which collects revenue from persons who have not remitted their sales
taxes. Section 413.4021(1), F.S., specifies that 50 percent of those collections are to be remitted by
the DOR to the Able Trust of the Florida Endowment Foundation for Vocational Rehabilitation to be
used to implement the PCA program, with the other 50 percent going to the General Revenue Fund.
The Able Trust, in turn, remits funds to the FACIL to administer and operate the PCA program.

There are currently five Florida State Attorney’s offices operating a program in which un-remitted sales
tax is collected from delinquent business owners. These collections generate approximately $80,000
per month for the personal care attendant program. According to the DOR, in FY 2005-06 the Tax
Collection Enforcement Diversion programs in the five participating counties collected, and the DOR
remitted, the following to the Able Trust:

*S.413.402,F.S.
> Personal Care Attendant Program Procedures
8 Sections 413.402, F.S. and s. 320.08068, F.S.

STORAGE NAME: h0731b.HCC.doc PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/21/2008



County Total Collected Able Trust General Revenue

FY 2006-07 50 Percent 50 Percent

Broward $ 481,402 $ 240,701 $ 240,701

Duval 511,841 255,921 255,921

Hillsborough 825,128 412,564 412,564

Miami-Dade 235,134 117,567 117,567

Palm Beach 245,431 122,715 122,715

Specialty Tag 55,807

Other Contributions 50

Interest 61,399

TOTAL $2,298,936 *$1,266,727 $1,149,468

*Includes County coliections in italics.

Motorcycle Specialty (Bikers Care) Tag

Since 2003, the Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles has offered a specialty tag to the
owner or lessee of any motorcycle who chooses to pay the additional cost. Pursuant to s.
320.08068(4), F.S.; a $20.00 annual fee is collected from the sale of each specialty license plate under
this section. These fees are distributed to the Able Trust as the custodial agent of the funds.” The Able
Trust may retain up to 10 percent of these funds for administrative costs and the remaining funds are
distributed as follows:

o Twenty percent to the Brain and Spinal Cord Injury Program Trust Fund;

Twenty percent to Prevent Blindness Florida;

e Twenty percent to the Blind Services Foundation of Florida;

o Twenty percent to the Foundation for Vocational Rehabilitation 1o support the Personal Care
Attendant Program pursuant to s. 413,402, F.S.; and,

e Twenty percent to the FACIL to be used to leverage additional funding and new sources of
revenue for the centers for independent living in Florida.

In FY 2006-07, the FACIL received approximately $56,000 from the Able Trust as their share of the
specialty tag proceeds.

Cross Disability Pilot Program

In 2008, the Legislature appropriated $400,000 in non-recurring general revenue to establish a pilot
personal care attendant project in Orange, Osceola, Lake and Seminole counties.® In contrast to the
statutory PCA program, which serves only those who suffer from traumatic spinal cord injuries, the
Cross Disability pilot project is intended to serve persons who are significantly physically or mentally
disabled without regard to the underlying cause of the disability. Such individuals who need the

7 Prior to July 1, 2006, the share allotted to the personal care attendant program was 25 percent. See ch. 2006-169, L.O.F.
¥ See Specific Appropriation 340, General Appropriations Act, ch. 2006-25, L.O.F. These funds were appropriated to the Department

of Children and Families and are being distributed to the FACIL pursuant to grant agreements.
STORAGE NAME:; . h0731b.HCC.doc
DATE: 3/21/2008

PAGE: 4



assistance of a personal care attendant to accept or maintain employment are eligible to enroll in the
pilot project.

Operating procedures for the Cross Disability pilot project are based on the experiences of the existing
PCA program. The Cross Disability pilot project provides each participant up to $1,500 per month to
pay for a personal care attendant. The maximum reimbursable amount is based on a formula that takes
into account a participant’s income. Among current enrollees, those maximums range from $1,238.15
to $1,500; however, in no case may a participant be reimbursed for more than the amount actually paid
to his or her personal care attendant. The pilot project began enroliment in January 2007 and currently
has 11 individuals participating. '

Because the appropriation establishing the pilot project specified non-recurring general revenue, the
Cross Disability pilot project is operating under the original appropriation in 2006. The Department of
Children and Families was permitted to carry forward the unspent balance of the original appropriation
to fund the program’s operations in FY 2007-08.° Without new funding, the program will not continue
after July 2008.

Effect of Proposed Legislation

House Bill 731 amends the existing Personal Care Attendant program (PCA) to expand participant
eligibility to persons who have severe and chronic disabilities of all kinds, not just those with traumatic
spinal cord injuries. The bill names the revised program the “James Patrick Memorial Work Incentive
Personal Attendant Services Program.” The bill derives from the experience of the Cross Disability
Pilot program providing personal care attendants to the significantly disabled in Orange, Osceola, Lake
and Seminole counties and provides that all persons who are enrolled in the existing PCA and the
Cross Disability pilot project on June 30, 2008, are automatically eligible for and enrolled in the revised
program.

The effect of this proposal is to combine the existing PCA program and the Cross Disability Pilot
program into a single cross-disability PCA program for individuals with severe and chronic disabilities
who require a personal care attendant to go to work.

The bill requires the Florida Endowment Foundation for Vocational Rehabilitation to enter into an
agreement with the Florida Association of Centers for Independent Living (FACIL) to administer the
new program and provides that FACIL receive 15 percent of the funds in the Florida Endowment
Foundation for Vocational Rehabilitation received from the Tax Collection Enforcement Diversion
Program and the Motorcycle Specialty License Tab to administer the program. The bill increases the
percentage of revenue collected from the Tax Collection Enforcement Diversion program from 50
percent to 90 percent, changing the 50/50 distribution to 90/10 (program funding/general revenue.)

The bill deletes obsolete language regarding eligibility criteria and program development, and deletes
provisions allowing nurse registries to recruit and screen candidates to act as fiscal intermediaries to
make payments to personal care attendants. The bill establishes a new program oversight group and
requires that FACIL work with this group to review and revise policies and procedures governing the
combined program. '

? Section 19 in the General Appropriations Act for FY 2007-08 authorizes DCF to carry forward the unexpended balance of the FY

2006-07 appropriation of $400,000. The actual carry-forward amount was $202,000 in non-recurring funds.
STORAGE NAME: h0731b.HCC.doc PAGE: 5

3/21/2008



C. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1: Amends s. 413.402, F.S., requires the Florida Endowment Foundation for Vocational
Rehabilitation to contract with the FACIL to administer the newly designated “James Patrick Memorial
Work Incentive Personal Attendant Services Program” to provide personal care attendants to persons
having severe and chronic disabilities of all kinds; provides that, effective July 1, 2008, FACIL will
receive administrative funds from deposits with the Able Trust to administer the program; amends
program eligibility standards; deletes requirements relating to recruitment, screening and selection of
personal care attendants; requires FACIL to provide certain training to program participants;
establishes an oversight group and provides membership.

Section 2. Amends s. 413.4021, F.S., increases the percentage of revenue collected to operate the
program; repeals the provision that the Florida Endowment Foundation for Vocational Rehabilitation
shall select the entity to administer the Personal Care Attendant program.

Section 3. Creates an undesignated section of law providing for automatic eligibility for and enrollment
in the Personal Care Attendant program for certain persons.

Section 4. Provides an effective date of July 1, 2008.
II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

The bill decreases the percent of collected sales tax received from the Tax Collection Enforcement
Diversion program that would be deposited in the General Revenue Fund. Currently, 50 percent is
deposited in General Revenue — in Fiscal Year 2006-2007, that amount was $1,149,468. The bill
decreases that percentage to 10 percent. The Revenue Estimating Conference analysis dated
February 29, 2008, estimates the fiscal impact resulting from this decrease to the General Revenue
Fund to be $1M in Fiscal Year 2008-09.

2. Expenditures:

The Department of Revenue reports that it anticipates increased State Attorney participation in the
Tax Collection Enforcement Diversion Program by at least two judicial circuits because of this bill.
DOR prepared diversion cases and refers these cases to the participating state Attorney. In support
of the current effort, the DOR has an investigator and the equivalent of one additional staff member
in each of the five judicial circuits where the Diversion Program operates. If two new Diversion
Programs were added, DOR would need two Investigators (Pay Grade 18) to prepare these cases
and two Revenue Specialists liI's (Pay Grade 17) to make adjustments to the DOR’s integrated tax
system (SUNTAX.) '

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

1 Department of Revenue Analysis, dated February 16, 2008 on file with the committee.
STORAGE NAME: h0731b.HCC.doc PAGE: 6
DATE: 3/21/2008



Not applicable
2. Expenditures:

Not applicable

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

Individuals with disabilities will have the opportunity to hire a personal care attendant to assist him or
her in order to obtain or maintain gainful employment.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

As noted in the staff analysis, the current PCA program provides participants approximately $670 per
month ($8,000) per year. FACIL advises that the proposal to combine the PCA and Cross Disability
pilot programs may provide participants with up to $1,500 per month for his or her personal care
attendant. The maximum reimbursable amount is based on a formula which takes into account a
participant’s income. Among current enrollees, those maximums range from $1,238 to $1,500 per
month; in no case, however, may a participant be reimbursed for more than the amount actually paid to
his or her personal care attendant.

House Bill 731-provides that all persons enrolled in the PCA program and the Cross Disability pilot on
June 30, 2008 are automatically enrolled in the new program. Currently there are 30 PCA program
participants and 11 Cross Disability pilot participants totaling 41. The estimate for available revenue to
the Able Trust is $1,266,724 for Fiscal Year 2006-2007. Program expenses in that year were $318,936,
leaving $947,788 available for payments to program participants. Using these figures, if each
participant were to receive the maximum payment of $1,500 per month under the provisions of the bill,
approximately 52 participants could be served through the program created in this bill.

There are also expenses associated with the Diversion Program, which is one source of funding for the
PCA Program. -

As reported by FACIL, for the first year of the PCA project, the Brain and Spinal Cord Injury program
(BSCIP) provided a $50,000 loan to the State Attorney’s Office in each of the sites to establish a Tax
Collection Enforcement Diversion Program office. To re-pay the loan, each program site is required to
pay 25 percent of each quarter’'s earnings to the PCIP until they have paid back the full $50,000. After
the first year and the loan payments are made, the rest of the collections up to an amount of $50,000
per year are given back to the state attorney offices to support the cost of the diversion program. The
remaining funds are then available to pay for personal care attendants for program participants.

lll. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

The bill does not appear fo require counties or municipalities to take an action requiring the
expenditure of funds, reduce the authority that counties or municipalities have to raise revenue in the
aggregate, nor reduce the percentage of state tax shared with counties or municipalities.

2. Other:

STORAGE NAME: h0731b.HCC.doc PAGE: 7
DATE: 3/21/2008



Not applicable

STORAGE NAME: h0731b.HCC.doc PAGE: 8
DATE: 3/21/2008



B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:
Not applicable

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:
None ‘ '

D. STATEMENT OF THE SPONSOR
No statement submitted.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

On March 4, 2008, the Committee on Healthy Seniors adopted one amendment by the bill
sponsor. The amendment:

» Revises the proposed general revenue/program distribution in.the bill from 90/10
percent to current law which is 50/50 percent, thereby removing the $1M fiscal impact

and conforming the House bill to the Senate bill.

The committee reported the bill favorably with one amendment.

STORAGE NAME: h0731b.HCC.doc PAGE: 9
DATE: 3/21/2008






F L ORIDA A -HOWUSE O F REPRESENTATIVE S

HB 731 , 2008
1 A bill to be entitled
2 An act relating to the personal care attendant program;
3 amending s. 413.402, F.S.; revising provisions governing a
4 program to provide personal care attendants for persons
5 who have disabilities; requiring the Florida Endowment
6 Foundation for Vocational Rehabilitation to enter into an
7 agreement with the Florida Association of Centers for
8 Independent Living to administer a program to provide such
9 attendants to persons who have severe and chronic
10 disabilities; naming the program the "James Patrick
11 Memorial Work Incentive Personal Attendant Services
12 Program"; providing for payment for the administration of
13 the program; removing a provision requiring interagency
14 memoranda of agreement; revising eligibility requirements
15 for participation in the personal care attendant program;
16 removing provisions concerning the training, selection,
17 and recruitment of personal care attendants; providing for
18 training of program participants concerning hiring and
19 managing an attendant; providing for the adoption and
20 revision of program policies and procedures by the
21 association in cooperation with an oversight group;
22 providing for membership in the oversight group; amending
23 S. 413.4021, F.S.; increasing the percentage of revenues
24 collected from persons who fail to remit sales tax which
25 is deposited in the operating account of the Florida
26 Endowment Foundation for Vocational Rehabilitation to
27 administer the program; deleting a provision requiring
28 that the Florida Endowment Foundation for Vocational

Page 1 of 7

CODING: Words siricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0731-00



FLORIDA H O U 8§ E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 731 , 2008
29 : Rehabilitation select an entity to administer the program;
30 providing for automatic enrollment in the program for
31 certain persone; providing an effective date.

- 32
33| Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:
34 |
35 Section 1. Section 413.402, Florida Statutes, is amended
36| to read: '

37 413.402 Personal care attendant program.--The personal

38| care attendant program created under this section shall be cited

39 as the "James Patrick Memorial Work Incentive Personal Attendant

40| Services Program." The Florida Endowment Foundation for

41| Vocational Rehabilitation shall enter into an agreement with the

42| Florida Association of Centers for Independent Living to

43 administer the James Patrick Memorial Work Incentive Personal

44

45
46| Program to provide personal care attendants to persons who have

47 severe and chronic disabilities of all kinds and who are

48| eligible under pursuant—te subsection (1). Effective July 1,

49{ 2008, the Florida Association of Centers for Independent Living

50| shall receive 15 percent of the funds to be deposited with the

51 Florida Endowment Foundation for Vocational Rehabilitation

52| pursuant to ss. 320.08068(4) (d) and 413.4021(1) to administer

53| the program. The—asseociationand-—the Department—of-Health—shall
54 Fod } !

55
56

Page 2 of 7

_ CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0731-00



F L ORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 731 2008

57| Yeeational-Rehabilitation,—oand-the Division of Veoecational
58| Rehabilitotion—of the Department—of-Eduecation-

59 (1) In order to be Persens eligible to participate in the

60| program, a person must:

61 (a) Be at least 18 years of age, be a resident of this

62| state for at least 12 months immediately prior to application to

63| the program, and be significantly and chronically disabled due
64 to—a—traumatic—spinal—ecerd—injury;

65 (b) Require a personal care attendant for assistance with

66| or support for at least two activities of daily living as

67| defined in s. 429.02, as determined by a physician or
68| psychiatrist
69| ond—tronsportatien;

70 (¢) Require a personal care attendant in order to accept a

71| job or maintain substantial gainful employment; and

72 (d) Be able to acquire kixre and direct supervise a
73| personal care attendant;7¥aﬁé‘

74
75
76
77
78
75
80
81
82
83
84

Page 3 of 7

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0731-00



"FLORIDA H O U S E O F R EPRESENTATIVES

HB 731 | 2008
85 314 ! 7 R i
86 :
87
88
89
90
91|
92
93

94 43> The Florida Association of Centers for Independent -
95| Living asseciation—and theDepartment—of Health,—in-cooperation
96 with—theFlerida—FEndowment—Foundation—feor—Voeational

97| Rehabilitatieons éhall provide dewelep—a training to program

98| participants on hiring and managing a personal care attendant

99| and, in cooperation with the oversight group described in

100| paragraph (b), adopt and revise the policies and procedures

101| governing the personal care attendant program and the training

102| program.
103 (b) The oversight group shall include, but need not be

104 limited to, a member of the Florida Association of Centers for

105 Independent Living, a person who is participating in the

106| program, and one representative each from the Department of

107| Revenue, the Department of Children and Family Services, the

108| Division of Vocational Rehabilitation in the Department of

109 Education, the Medicaid program in the Agency for Health Care

110| Administration, the Florida Endowment Foundation for Vocational

111| Rehabilitation, and the Brain and Spinal Cord Injury Program in

112| the Department of Health preogramfor persenal-careattendants.
' ' Page 4 of 7

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0731-00



F L ORIDA H O U S E O F REPRES SENTATIVES

HB 731 ‘ 2008

113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126

127
128
1295
130
131
132
133
134
135
136

137
138
139

140| 4mjuries—

Page 5 of 7

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0731-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 731 2008

141 Section 2. Subsections (1) and (2) of section 413.4021,
142| Florida Statutes, are amended to read:
143 413.4021 Program participant selection; tax collection
144| enforcement diversion program.--The Department of Revenue, in
145| coordination with the Florida Association of Centers for
146| Independent Living and the Florida Prosecuting Attorneys
147| Association, shall select judicial circuits in which to operate
148| the program. The association and the state attorneys' offices
149 shall develop and implement a tax collection enforcement
150| diversion program, which shall collect revenue due from persons
151| who have not remitted their collected sales tax. The criteria
152| for referral to the tax collection enforcement diversion program
153 shall be determined cooperatively between‘the state attorneys!'
154 offices and the Department of Revenue.
155 (1) Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 212.20, 90 56
156| percent of the revenues collected from the tax collection
157| enforcement diversion program shall be deposited into the
158| operating account of the Florida Endowment Foundation for
159 Vocational Rehabilitation, to be used to administer the personal
160 care attendant program and to contract with the state attorneys
161| participating in the tax collection enforcement diversion
162| program in an amount of not more than $50,000’for each state
163 attorney.
164 (2) The program shall operate only from funds deposited
165| into the operating account of the Florida Endowment Foundation
166 for Vocational Rehabilitation. FTheFlerida—Endowment—Feoundation
167|. fer-Veeational-Rehabilitationshall seleet—theentity—to
168 aéHéﬁéS%eE—EhefﬁEHﬁﬂﬁﬂr%%&%%ﬁf%eﬂéaﬁé—ﬁfegf&mf

' Page 6 of 7

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0731-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 731 2008

169 Section 3. Notwithstanding any other law, each person
170| enrolled in the personal care attendant program under s.
171 413.402, Florida Statutes, on June 30, 2008, and each person
172| enrolled in the pilot personal care attendant program in Lake,
173 Orange, Osceola, and Seminole Counties as authorized in Specific
174| Appropriation 340, chapter 2006-25, Laws of Florida, on June 30,
175| 2008, is automatically eligible for and enrolled in the personal
176| care attendant program, as amended by this act, on July 1, 2008.
177 Section 4. This act shall take effect July 1, 2008.

Page 7 of 7

CODING: Words stricker are deletions; words underlined are additions.
' : hb0731-00






0o 3 o Ut A W N OB

HOUSE AMENDMENT FOR COUNCIL/COMMITTEE PURPOSES
Amendment No. 1

Bill No. HB 731

COUNCIL/COMMITTEE ACTION

- ADOPTED __ (¥/N)
ADOPTED AS AMENDED _(Y/N)
ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION _(Y/N)
FAILED TO ADOPT _(Y/Ny
WITHDRAWN _ (¥/w)
OTHER

Council/Committee hearing bill: Healthcare Council

Committee on Healthy Seniors offered the following:

Amendment
On line 155 remove:
(1) Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 212.20, 90 56

and insert:

(1) Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 212.20, 50

This amendment was adopted in HS on 3/4/08 and is travelling
with the bill and requires no further action.
Page 1 of 1
HB 731 aml.docx







HB 989






HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 989 Physician Assistants
SPONSOR(S): Bogdanoff
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 1106

REFERENCE ACTION ANALYST STAFF DIRECTOR
1) Committee on Health Quality g8Y,0 N. Owen | : Lowell
2) Healthcare Council Owen ( Q@ Gormkﬁﬂ?(
4)
5)

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

HB 989 deletes antipsychotics and parenteral preparations from the formulary of drugs that a physician
assistant is prohibited from prescribing.

The bill appears to have an insignificant negative fiscal impact to the Medical Quality Assurance Trust Fund
(see fiscal comments).

The bill is effective July 1, 2008.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0989b.HCC.doc
DATE: 3/21/2008



FULL ANALYSIS

. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS
A. HOUSE PRINCIPLES ANALYSIS:
The bill does not appear to implicate any of the House Principles.

B. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:
Present Situation

Licensure of Physician Assistants

Chapter 458, F.S., governs the practice of medicine in Florida. Chapter 459, F.S., similarly governs the
practice of osteopathic medicine. Physician assistants (PAs) are licensed under ch. 458 and ch. 459,
F.S.," are authorized to provide health care services under the supervision of a medical physician or
osteopathic physician.

Licenses are renewed biennially and each licensed PA is required to complete 100 hours of continuing
medical education biennially or hold a current certificate issued by the National Commission on
Certification of Physician Assistants.

Once employed, the PA must notify the department in writing within 30 days of employment or after
changes in the supervising physician. The Boards of Medicine and Osteopathic Medicine have the
power to impose penalties upon a PA if the PA or the supervising physician is found guilty of or is being
investigated for any act that constitutes a violation of Chapters 456, 458, or 459.2

According to the department’s 2007 Medical Quality Assurance Annual Report, there are 4,476 active
physician assistants licensed in Florida.

Supervising Physician

For purposes of the regulation of PAs, “supervision” is defined in ss. 458.347 and 459.022, F.S., to
mean responsible supervision and control. Except for cases of emergency, supervision requires the
easy availability or physical presence of the licensed physician for consultation and direction of the
actions of the PA. “Easy availability” is defined to include the ability to communicate by way of
telecommunication. The Board of Medicine and the Board of Osteopathic have adopted, pursuant to s.
458.347(4)(f)4., F.S., identical administrative rules that define “direct supervision” to mean the presence
of the supervising physician on the premises so that the supervising physician is immediately available
to the PA when needed.® “Indirect supervision” is defined under the rules to mean the easy availability
of the supervising physician to the PA, which includes the availability to communicate by
telecommunications. The supervising physician must also be within reasonable physical proximity.*

The physician or group of physicians supervising a PA must be qualified in the medical areas in which
the PA is to perform and must be individually or collectively responsible and liable for the performance
and the acts and omissions of the PA. A physician may not supervise more than four. PAs at any one
time.

A supervising physician is authorized to delegate to a PA that he or she supervises the authority to
perform medical acts of diagnosis, treatment, and prescription. A supervising physician may delegate

! Sections 458.347 and 459.022, F.S.
2 Sections 458.347(7)(g) and 459.022(7)(f), F.S.
* See Rules 64B8-30.001(3) and 64B15-6.001(4), Florida Administrative Code.

* See Rules 64B8-30.001(5) and 64B15-6.001(5), F.A.C.
STORAGE NAME: h0989b.HCC.doc PAGE: 2
DATE: 3/21/2008



to a fully licensed PA the authority to prescribe any medication used in the supervising physician’s
practice unless the medication is listed on the formulary established under s. 458.347(4)(f), F.S.

Physicians Assistant Formulary

The PA formulary is a list of medications a PA is not allowed to prescribe and is developed by a five-
member council, the Council on Physician Assistants (council). The council is comprised of 3 medical
doctors appointed by the Board of Medicine, 1 osteopathic doctor appointed by the Board of
Osteopathic Medicine, and 1 PA appointed by the State Surgeon General. The council recommends
the formulary to the Board of Medicine and the Board of Osteopathic Medicine; the boards then pass
the recommended formulary into administrative rule. The formulary of medications a PA is not allowed
to prescribe must include controlled substances, ant|psychot|cs general anesthetics, radlographlc
contrast materials, and all parenteral preparations,® except insulin and epinephrine.

A PA may only prescribe or dispense medication under the following circumstances:®

e The PA must clearly identify to the patient that he or she is a PA and that the patient has the
right to see the physician prior to any prescription being prescribed or dispensed by the PA;

e The supervising physician must notify the department of his or her intent to delegate the
authority to dispense to a PA,;

e The PA must file evidence with the department that he or she has completed a continuing
education course of at least three classroom hours in prescriptive practice;

e The PA must file evidence with the department that he or she has a minimum of three months of
clinical experience in the specialty area of the supervising physician;

e The PA must file a signed affidavit with the department that he or she has completed a minimum
of ten continuing medical education hours in the specialty practice in which the PA has
prescriptive privileges with each licensure renewal;

e The department must issue a license and a prescriber number to the PA granting authorlty for
the prescribing of medicinal drugs;

» The prescription must be written in a format that complies with chapter 499 and must contain
the supervising physician’s name, address, and telephone number, in addition to the PA’s
prescriber number; and

e The PA must note the prescription or dispensing of medication in the appropriate patient
medical record, and the supervising physician must review and sign each notation.

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill deletes antipsychotics and parenteral preparations from the formulary of drugs that a physician
assistant is prohibited from prescribing. There are several drugs included under each of class.

For example, a PA may be allowed to prescribe injectables such as:
o Forteo, which may be used to treat symptoms of severe osteoporosis.
e Emitrex, which may be used to treat migraine headaches.
e Lovenox, which may be used to prevent blood clots.

Also, a PA may be allowed to prescribe antipsychotics such as:
e Saraquel, which may be used to treat Alzheimer patients.
o Abilify, which may be used to treat bi-polar disorder.
e Other non-controlled substances such as Haldol, Resperdol, Thorazine, and Lithium.

The bill grants authority to the PA Council to change the PA formulary; it does not mandate any change
to the formulary.

3 “Parenteral preparations” are sterile preparations intended for administration by injection, infusion or implantation.
6S. 458.347(4)(e), F.S.

STORAGE NAME: h0989b.HCC.doc ) PAGE: 3
DATE: 3/21/2008



SECTION DIRECTORY:
Section 1: Amends s. 458.347, F.S., revising the requirements for the physician assistant formulary.

Section 2: Provides an effective date of July 1, 2008.
Il. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT
FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:
None.

2. Expenditures:
See Fiscal Comments.

FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:
None.

2. Expenditures:
None.

DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

A patient would be able to receive certain prescriptions from PAs, in lieu of a physician, who may bill at
a lower rate.

FISCAL COMMENTS:

Whenever the formulary is revised, the department will incur costs to mail a copy of the amended
formulary to each PA and pharmacy licensed by the state. According to the 2007 Medical Quality
Assurance Annual Report, there are 4,828 licensed PAs and 7,628 licensed Pharmacy Establishments
in Florida. Therefore, 12,456 notices would have to be mailed. The cost would be at least $5,107
(@%0.41 each for postage), but may be higher depending on the weight. However, the fiscal impact to
the Medical Quality Assurance Trust Fund would be insignificant.

. COMMENTS
CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

This bill does not require counties or municipalities to spend funds or take action requiring the
expenditure of funds. This bill does not reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities. This bill does not reduce the authority that municipalities have to raise revenues.

2. Other:
None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

The department appears to have sufficient rule-making authority to implement the provisions of this bill.

STORAGE NAME: h0989b.HCC.doc PAGE: 4

DATE:

3/21/2008



C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

According to the department, the PA Council met on January 31, 2008 and discussed HB 989. At that
meeting, the PA Council as well as the Board of Medicine voted to support the provisions of the bill.

D. STATEMENT OF THE SPONSOR
No statement submitted.

IV. AMENDMENTS/COUNCIL SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

STORAGE NAME: h0989b.HCC.doc PAGE: 5
DATE: 3/21/2008 :






FLORIDA H O U 8 E O F REPRESENTATIVE'S

HB 989 2008

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to physician assistants; amending s.

3 458.347, F.S.; revising the requirements for the formulary
4 established by the Council on Physician Assistants in

5 order to allow physician assistants to prescribe

6 antipsychotics and parenteral preparations; providing an

7 effective date. |

. ,

9| Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

10 |

11 Section 1. Paragraph (f) of subsection (4) of section

12 458.347, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

13 458.347 Physician assistants.--

14 (4) PERFORMANCE OF PHYSICIAN ASSISTANTS.;—

15 (£)1. The council shall establish a formulary of medicinal
16| drugs that a fully licensed physician assistant, licensed under
17| this section or s. 459.022, may not prescribe. The formulary

18| must include controlled substances as defined in chapter 893,

19| antipsyehetiess; general anesthetics, and radiographic contrast
20| materialss—and—all -perenteral preparations—execept—insulin—and
21| epimephrine.
22 2. In establishing the formulary, the council shall

23| consult with a pharmacist licensed under chapter 465, but not
24| licensed under this chapter or chapter 459, who shall be
25| selected by the State Surgeon General.
26 3. Only the council shall add to, delete from, or modify
27| the formulary. Any person who requests an addition, deletion, or
28| modification of a medicinal drug listed on such formulary has

Page 1 of 2

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0989-00



FLORIDA H O U S E O F REPRESENTATIVES

HB 989 2008

29| the burden of proof to show cause why such addition, deletion,
30| or modification should be made. _

31 4. The boards shall adopt the formulary required by this
32| paragraph, and each addition, deletion, or modification to the
33| formulary, by rule. Notwifhstanding any pfovision of chapter 120
34| to the contrary, the formulary rule shall be effective 60 days
35| after the date it is filed with the Secretary of State. Upon

- 36| adoption of the formulary, the department shall mail a copy of
37| such formulary to each fully licensed physician assistant,

38| licensed under this section or s. 459.022, and to each pharmacy
39| licensed by the state. The boards shall establish, by rule, a
40| fee not to exceed $200 to fund the provisions of this paragraph
41| and paragraph (é).

42 Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2008.

Page 2 of 2

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0989-00



Budget Workshop






90£°/86'9¥/$ 6.v'0¥Z'095$ £G9'€6V'c/E$ %0000} 850'€/8'697'L$ s1viOoL
L92'G/TTLIYS 0Sv'90Z ¥5E$ ¥£9°'/E1L'9€T$ %22 €9 11926.°22L v uoeJsulUIWpY 8Je) yjjesH
¥26'G96°'6v$ Chr'viv'IE$ 296'286'7C$ %699 8€Z'659'66v$ senlligesig Yim suosiad
8rz'e8r'el$ 9ev'zLL'0L$ ¥29'Lv.'9% %181 087'ZE8'vELS sileyv Auepia
8/0°125'95$ 60E'82r'zr$ 6£5'582'92$ %LS L 182'012'595$ uleeH
069'862'€GL$ 81L0'v/6'VLLS Gye'619'9/$ %25 0¢C 106'986'2£5°1$ - SO0INRS Ajile B ualp|iyd
660'€6E'L$ ¥28'vr0'L$ 675'969$ %610 /86'0€6°EL$ S EN RN
uononpay %01 | uononpey %g’z | uononpsy %s jebpng 106png aseg
aJeoyyealy | enuanay [eiouss)
10 % 60-800Z A4 |




viol 80-Z L-€ @oualauo) Joedu| plesipaiy
(e1€'c06'L2%) (982'¢09°G19) (185'662'C19) 8002/1/. "sajes ONH 0} ge| 61
1oedu; epnjou} "uoiONPaI By} SjeNDIED O} WSIUBYOBW B SpPIACId %) Ag sajel AuQ uononpay di lendsoH
Em_ymn_c_ _mu_awo_._ 60-8002 Ad =W} m:_os_um._ >n_ wmc_>mw pajeuwli}se sy} apinold
(6¥7171GE°169) (£65°202705%) (965°c9°0v3) 8002/1/L ‘sejey el 81
OWWH 0} }oedWI 8pnjou| '9zaal) SU) 0} UOHIPPE U UOIIONPaI djel % & ajeinojed]  Uoponpay R 8zeald sley d| [endsoH
0} wisiueydaw e aplAoid ‘|9A8] 8002 .Om sunp ay} je sjel juswesinquulal 9Zaal4 .
(oso'yizezs) (CTlsv8'2i9) (ge5'6E€018) pazienuuy "seje. uopeyded sajeil el /1
OWH wol siuleo sanoeosal mcs.mc_E__m >Q mmc_>mw pajewl}sa ayj apindid| QINH o) suiield aAljoeollal apnjox3
(gl8’0sezzs) (620'99¥21L9) (6£.788'6$) 800Z/L/L | "uof}onpal au} aje[nafed o} WSiUeloslWl B SpIACId uononpay stey omn| €| O
%1 Aq sales ONH 60-8002 A5 8y} Buonpai Aq sBuines psjewyse ayy apiaoid
(86€'Iv0'951$)  [(16c08L’z88)  |(86€7198°899) BOOZ/LIL | 5788y iy 0} UOKIPPE Ul UOGONPS! SJE1 % & S}EINO[ED O} WSIUEYIOW € SPIAOI] zgl si
. ‘ uolonpay/azsal aey OWH
[2A8] 00T ‘0€ sunp oy} je sajel QWH bBuizeay; Ag sBuines pajewss apincid
sjeujulslepul ECIIIETET] gleulwisiepyl-  bleuiwsiepuy . . SINOH sin oH Buyers Buisiny 62| ¥l
9°Z 01 6 woyy soney Buyjels asinN Buonpal yum pajeioosse sBuiaeg apincid
(gzz'815°229) (99¥'192'G1L3) (€05'95221%) 8002/1/1 "uoliejnbas Buyjess 6°g Uo yoedwi epnjou| s3jel ad1dso 8z €1
uo Joedwi 8pnjou| "UOONPal aU} SJENS[ED 0} WISIUBYOSW B apinold "%l Aq uononpay ajey awoH SuisinN
B9leJ SWOH m:_m._:z 60-8002 Ad 3u}l mc_o:_um._ >n wmc_>mw pajeuli}ss ay) 2plaold
(Lio'erL'6L1%)  |(bOS'€SE'668) (£,05'682'6.$) 800Z/L/L “(uoe|nbai 1zl zL
Buiyels 6'z 0} joedwy apnjoul) seley soidsoH uo Joedwi apnjou| m.nmmt UOHONpaY/ezZasl4 S1BY SWOH BUISINN
9y} 0} UOHIPP. Ui UooNpal 8jel 9, e 9)e|ndjes 0} WSIUByoall B SpIAOId '|9A3)|
BOOC .om aunpe sy} 1e sajel swuoy m:_w._sc mc_Nmm.c >n wmc_>mw pajeuuilsa apiAoid
(000'02V°1$) {918'528%) (¥81 793) 8002/1/. . "uoconpal 8y} 8Je[NOfed 0} WSIUBLOSLU B SpPIAOId uononpay juswiedaq yiesy Aunos| ¥Z| b
%1 Aq sejel 60-8002 A4 oY1 Buonpal Aq sBuines pajeuss su) apiaold
(G1¥°0SL7LLS) (828'295°9%) (Lp9'181°G%) 8002/1/.L "97924) 8U} 0} UONIPPE Ui UOHONPaI 88l %, & 8}e[Nojed 0} uononpay/ezeald| ¢z| 0l
LWISIUBYOSU B 3pINOId '[OAS| 800Z ‘0E sunp ey} Je sjed Juswasinquiial 8zaal4 ajey uswpedaq yiesH Alunosd
(000°098°65%) (g00°18€°LES) (z66'8.1'7C$) 800¢/4/L ‘19| | 6
o yojew e ash 0} siejjop Alunod Jusioyns sey AJunod au) Ji SIS0 O %G 03 dn :
sejes dwaxs 0] NHJD 01 JuswAed |epoads e Bueaso pue sajey Buiig jeydsoH sajey Juswupedaq iesH Aunod
Aunog o) sejey juswiedaq ujesH Ajuno) Buionpal yum pajeioosse sbuineg
(829'8c.'69) (/61'56£G8) (Lep'sheps) 8002/L/.L %GV 8l 8
snid OV 01 %G.L°G snid DV PUB ‘%b'9} SNUIL dARY 0} -%1'GL SNUIL dMY|  Juswssinquiey Aoeulieyd sonpay
wouy sBrup paquosaeid Jo Juswasinqwias Buonpal Aq sBuiaes pajewnss apiaoid
(696'95£CL9) (698'/81219) (001694 %) 800Z/1/. “1aAlem Ad SojeUISS ISIT "SISAIEM |[B 3pnjou] soiey saon| L
‘%1 Aq sejes Jeniem SgOH Ile Buionpas Aq sBulaes pajewinss sy} apirold
(L¥9'G1Z3) {3ov'6119$) (621°96%) 800Z/L/. "sJouse s|qejuanald Ioj sjedsoy Buisinquii| sioug] Ll 9
Jsbuoj ou jo Aoijod sseoipapy su) Bundope Ag sBuiaes jo ajewlise ue apiAld {e)dsoH s|gejusnsid Joj JuawhAed ’
(£10°1€/3) (£€86'70V$) (vc0'9zes) 800Z/\/L "%} Aq joeniuoD 2onpay uopepodsuel)] Aousbiew3-uoN| 9] ¢
(g19'z9z'c$) (687°208°19) (9z1'est°1%) 8002/1/. SO0IAIBS UEBIESST) SNODID suoposg cmm_mmmo el v
Joj pasinbay uolieziioyine Jond e sem assyy 41 sBuiAes au} JO SJELISO BPIACId SAOBIS SpNjoU O} SSOIAISS [EHASOH
: o : : ’ : : Jusneduy] jo uoiezioyiny Joud puedxg
0/6'720°'L$ 896'C/5% 200'2ov$ 8002/L/1 "UOISSNOSIp Joj asealoul Juswesinguiial J8jusd bBuiyuig asealou| ajey siuag bulypig] zl €
Buipuad Buipuad Buipuad Buipuad Wz

lejol

pung isnil

=

anuaAay |eiausn

pasodoid

ajeq yeig

"Aejs Jo yibus| seoineg usiedu) [endsoH
ul 18510 ue Aq pspunj BuisinN AinQ sjeAld Joj inoy Jad 01 ¢ JO osealoul ajey

aseasou] sjey BuisinN Aing syeaud

8002 ‘) UOIEIN 60/800ZA4S
JONFUIANOD LOVdNI QIVOIaIn



1 4.4 80-2}-€ @oualajuo) Joedw] piesipaiy

(k6L72£2°289v$) [(LOL'0EL222'ed) [(069°Z¥SPOY'1$) | Pozienuuy "'SgOH Buipnpug (sgod Buipnoun] 6] ov
s}inpe Jo} seolales jeuondo e Buneuiwe Aq sbuines pejewinss ay) spincid| S}NPY J0} SSIAIRS euondO ajeullLLg

$p0'c6L 1% 100'8/9% LE0'S1G% 8002/L/L Ued aje}s PIEoIPSI Bup YBNOIL | 8B. JopUN S|ENPIAPUI 0} PapIACId N n%sehmw_n”»» wm 8| 6t
s80IMBs Janlem Bulpinoud Aq peasiyoe sBulaes oy} Jo sjewnSe Ue apInold| - .hm>_m>> Angesia _mycwE d o_.m> aq

0% 0% 0% VIN "S80IAISS U)|eay sapie Ujeay alloy v| 8¢

8002/1/L

10 pousad uonezuoyine soud ay; Buisealosp wol sbuines pajeulse w£ mU_>o._n_

SO0IAIBS Y)jeoH sWwoH

€10'688'G1L$ 195'2¥0'6$ ory'zi8'9% }o0pnq "A0DH) wocw ui pajodyial aseaou| 994 Aeads cm_o_wE d €5
sy) 'ajel aJedIpapy suj 01 >m>>=ms $99) Jua.no Buisealoul sjsanbal anss|
6EG198'LIS L6G'9CL 9% 8y6'vel'qs 800¢/L/L . (318bpng A0S asBRIOU| NOJ 9 YHESH SWOH ¢q| se
8002 Ul pejosjjas sy) "siopiroid asay) 1o} S99} Ui SSBAIOUI %G B sjsenbal anss|
o/c'818'kes S08°Lrr'clS LL¥'9LE'6$ 8002/1/L . . (1bpnq sseaiou| sa4 ssomieg weqg| ‘S| TE
AOS) 002 Ul pojosjjel SY) 'seley [ejus(] Ul @seaioul %0z & sjsenbal anss)
(961°118'%%) (egz'ise'es) (Ev6'esy'LS) 800¢/L/L "%} Aq ssjel uojended 8:e3p 60-8007 Sonpay Sjey aleapiy s0npay| (0G| €€
(192'096°0¢%) (90£'/85'61%) %mo.ﬁm. L) chN:R ‘[oAS] 800Z 0€ sunr 8y} Je sajes uoiejided MH4 8zedid 9zl 9)ey MH4| 6¥| ct
Buipusg ulpuad ulpuad uipuad ‘abuByd Jy|Nd SIEIO0SSE PUB PEOPUOAA gyl L€
pue [an87 80ld Aq selewIse 60-800Z Ad @1eDPIY JO INoxesIq & apiAcld dd4 3 IWW1d 8.EOP
(Buipuad Buipuag Buipuad Buipuag ‘s99jjoiu Aed-jjn; JusWIBINbSY %0) SIEDPI] ¥ o¢
Jo} uswaiinbal juswijjoius %0} ay3 Buirowal Jo oedwl pejewnss auy} SpIAC.d
(ov8'v66'cTs) (8eL'ove'clS) (801°8%9°013) pazifenuuy jusied ewhed| op| 62
Jsjunooud ssedipaN ¢ oyl Buneuiwie yum pajeoosse sbuiaesg apiroid Jajunoous ¢f ssedips|y syeulwl3
(c28'086'L9) (e6L'cerv3) (6,0°2¥5'€3) 8002/1/L 000°L$ aoy| 8z
0} 00S'1$ woyy deo sy} Buonpal o} anp sbuiaes Jo sajeullss aplaoid 0S|y 000'1$ 0} den 4O |eydsoH sonpay
"ded sy; 03 dn Bujpuads are jey; ded ay) 0} joslgns m«_:_om 10 Jusoiad sy} apinoig
(¥6€°000'G$) (186°221'2%) (€1¥'TTTze) 8002/L/L 00L'1$ PO¥| /T
0} 0061 $ woy deo ay) Buonpal 0} anp sBuiAes JO salewse apiAcid oSy 001°1$ 01 deD dO jeldsoH aonpay
"deo sy} 0} dn Buipuads ale jey) ded ay) 0} Joaigns sjnpe Jo Jusasad sy} epiroid
(bv9'108'23) (09v'955°1%) (DA 8002/4/.L 002°1$ o0¥| 92
0} 00G'1$ woyy deo ay) Buonpail o) anp sbuines jo ssjewse apinold oSy 002'1$ 01 den dO |endsoH aonpay
‘deo ey} 0} dn Buipuads aie ey ded sy 0} J08{qns synpe jo Juaoiad sy} apInold
(zeo's6z'L9) (8Gv°12.L3) (vL1'15%) 8002/1/L 00€'1$ aov| sc
0} 00G'1$ wouy ded ay) Bupnpal 0} anp sbuines jo ssjewss aplaoid os)y 00€‘1$ 0} den JO [eydsoH sonpay
‘deo ay 0} dn Buipuads ase jey; deo ayj o joslgns synpe jo Jusolad sy} 8piroId
(55188¢%) (0v9'6123) (G157TLLY) 8002/1/L 00¥'1$ e0y| e
0} 005'1$ wouy deo ay) Buronpal o} anp sBuiaes 0 sajeWSa apinoid 0S|y 00%'1$ 01 den 4O |endsoH aonpay
| 'ded ey} 0} dn Buipuads ale jey} deos sy} o} 1osfgns synpe jo Jusoled ay} apircid
(5z8'ev9s) (629'95€$) (ov1°,828) 8002/1/L ‘oje1 jobue} buylieo suondwexg 4o jendsoy jeny| 7V €€
Aunoo ay) pue sjel jdwaxs ay} usamiag sainjipuadxe pajeLL}Se By} apIACIg
(vo'ove'sls)  [(L62'€90'LLs)  [(reesss) 8002/L/L ojel 19bue) buljieo suondwioxg dj endsoy jeny| 6| 2T
Aunoo ay) pue ael Jdwexs sy} usamiaq sainjipuadxe pajewlnss ay) apiacid
(9017ev2$) (9L1°250'v$) (066°581'€%) 800Z/1/L "sajel ONH 0} eyl 1z
Joedw) apnjouj -uononpal sU} S1e[NJeD 0} WSIUBYUOBW B SpIACld "%} Ag sojel AuQ uononpay 4o jendsoH
juenedinQ jendsoH 60-800Z A oy} Butonpai Aq sBuiaes pajewse sy} apiAcld
(€08'161'98%) (266'920'8¥) (620°2¥5'8€%) 8002/1/. ‘sajel zv| oz
DINH 03 1oedwi spnjou| "ezesl) 9y} O} UOHIPPE Ul UOKONPal 8lel %, B S1ejnojes 0} uononpay ¥ 9z8al4 a1ey do |eidsoH
WIS|UBYOSW B 9PIADId ‘[8AS] 800Z ‘0 SUnf 9y} Je aje! Juswasinquiial 9zeal
fejol pungishil [onuoaay |elsuan | ajeq Mels uonoy anss| Moy
pasodouad

8002 ‘i YoJeN 60/8002AS
JONIHIANOD LOVdINI AlVOIQIN



vioe

20-Z1-€ S0UaIsjueD Peduw| PrEIpaN

(961'%91'922%)

(€99°0s¥'SCLS)

(ees'ce/'00LS)

pazijenuuy

4 “Ajuo sadiAles Alojeinquue
b} dnoub Ayjiqibije Apsau Ajjeoipaw ay) Bupiw Aq sBuines pajelujse au apiAcid

(Aojeinquiy) ApasN Ajleoipsiy

1S

(r/8'92g'199)

(698'880°8¢$)

(so0'sez'ces)

pazjjenuuy

“1dd %G81-0G} woij dnosb
Anqibye uswom yueuBeid sy} Bunjeuiunje woy sBulnes pajewise sy} apiroid

%G81L-0G | UsWOopA Jueubaid

0s

(0/€'0zv¥80°cY)

Bulpusd

{ocv'ses 158" 1Y)

-

Buipuad

(0¥6'789'2€C'1$)

pazijenuuy

Buipuad

‘dnoub Ayjiqibife jeuondo yoes Aq ajew1ss [enplapul

- .
‘papirold usaq aney «m;m S90IAISS BY) EmEﬁmov 0} pue sauwi} Jno

-408Y2/ui-}08Yo plodal 0} Jaquinu duoyd 9a1)-{|0} B asn 0} siapiacid pledipsiy
swoy-ui Buuinbas Aq pajelsuab ag Aeuwl jeyy sBulaes Jo sjewnse ue apinold

ue epinold “sdnoub Apjiaifiiie [leuondo Buneuiwye Ag sBuaes pajewisa apiAold

sdnoio Anqiby3 reuondo eeuluniy

wajsis
UOJeDYIBA 90IALSS 10 JUlod pajewoiny

14

(080°1€2°¢9)

(108'080°Z9)

(622'059°L$)

[enuuy

£S81uNod wiiojoy-uou 1ayJo |e Ul qop Bunuawaduw yum pauiquics /7 pue
9 seaJe yYDHY ul Ajuo egy Bunuawejdwi Aq psonpoid ag pjnom sbulaes jJeypn

(qo pue egy 0} J9jaY)
uoiS1aAU0D ssedipajy JO UOHBUIGLIOD)

S

0%

0%

0$

VIN

(%08 %S9 ‘%05 ‘%SGe
'9%0¢ "6°8) @s00UD 0} |18} pjnom oym sjusidioal ssedipain Bulisixe jo abejusolad
Py} Inoge suondwnsse shouea uo paseq sbuiaes jo afuel e apiaoid ‘Aiesseosu
31 “(senunoo uuoey Buipnjou; Jou) AjjenpiAipul Bale 82IAISS YOHY Yoes

J0} ‘Ajgjesedes sjewnss sbuines pazienuue ue spiacid pue ‘60-800Z Ad 10}
olewnse sbuines e apiaoid ‘g0z ‘| 19gojo0 UO 10ay8 ojul Ind alom SUOIIPUOD
asay} | "sinjels wolj panowai ale (4)(2)2z16'60v pue (1)(2)zZ16'60k

'SS Ul punoy} AjJuaiIng oflel GE/GO Y] SWINSSY "POpNIOXe 8q Pinom

bored 2010yo Aep-0¢ 4oy} Buunp siseq juaedus ue uo Ao} Jo UoNISUI Le U
juswieal) aled yyeay Buineoal ale oym sjusidioal yons ‘aleo o AJNuRuUoD Jo4
‘uonjeulwis}ap-al uodn 86EISA0D JO S010UD B SR 0] |18} OYM pUE JUsSWijoiue
a4e0 pabeuew Alojepuew o} Joafgns ale oym sjuaidioal ssedIpaly o) Ajuo
Aidde pinom siy| "ssedipay Ui Bujurewsl jo pesisu; sue|d aseo pabeuew o}
paubisse ale ‘uoneulisiap-ai uodn ueld a1e0 pabeuew e 1o ssedipajy 9S00s
0} sAep og uanib Buiaq Jaye abeanod jo a0i0yo e ssaidxa Jou op oym sjuaidiosl
ssedIpaly Bunsixe usym sBuines psjewnss au) apiaoid ‘S8lUNCO WICBI-UoU u)

(z#) ssedipsy ul Aelg

0} asooy juod A8yl j} uoeulwIS}ep
-9y uodn sue|d aie) psbeuep 0}
HoAu0) sjusidioay ssedipayy Bunsixg
Jajsuel] - g UoIsIaAuo)) ssedipapy

99y

14

(281'890%19)

(ev1'spe'LS)

(6ev'222'9%)

800¢/1/0}

‘(senunod wuojey Buipnjour Jou) Ajlenpiapul

Bale 90IM9S YOHY Uoes 1o} ‘Ajojesedss sjewnsa sbuines (u-aseyd-isod)
pazifenuue ue apiaoid pue ‘60-8002 Ad 10} sjewisa sbuines e apiroid ‘@007
‘| J8go}oQ UO SSUNOD UIRNSD Ul J0ayS OJUl Ind S1oM SUCRIPUOD 8say} | eumels
luol) panowal ate (%)(2)2zZ16'601 Pue (31)(2)2Z16'60F "SS Ul punoy Ajuaiino onel
GE/G9 9y} swnssy “juauljjoius aied pabeuew Alojepueul 0} 1o8lgns ase oym
sjusidioal o} Ajuo Ajdde pjnom siy). ‘syjuow z| jo pouad e JSA0 UOHBUILLISIOP
-81 Jisy} uodn suejd aseo pabeuew oju; ssedipapy 0 N0 JajSUBI] 0} SenuUNoD
yons u| sjusidioal ssedipapy buisixe Suuinbal pue ‘sueid aieo pabeuew
8s00yo 0} sjusidioas preoipsiy mau Buiinbal Ag sBuiaes psjeuljse sy} apiaoid
‘sue|d ase0 pefeuew plesipayy 210w 10 0M) BUjUIRIUOS SSIJUNOD WIOBI-UOU U)

(1#) siq1ssod jusix3 js9ind
0] suejd aien pabeuepy o} ssedipay
Jajsuel) - | uoisisauoy) ssedipsiy

egy

124

(601°09%°2%)

(92£°1€1¥$)

(eeL'zze'es)

800Z/L/L

‘sj0|s
000°1 Ag weiboid uoisianlg swoH BulsinN Y} 9SeaJ0U; 0} S]BLUNSS U SPINOId

asea.Iou] UoISIBAI] SWoH BuisinN

0¢

1914

[CTIRZIE)

0%

(6e1'2519)

V/N

"60/80A4S Jo} weiboid ayy punj 0} papsau jJunowle sy} o} weiboid siy}
Joj uoyendoidde auy Buonpas o} enp sBuires pajewilsa JO SISA[EUR UB 9PIAOId

aoue)sIssy asuadxy [eonsoeweyd

14

44

(Zvi'goc'gLL'es)

(016'267'692°2$)

(ze2's.0'6vv°1E)

pazijenuuy

'S9OH buipnjoxa
s}inpe 10} soo1AI9S [euondo e Suieuiule Aq sBuiaes pajelunss sy} apIAcd

{sg0oH Buipnjoxs)
SHNpY Joj s8oiaeg feuondo sleuiulg

(013

34

|ejoL

pundjsni]

anuaAdy [essuas)

ojeq yuels
pasodoig

uonay

anssj

Moy

8002 ‘) USIBIN 60/800ZA-S
JONIFUIANOD LOVdINI AlvOIa3N



vioy

80-Z1-€ ouasajuoY Joedw| plesipsiy

]

121'618°20¢8)

pazijenuuy

(vy@) 1oy uononpay 3oyeq auy) Japun
panoidde se synpe Joj swnwaid Buisodwi woyj sbBuines Jo slewss ue apiaoid

JOAEM QY SO BUNBUILS WOl SPUIABS PBJeLLSS pIACId

swiniwald

JeNEA AV SAJIN sjeulwig

0% 2€S'910° LS (zes'ol0'L¥$) pazijenuuy %05 | 0} jusLLssasse [eldsoy %05 | O} JUBWSSASSY dO [eNdsoH qiy; 69
uenedino ay; Buiseasout woly pajelauab snusaal JO SJBLUISS Ue 8pIAold ° :
0% 99z'805°cT$ (992'805°c2$) pazjenuuy . %S¢’ | 0} jusuissasse jejidsoy %GZ"| O} JUBWSSASSY JO [endsoy Biy| 89
jusiedino ay) Buisealou] woyy pajesauab anusaal JO S}eWIISS UB 9PINOId 0 :
0% 800'8£€'86$ (800°82£'86%) pazijenuuy ‘%@ 0} Juswissasse %2 O} JUBLUSSASSY | [eNdsoN qog| /19
|endsoy juatjedu; ay) Buisealout woly pajesausd anusaal jO S1eLURSS Ue SpIACId 0 :
0$ ¥00'691 ‘6% (00’691 '6¥%) pszjjenuuy "%G .’} 0} jusuissasse . B9gl 99
[endsoy yusnedur sy Buiseasou; woyy pajeleush anusaai JO SjeLUSa ue apinoid %GL') O} JUSWSSBSSY d| [e)dsOH
0% ¥S6'LeL' LIS (¥S6'1zL' 1) pazifenuuy “Rep suo Aq uswesinquias [edsoy suopnquuog Aunoo eydsoy| €| 99
10} suojnguiuod Aunod ay) Buisealoul Aq sbBuines pajewiss ay} apinoid T :
0% LIS'v1S'8.$ (126'725'8.8) pazijenuuy 'Olels 8y} ul ,0NH U0 snuaAal JUBWSS3SSY OWH lel #9
18U Jo 9| jo Juswssasse ue Buuinbal Agq anuaaai Jo 8jBWIISS UB 3pIAOId
0% 6E6'YEL'6ES (6e6'vEL'6ES) pszienuuy "eplio] Jo smeT 61¢-26 Je3deyd wolj jusssasse JUSWISS3SSY JOPINOIg WO Buisiny 9c| €9
awoy Buisinu sy} Bulysijgelseas Aq pajelsusb anusaal JO }BWIISS Ue 9pIACld : :
0$ 969'cha'es (969°z¥8'c%) pazijenuuy -%0C Jo aseasul psZ; 29
uonnquiuod Aunod swoy Buisinu ayy Buisealoul Ag sBuiaes pajewisa apiacid %0 oseaioul Buliig Awnod HN
0$ 889'v6.'C$ (889'%6.'7$) pazienuuy ‘%G JO aseaioul oG6g| 19
uofjnguiuoo Ayunoo aswioy Buisinu ay) Buisealoul Ag sBuines pajewljse spiaocid %G| 9seaiou) Bullig Aunod HN
0% 910'960'C$ (910'960'2%) pazijenuuy ‘%01 o aseaiou} asg| 09
uonnguiuos Aunoo awoy Buisinu sy Buiseaiou Ag sBuiaes psjeulllSs SpInold %0} 9seasoul buliig Aunod HN
0% 800'8%70°L$ (800°870°1%) pazijenuuy '%G 4O @sealou BGZ| 69
uonnguuod Ajunod awoy Buisinu ay} Buiseasoul Ag sBulaes pajewnss spincid %G @seatouf Buliig Aunod HN
0% vv0o'e6l'c$ (#¥0'861°c$) pazijenuuy ‘'Seljifoe} 4Q/4DI 03 snusAal 18U JuBWssassy aa/4ol i¢| 89
%1} 10 Juawssasse ue Buuinbai Aq pajessush anusAsl JO 9)BUISS UR BpIACId
0% 0% 0% 8002/L1v "sbnip paisisiuiwpe uepisAyd uo sajeqal |ejuswsiddns sbniq passsiuiwpy| 61] /G
pue [eiapa) Buyosjjoo ybnoay) ssjegal Ul 8seaIOUl PSS U} 9PIACid ueioisAud 10} sajeqsy jo alpwnsg
0% 0zr'000'cS (oz¥'000°cs) 600¢/L/L gl 99

(8ov'16L'00v$)  [(0zz'cis'6zes)  |(8¥2'829°0LL$) pazjjenuuy (Ajuo seoiniss Aiojejnquie spiaoid) ‘uewom jueubaid pue|  (AjuQ seoineg Aiojejnquiy) pd pue| 91
uaJp|iyo Joy 1deoxs Apssu Ajleoipaw Buneujwie Ag sbuines pajewsa apinold]  uaipiyD o3 ApasN Ajjedipsiy sonpay
(cog'ies'aved)  [(evbv80°1023)  [(090°248°ZKLS) pazifenuuy (saoinles [ie apiaoid) “Ueliom yueubaid pue (seoInes i) Md PUB| GL| 2§
uaipjiyo Joy ydsoxe Apssu Ajjesipsw Buneuiwie Ag sbuiaes psjew)sa apinold|  uaipjiy) o) ApasN Ajjesipspy aonpay
|ejol pungjjsnil [anuaAay [elauas)| ajeq MelS uonay anssj] moy
pasodoid

8002 ‘L UdIBIN 60/800ZA-S
JONFHIANOD LOVANI AlvOIaan



Medicaid Provider Rates
Reduction Issues and Proposed Policies

Provider Type FY 07-08 Special Session C SB 1852

Appropriation
Hospital Inpatient

Hospital Outpatient  $672.2 (17.2) (26.4)
Nursing Homes Loos
County Health Depts  107.6 million (10.4)
ICF/DDs

Prepaid Health Plans  $2,233.4

TOTAL $8,236.4 (184.1) (316.0)

Hospital Inpatient

o State funds supporting hospital reimbursement include $165.7 million in GR; additional
state funds come from the PMATF and intergovernmental transfers.

o Prospective reimbursement systems were studied years ago; it may be worthwhile to
reconsider this approach.

o The amount of Medicaid caseload varies considerably among hospitals.

o Children’s hospitals have very high proportions of Medicaid patients and limited ability to
shift costs to other payers. v

o State payments to hospitals are made through several programs FFS reimbursement,
disproportionate share, and low income pool; these funding mechanisms should be

- considered together.
o Changes in eligibility also affect hospitals which are obllgated under state and federal law to

provvde emergency services.

Hospital Qutpatient
o Outpatient payments are limited to $1500 per person per year.

Nursing Homes

o Current rate setting methodology is complex.

o Proportionate application of any reduction is a fair method.

o Reductions will impact facilities ablllty to maintain compliance with the staffing
requirements. .

o Additional flexibility regarding staffing would help facilities respond to changes in
reimbursement.

o Cost based reimbursement does not provide incentive for efficiencies




o Current rate setting method does not fully account for differences in acuity levels of facility

caseloads.
o Over time, a price freeze erodes the validity of the reimbursement rate making it more

- vulnerable to legal challenge.

Health Maintenance Organizations

o Capitation rates are lowered when FFS rates are lowered

o HMO rates reflect a 9 percent discount from FFS spending levels
o Rates must be actuarially sound

Intermediate Care Facilities for Developmentally Disabled

o 100% of ICF/DD patients are Medicaid reimbursed; no ability to cost shift;

o Over time, a price freeze erodes the validity of the reimbursement rate making it more
vulnerable to legal challenge

o Proportionate allocation of the effect of any freeze or rate reduction is a fair to lmplement
this policy;

o For many of these patients, ICF/DDs are the only appropriate care facility;

County Health Departments

o Rates are cost-based and current levels represent 100% of costs

o Rates vary among counties but range from a low of $79 in Bradford County to a high of
$300 per visit in St. Lucie County

o Cost based rates are intended to fund county health departments for unreimbursed services




@

Medicaid Eligibility Groups

Mandatory

Optional

Infants < 150% of Federal Poverty Level (FPL)

Infants between 150% - 200% FPL

Children ages 1-5 < 133% of FPL

Children ages 6-18 < 100% of FPL

Pregnant Women < 150% of FPL

Pregnant Women between 150% - 200% of FPL

Low-Income Families < 23.2% of FPL

Family Planning

Supplemental Security Income Recipients MEDS A/D < 88% of FPL

Qualified Medicare Beneficiaries Medically Needy
Refugees

Medicaid Services

Mandatory Optional

Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioner Services

Adult Health Screening

Child Health Check-Up (EPSDT)

Adult Dental/Hearing/Vision Services

Family Planning

Ambulatory Surgical Centers

Federally Qualified Health Centers

Assistive Care Services

Home Health Services

Birth Center Services

Hospital Inpatient Services

Capitated Nursing Home Diversion Waiver

Hospital Outpatient Services

Case Management (Adult MH/CMS/Disease Mgt)

Independent Lab Services

Community Mental Health Services

Physician Services

Chiropractic/Podiatric Services

Portable X-Ray Services

County Health Department Clinic Services

Private Duty Nursing Services

Developmental/Early Intervention Services

Rural Health Clinics Services

Freestanding Dialysis Centers

Skilled Nursing Home Care

General/Intermediate Nursing Home Care

Supplemental Medical Insurance

Healthy Start Services

Therapeutic Services for Children

Home/Community Based Services

Hospice Services

Intermediate Care Facilities/Developmentally
Disabled

Occupational/Physical/Respiratory/Speech
Therapies (except for children)

Physician Assistant Services

Prepaid Health Plans

Prescribed Medicine

Primary Case Management (MediPass)

Psychiatric Hospital Services for Children

School Based Services for Children

State Mental Health Hospitals




Marco Rubio
Speaker

Healthcare
Council

Tuesday, March 25, 2008
10:00 AM — 12:00 PM
Morris Hall

Amended Packet

Aaron Bean
Chair



8S0EI86OV L
119'e5L'TeL'y
8£2'659'66
08y'z€8' el
182°012'59G
106'986'2€"L
£86'06'}

€.062L2C "

(1BLTES61)
9ze'sZe'0L (9e6'c0Z'1) -
¥09'60. (659'2¥2)
ov.'6y (¥s¥'001)
086°LLL'S (Leg'0zv'0L)
¥01'€58's (L20°2%0')
€le'6L (g9g'9l)

18698EL TL2) yovvigiel'z

(929'v61'v¥2) 186'G2G' 166y
(ces'vre'e) §Z8'9€0'205
(000'00g’1) - 88lL'egeoel
(9v¥'¥96'2) " P80'¥86'ELS
(9/6'v29'61) - 008'G58'e5G'|
(890°091) 019'820'v)

NINQY 34V HLTVYIH/AONIOY
18VSIA HLIM SNOSYId/AONIDY
40 1430 'syiv44v ¥3g13

40 1d3a ‘HIv3H

SFADINYIS ATINYL B NIHATIHD
40 1d30 'SHIV4dV . SNYHILIA

ANNIATY TvHaNTD



six1eBpng eseg 60-800Z A< OOHWUswdoeAR( 186pPNE\G0-8002\:X

(000'000°1) (000'000°1) _ WYHOO0Nd| €608012| LI
LNV ONIHOLYIN HOVIHLNO JHvOaId

(000'000°2) (000'000°2) MHOMLIN NOILYINHOANI HLTVIH VAIMO14| 260£0L2) 0L

(000002°2) (000'05€°}) (022'1) (oeL's¥e'L) s1inav| €00€0iz| ok
, HOINIS HO4 ONITISNNOD FDIOHO HLTYAH

(920'c52'22) (920'c52'22) NOLLISNVYL INJOV wOSId| Z00€0LZ| 6

(000°002) . , (000°002) AQNLS SFNOILNO ALIMYNOD HLVAH| 100£0LZ| 6

(000'082) (000‘052) 12Nd3a - ST2IAEIS INFWIOYNYIN 40| OLLLO8L] 8
AININ1IEYL3A OL 301440 ADOTONHOIL I1VLS
ONISSID0Ud V.LVA WOHL 139aNE HIASNYHL

000°0SZ 000052 aav - SI0IAYIS INIWIDOVYNYIN 40| 00LL08L| 8
INIW1HYCIA 01 301440 ADOTONHOIL TLVIS
ONISSIO0Nd VIvA WOH 139aNd HIISNVHL

¥16'G96'09¢ ¥16'G96°09¢ aav - SONYA/ANIDIAIN a3910SIdd| 061S09L| L
NI ¥3IHILNIAI 30YN0S ONIANNS 10FHHOD

(¥16°596'09€) (¥16°596'09¢) 10Na3a - SONYA/ANIDIAAN A3ai083ud| 081S09L| L
NI ¥3{HILNIAI FOENOS HDNIANNL 1OIHHOD

(o00'12) (000'12) 1ona3al okidogl| 9
- ADOIONHOIL NOILYINHOANI OL aSYHO¥MNd

FUYMLJ0S TVNNNY VVdIH YIISNVHL :

000°L2 00012 aav| 00Ld4o9gL| 9
- ADOTONHO3L NOILYIWHOANI OL ISYHOMN
IHVYMLI0S TYNNNY YVdIH HI4SNYHL

ov6'ZYs’L 988°1£2'L ¥G0‘LLE aav - ALMOHLNY 139and| 0y0309L] §

SIADIAHIS TVNLOVHINOD 40 INIWNDITYIY|

(ov6'zvs't) (988'1€2'1) (¥S0'L1€) 10Na3a - ALMOHLNY 139and, 0€0309L| &
SADIAYIAS VNLOVHINOD 40 INIWNOITYIY

(920'950°2) (060°258) (9e6°'c02'L) LIV SNOILVIYdOYddY TvI03dS| 0008001 ¥
¥04 @31snrav SIHNLIANIdX3 A3 LVINILST

(s€1°996°50%) (29%°15¢'0€2) (899'v1L9'62L)  [(159'6LL) (00'¢) O NOISS3S 1vio3ds| 000001 ¥
HO4 @31sNray SIUNLIANTdX3 A3 LVNILST

120'96 09.'c8 L1e'2L ISVAYONI| 000€00L| €
1INIH SIDIAYIS INTWIADOYNVIN 40 INIWLMV4IA

G6Y'E9 | eve'0s ori'el 80-/00T YV3A T¥OSId| 006200, €
SINIWLSNray IONVINSNI HLTVIH 31V1S

6.6'0¢ €62V 9z.'9 80-/002| 0061004 2
. HVIA TvOSId SINIWLISNCAY IONVHENSNI I4i1

6529666291 | 0£1'89.'609°L) | 8/€'G9L'eL) | 162'228'0L0°G | 8€L°088V. | 0G°0LL'L z

SNOILVHIdO - SFANLIANIdX3 d3LVINILST

139dn4g 3svd 6002-8002 YVYIA TvISId

0001001

o



six1eBpng 9seg 60-800Z Ad DOHWuawdoleAsq 1e6pnE\60-8002\:X

- 100d FNODNI-MOT HOH SNNIATYE TVHINTD
OL dNN4 1SNYL SNOILYNOQ ANV SINVHD

1390dn4g 3svd 6002-8002 UV3A TvISId

£z
vrv'L2e'ozi'oL | G99'%0V'SET LI 80L'VOL0LL | LL9'2SLTTLY | L8V'09.L'VL 0S°20L°} €C
1z8'elLs'ee lz8'egl'le ¥66'€22'01 , WYH90Yd 3HvOalM| 0020092 22
(zeg'0sL'y) (Lv'e0L'T) (816'940'2) NOISNYdX3 NOISHIAIQ IWOH ONISHNN| +10/v9Z| 22
(oos‘eat'L) (281'228) (c1£'929) ALIYNId| 0L0Lv92] 12
AINIWTIOUNISIA NOISHIAIQ FNOH ONISHNN
(ca1165°2€) (Ler'eee'12) (ze0'86101) NOILONAZY A1VY JNOH ONISHNN| 6002v9Z| 12
(1e8'66%'c) (099'cvL'e) (121'96¢'2) INTFNTIOHUNT FHVO AIOVNYIN ISYIHONI| 800.V9Z| 0Z
(ose'2v0'e) (9ev'veL'L) (ri6'21E'L) © S31vd INOH ONISHNN| 200.v9Z| 02
_ ONILLSNrav WO¥4 S3LVH IDIdSOH OL 1OVdINi
(5z9'ze9'ee) (e2e'509'81) (z5z'280'%1) SIDIAYIS AONIOHINT AIHINDIY| 900LV9Z| 61
ATIvY3a34 OL SINIAISIY TvOIVSNIZILIO SN
NON ¥04 SWIVIO TV.LIdSOH 40 INIWAVC LINIT
(zzo'662'91) 1(012°285'6) (zye'11e2) S1S00 9N¥A NOILdINOSIYd IDNATH| S00/v9Z| 61
(ze2'cLs'tLL) (618'685'9) (c16'226'Y) NOILLONAIY 31wy INJILVYLINO VLIdSOH| #00.v9Z| 81
(1e9'266'2H) (¥55°'885'¥2) (£20'69¢2'81) NOILONAZIY FLVvY INIILVANI TVLIASOH| €00/v9Z| 8i
(2v5'268'¢) (0eg's61'2) (212'299°1) SADIAYIAS AYIAINEA ANV YOGV 200.v9Z| Li
HOd AVLS 40 HLONIT IANTONI OL IVLIdSOH
AIN3ILVdNI 40 NOLLYZIHMOHLNY YOIdd aNVdX3
(900'c8)) (211°101) (688°'18) SIOIAYIS AILOVHINOD| L00.v9Z| Ll
ANV 3SNIdX3 INFWLHNVHIA 30NAIy
G869 6£8'€SS 909l NOILVZITNNNY HINOW L1 - 80-200Z YV3IA TvISId| 0062v9Z| 9l
SINIWISNrav IONVHENSNI HLTVYIH 3LVLS
6.6'0¢ £6Z've 9z.'9 NOLLYZITYNNNY HLNOW 9 - 80-2002| 0061v9Z| 91
HVIA TvOSId SINIWLSNray IONVINSNI 3411
(000‘00%) (000'002) (000'002) NOILYNIVAA| 20S.012Z| 61
ADOTOAOHLIIN ININWLSNFray MSIM
000°00Z 000002 SAYNSYIW INODLNO ALITVND| 1062012] Sl
1(000°005°¢€) (000°‘005°g) MHOMLIN SSTOOV VD AMVAILC| 20L€0L2| b1
(001'86) (001'86) , SINAWIONVHNI| 90L€0L2| ¥)
(S3vH4d) WILSAS INFWIOHOANT
NOILYHLSININGY AHOLYINOIY Vardo14
(06.'862) (062'862) $STD0¥Ud ATAYUNS HOLVYIIANI ALIIVNOD| SoLeolz] €1
(000'000'52) (000‘000's2) 43173 INVOIHENH TVLIdSOH| #0LE0LZ] €1
(162'c9t'82) (162'c9¥'82) SNOILJNIX3 ONITED TVLIdSOH| €0L€012| Zi
(cz6'699°2) (10Z'205'Y) (zz1'291c) STIVLIdSOH O SINFWAVY VID3dS| 20ie0iz| 21
(1e6°211°46) (1e5'211°19) aav| loieoie| i




¢ s|x}ofipng eseq 60-800Z A4 OOHJuUswdojerad 196pna\60-8002\:X

(£96'689°1) (852°196) (soz'szl) INIWISNrav| €00/.v9zZ| S€
31V FONVLSISSY FHYD TWNOSH3d

(sze'699'2) (zzv'eLs'y) (e06'g¥L‘L) 12NA3Q - SINTFWSSTASSY INIITO IAOHCINI OL| 200.V9Z| ¥E
NOISIATY QYO TMHOM NOILYNIQYHOO0D 1¥0ddNS

908°'162'C £06'Gi7L L £06'GrL L aav - SINFWSSISSY N0 IAOHdINI OL| L00LV9Z| ¥E
NOISIATY QYO THHOM NOILYNIGHOO0D LHO0ddNS

09L'8vE‘L 082'659 08€£°889 ‘NOLLVZITNNNY HINOW LI - 80-200Z ¥V3A TvISId| 006Zv9Z| €€
SININLSNrav IONVHNSNI HLTVIH 31VLS

£06'6¢ 6/9'81 vze'Le NOILVZITYNNNY HINOW 9 - 80-200Z| 0061V9Z| €€
: HVYIA TvOSId SINIWLSNrav IONVINSNI 3411

(612'9%9) (612'819) NDISIAIY WILSAS (09v) TOYINOD| ZIL0g0LZ| z€
_ LOVHINOD ANV 139an9 ‘NOILYOOTIV

(o08'g6LL) (o08'g6LL) NOILVINIWONY 44v1S| LL0e0LE, Z€

(zoi'90z')) (zoL'90z'1) _ INIW30OVId3IH!| 0L0€0LZ| LE
THNLONYLSYHANI ADOTONHOIL NOILYIWHOANI

(e8¢°05¢£'98) (£00'690 1) (08e‘182'6) S3111719vSIA HLIM SNOSHId ONIAYIS| 600€0L2| 1€

(000‘000°2) (000'000°2) ‘ SAN3dILS 1M0ddNS ATINYL ANV TYNAIAIGNI| 800€012| 0€

(000'052) (000'052) (DIN) INVHO FHNLONYLSYH-NI AIVDIa3| #00€0L2| 0€

(000°029°1) (000'029°4) SADIAYIAS IVININDOTIAIA| €00€0L2Z| 62

811'8¥5'L 6S0'v.. 6G0'v.. aav - S3UNLIANIX3 WOIHO931YD| 0¥8009L| 62
AINAYHND 1037438 OL 139aNd NOIvIY

(8L1°8¥5'L) (650'v22) (650'v22) 10NAa3a - STUNLIANIdX3 TvOIHODILYD| 0€8009L| 82
INFHHNO 10317438 0L 1395angd NIV

9729081 Yor'vi8°L z1£'881'91 aav - ¥3131LN3AAl I0HNOS ONIANN-| 028S091L| 82
LOTHHOD 1DF143Y 0L 139Hand NOIvad

(922'290'84) (vov'vig‘L) (zre'sgi'olL) 10NQa3a - YII41INIAl 30YNO0S ONIANNL! 018S094| 22
1034400 1031434 01 139and NOITYIY

(Lt£'898) (889'szl) (659°'2¥2) 12V SNOLLYIMdOYddY TVIO3AdS| 000800L| ZLZ
. HO4 @31SNrav SIHNLIANIdX3 a3 LVINILST

(z68'v0€°1) (9z9'zel) (99z'zsL'L) O NOISS3S 1vi0ads| 000,00k 92
HO4 @3LSNrav SIANLIANIAX3 A3 LVINILST

LI¥'Y0L 082'9S 1618 ASVIHONI| 000€00L| 92
NI SIOIAYTS INFWIDVYNVYIN 40 INIFWLHVLIA

095'z21 086'65 085'29 80-2002 ¥V3A IvOSId| 006200L| SZ

SINIWLSNrav IONVHNSNI HLTv3H 31V1S _

£06°6¢ 6298l vee'le . 80-200Z| 006100L| SZ
HVIA TVOSId SINIWLISNray IONVHNSNI 3411

88Y'yS8'L6L L 8.2'899'089 08€°182'6 0£8'706'10S ZvS'8.¥'9LL .| 00°€0L'E SNOILYHIJO - STANLIANIIXI AILVINILST| 000L00L| ¥Z

1390aNn4g 3svd 6002-800¢ UVIA 1vOSId




six186png aseg 60-800Z A4 DOHWuswdojeAs( 196pNg\60-8002\:X

(0eZ'y)

(og2'y)

13na3a

- Ad3IA0D3Y 1143N39 ANV NOILNIAIHd ANy
Ol S3DIAGAS ALITEIOITI IAISNIHIHJNOD
WO¥H 139aN4g INJWIOVYNVYIN MSId HI4SNVHL

0654091

114

0€Z'y

0€Z'y

aav

- AJ3AO0D3TY 1143N38 ANV NOILNIAIYd anvyd
O1 S3DINGIS ALITEIDITE AAISNIHIHANOD
WOH4 1390N4g INIFWIOVYNVIN MSIH HIASNVH L

0vS4091

14

(9ze'ss)

(80z‘08)

(811'62)

10na3a

- 019¢ 171 F1LVYNTS OL INVYNSHNd AHOOALVD
IvI03dS O1 ISN3IdX3 WoHd 139dNd
SIDIAYAS TVNLOVHLINOD 40 INJWNDITVIY

0L13091

44

9ze‘sL

80Z'0S

8lLl‘sz

aav

- 0192 7719 3LYN3S OL INVNSHNd AHOD3LVD
WI03dS OL ISN3IdX3 WOHL 139dnd
S3VIAYES TVNLOVHINOD 40 INTFANDITYIY

0013091

44

(oLe'0go'cl)

{6€1°G95'0)

(121'c90'2)

10V SNOILVIddOdddV TvIO3dS
J0d d31sNrav S3uN.LIaNIdX3 a31vNILSE

0008001

134

(811'20891)

868°298°¢C

(926'729'61)

(209'v5¥°L)

(00'92)

O NOISS3S TvidadS
H0d d31SNrav S3dN.LIANIdX3 dd1VINILST

000200}

134

98€'909

$€G'08

258616

ISVYIHONI
1INTH S3DIAHIS INFWIOVYNVYIN 4O INJWLHVYLEA

000€001

ov

8€0'08%

88v'81¢

085192

80-200¢ HV3A TvOSId
SINIWISNTAVY JONVHNSNI HLTVIH A1vis

0062001

oy

05961

1€9'68

£06°'901

80-200¢
HVIA TVOSIH SININLSNray IONVENSNI 3411

006100}

6¢

6y’ 126'V.6'C

€16'C67'€SZ')

£88°9/1'8S1

£65°266'295 1

122'6€2'81LS

00'65S'€l

058°26.'9Z1°)

Z19'860°229

8€Z°659'667

Zys'8lvollL

00°€0.'€

000°0S5°2

G06'GEV'L

G60vLL L

SNOILVYAdO - STANLIANIIXT d3LVINILST

aav - SINIW3OVd
ALINNWINOD 80-2002 INNILNOD OL HI4ISNVYL

0001001

090809¢

6¢
8¢
8¢
lE
A

(000°055'2)

(so6'cep'L)

(s60'vLLL)

10N3a3d - SINIW3OVd
ALINNWINOD 80-200Z ANNILNOD OL HI-4SNYHL

040809¢

o¢

80.°20L°C

169061 °)

150906

aav
- SINZITO JISNTJO4 HO4 SNOILJO INIFNIOVId

G00.v9C

9¢

(s11'08g'1)

(sLi'ose’L)

a=3annd divolaain SAILLYNYILTY 31v3H0

10na=a
- S1IN3ITO JISNIH04 Y04 SNOILJO LNJWIOV1d

a3aNNd divOIa3N JAILYNYILTY 31v3HD

1390aNg 3sv4d 6002-800¢ UVIA TVISId

¥00.vo¢

1’1




spjebpng aseg 60-8002 A4 DOHWUsWdoBASQ 1eBPNEN60-8002\:X

v11'20€

[ ZAAV

INVHO NOILVININITdNI JLVLS
“NOLINZLIY ANV INFWLYIHL ONINFHLONIHLS

0680091

1S

(096'299'L)

{096°252°L)

(o00'sov)

13N3d3d - AHO931vD 31VIddOdddY IHL OL
1390aN4d 34O A3SVE-ALINNNINOD HI4SNVHL

0620091

0S

0962991

096'L8Z°1L

000°G0¥

aayv - A4O93.Lv0O 31viddOdddyY IHL Ol
1390N4d JHvO A3SVE-ALINNWINOD HI4SNVH L

0820091

0s

(6£€'G2)

(6eg'ce)

1onasa
- ONINTZIOS ANNOHOMOVE HO4 SANNL IHVYO
a3svd ALINNIWWOD OL 139aN€g J34SNvd.L

0190091

1414

6€€'6Z

6ce'se

aav
- ONINTFFHOS ANNOYOMOVE HO4 SANNH FHVO
a3svd ALINNAINOD Ol 139and Y34SNvYL

0090091

6v

(szefo80'L)

(1o0'stt)

(P92'G£9)

10N3a3d - NOILO3L10dd aTIHO WOY4
SADIAYAS TYNOSHId 3HLIO0 OL HI4ASNVH L

0v10091L

8y

GZE'080°}

190'GhY

¥92'G€9

dav - NOILO310¥d AUHO WOY4
SIJIAYIS TYNOSHId ¥3HLO OL HA4SNVHL

0€10091

14

(158'001)

(1s8'001)

(29¢°Lv)

(00'1L)

10Na3ad - ALIIN3
1390dnN4d NIHLIM SINAINOdWOD NYHD0Hd
N33IMIL39 1390aNg ANV NOILISOd 4O ¥34dSNVHL

0884091

FA4

1S8°001

168001

19€°LY

00'L

aav - ALIINT
1390aN4d NIHLIM SININOJNOD NYHDO0¥d
N3IM1349 139aNd ANV NOILISOd 40 ¥34SNvHL

0/8d091

VA4

(e58°'29¢)

(L0z'901)

(259'192)

(216'0G¢)

(00'8)

19Nnd3aa
- LOVHINOD T1vH NIdVHO HO4 NOLLD31O¥d
G71IHD OL SLI43INIE ANV SIHVYIVS HIJISNVHL

0194091

14

£68°29¢

L0Z'901

259°19¢2

aav
- 1OVHINOD T1VH NIdYHD 404 NOILOZ10¥d
J7IHD OL SLIdINId ANV S3IHVIVS H34SNVH.L

0094091

oY

(605'8¢€)

(605'8€)

1ona3a
= NOILNIAYILINI ANV NOILNIAIYd IsSnay aTiHO
Ol SIDIAYAS TYNOSHId HIHLO HIASNVYHL

0654091

14

605'8E

605°8€

aav
- NOILNIAYTLINI NV NOILNIATHd 3sSngv A1IHO
Ol S3VINYIS TYNOSHId HIHLO H34SNVYHL

0864091

SY

(P90°1LL1)

(oot'ssL)

(r09'G1)

10Nd4d - S30INJ3S TYNOSH3d
H3H10 OL NOILO3LO¥d ATHD v/9 WOYd
1390N4g S3JIAHIS AUVHOJWIL HIJISNYHL

0464091

144

¥90°LLL

09¥'SS1

¥09°GL

aay - S30IAYES TYNOSHAd
¥3H10 OL NOILD310dd atiHO v/9 WO¥d
1390N4d SIOINYIS AUVHOJNIL HIJISNVHL

139dn4g 3svd 6002-800Z HVYIA TvISId

0954091

144




six1ebpng ased 60-800Z A4 OOHWuswdojeAsq 186pNg\60-8002\:X

(62€°L¥¥'6)

(s52°18L°p)

(vz9'soz’s)

(op5'2L1L°9)

(o02s1)

13Na3a - SAILIAILOY H3d0¥d IHL
Ol 1394aN4d ANY SNOLLISOd 40 INIJWNOITYIY

0£81091

LS

9€5'e95'6

zLe'.82'y

¥29'692's

opG'ZLL'9

00'¢LL

aav - S3LLIAILOVY ¥3dO¥d IHL
Ol 139dN4d ANY SNOILISOd 40 INJWNDITVIH

0281091

A

(oo1‘z8g)

(o01'289)

(ros‘e81)

(00't)

10NA3a - 3UNLONYLS TYNOILVZINYDHO
ANV 3I0HNCS ONIANND 1OIYHOD IHL
1037143 OL 139Aan€ ANV SNOILISOd NOITvYIy

0821091

9s

00L°28S

001285

$05°'681

00'v

aav - 3YNLONYLS TYNOLLYZINYOYO
ANV I0HNO0S ONIANND 1034H0D IHL
1037434 0L 1390N9 ANV SNOLLISOd N9ITvay

0.Z1091

g

000°€20°2

000'€20'2

EERINVER

HLTVIH TYINIA NIUATHD IHL NI YHOMLIN
HLTV3IH TYHOIAVHIE ¥04 ANN4 1SNYL
SINVHO TvH3034 NI ISYIHONI NNILNOD

0921091

GS

(£z6'0¢E)

(2z6'0¢€8)

10N03a - LOVHINOD
NOILOITI00 AYIAODIY LI43NIE IHL ANN- OL
S3ILLLNT 1390Nd NIIMLIF 1390N9 ¥IISNVHL

0ScLo9t

GS

126'0€€

1z6'0¢ee

: aav - 1OVdINOD
NOILO3T10D AYIAODIY LI4INTE IHL ANN-4 OL
S3ILIINT 1390aNn49 NI3IMLIE 139an9d ¥IASNYHL

0rzl1o9L

141

(gze‘ore‘L)

(v20'026)

(¥52Z'026)

10Nd3ad - s¥3i1N30
TIVO SS30JV FHL HOd V1S ANVHOdIWIL
YNOLLIQAY 3AIAOYd OL 139aNd ¥IASNVHL

0gcLo9l

L£]

8ze'ov8’L

¥20'026

¥52'026

aav - S¥3IN3ID
TIVO SS30JV IHL HOL J44V.1S AMVHOdWIL
1VYNOILIQQY 3AIAOYd OL 139aNeg ¥34SNVHL

0¢cio9l

€5

(rvo'zLL)

(¥¥o'zLL)

(821°%1L1)

(o0'L)

10Na3a - ALIINT

139an4g S30INYIS LH0ddNS ANY NOLLOTHIA
JAILNDIXT OL WVHD0Hd ALIHVS ATINYL THL
WO¥4 139dNd ANV NOILISOd 40 ¥34SNYYL

0160091

€S

yyo'TLL

vro'zLL

8LL'PLL

00}

aav - ALIINT

139dnd S30IAY3S 140ddNS ANV NOILO3NIA
JAILNOIXT OL WVHO0Hd ALIAVS ATINVL IHL
WO¥H 139dNd ANV NOLLISOd 40 H34SNVH L

0960091

Zs

185'a9|

186891

ANINIFHENDOUd AHIAOCDTH ONIONVAQY
NOSNHO! SAOOM LY3d0Y INNILNOD

0160091

44

000°008°C

000°008°'2

SWI190¥d 3SNAVY IONVLSENS HLIM
SNVIAINOTd ¥O4 INJWLYIHL ANV TvHHI4T
‘NOILNIAMILNI 43149 ‘ONINITHOS INNILNOD

139ang 3sv4d 6002-800Z ¥VIA TVISId

0060091

347




sixjebpng eseq 60-8002 A< DDHyusWdoeAs( 18Bpna\60-800Z\:X

139dnd 3Svd 6002-8002 ¥V3A TvOSId

(000'sZ¢€) (000's2¢) AINVHO NOILYININITdWI A1YLS| 2veeolz] 89
-NOILINZLIY ANV INJWIVIHL ONINTHIONIYLS

(66£'c86) (66£'€86) SIOAVNYOL VAIHO1d TWHINIO ¥O4|  L¥Zeolz| 99
ANVYHO ONITISNNOD SISO HLTVIH VANIW

(000°G22) (000°'522) SSITANOH| 8€eeoLlz| 29

(P6¥'621°L) & TARY) aav - ONIKYNDIY-NON| 802e0L2| 29
_ 01 SNOILVYIHdOHddY ONIYHNOIY 103Miaay

(o00'005'2) (000‘005°2) 100d MSIH 3¥vD a3sva ALINNWINOD| Svleolz| 99

(000'059'}) (000'009) (000'050°t) SAAILYILINI 3HV41IM ATIHO| 0Zleolz| 99

(000°'0s%) (000°05¥) 3asnay IONVISENS 11NAv| 860€0Lz| &9

(000'005) (000°‘009) 3snNav IONVLSENS AiHO| 260€012| S9

(oo0‘055°1) (oo0'0s0°L)  (000'00%) HLTv3H TVIN3IW a1iHD| S60€0L2| 9

(o00‘001'9) (oo0‘062'c)  |(000‘0SE‘2) HLIvaH TVvINIW L1nay| +¥60€0L2) 9

(000'005'2) (000'005°2) AVHO0Hd LOTd 1OV ¥3MvE INIILVdLINO| ¥10£0LZ| €9

(000°000°1) (000°000°}) WYH90Nd| ZLocEoLZ| €9
INVHO ONIHOLYIN Tv201 3SNAY IONVLSENS

ANV ‘HLTV3IH IVINIW ‘AL34VS 2178nd _

'{(000'0¢€) (0000€) ONIYOLINOW INJWITLIIS VAON| 010€012| 29

(116's2e'L) (116's22°L) SIANVORIYNH OL 3INA STOVINVYA ¥O4| 600€012| 29
ONIANNZ Y0079 SIDIAYIS VID0S INNLLNOD

(000'00¢g) (000°00¢€) HO1VHIANIO ANITLOH ISNaY vAIdO14, 8008012 19

(299'91L1) (299'911) ININIAOCHIWI| 900€0L2| 19
ALITVND HOd INVHO AMDNININ 40 ALISHIAINN

(s22'06%'L) (522Z'06%4) ONINIVYL| S00€0LZ| 09
dIONVAQY SHOLVYOILSIANI SAILOTLO¥Md

(000'002'2) (oo0'00z'1)  |(000°000°L) NOISNVdX3 SAIMNYL AHLTY3IH| +00€0L2| 09

(9e6'56S) (9¢6'669) ANTNOYEND ONINIVYL| €00£0LZ] 65

ANV SWILSAS NOLLYWHOANI ONISNIDIT]|

(ze66'ste2)) (¥6¥'600°€L) (861'9¢E'p) (SIMOVYS)| z2o0g0Lz| 65
NILSAS NOILYWHOANI IHV4TIM QTIHO
A31YNOLNY JLVLS VAIHOT4 40 NOILITdNOD

196'G¢8°L 1G6'5E8'L aay - SA2IAYIS INFWIOVYNYIN 40| 0S+00ZL| 8§
ININLHYCIA FHL NOYH WYHDO0¥Hd SLi43N3g
NOILJOQY 40 ¥AISNVHL || IdAL INIFWITdINI

00Z'Z8 00Z'z8 INVYO NOILYNIQHOO0O INJWLYINL 3SNgyY| 0006094 8§
JONVLSANS INIDSI10AV 40 NOLLVYANILNOD




s|xjabpng aseq 60-800Z Ad DOHuUsWdoBAS( 19BPNE\G0-8002\:X

1390ang 3svd 6002-800Z UVIA TvISId

(vsv'ool) (bs¥'001) 1OV SNOILYIYdOYddY TVIDIdS| 0008001, 62
HO4 @31snrav S3UNLIANIdX3 A31VINILST

(000'000'¢) (000°005°L) (000°005°1) O NOISS3S ID3dS| 0002004 8L
. HO4 a31snrav SIUNLIANIdX3 a3 LVINILST

805'8S 129'v1 188'cY _ JSVIHONI| 000€00L| 82
LINTH S3DIAYIS INFWIDOVYNYIN 40 INIFWLIHVLIA

Z62'v1 986'6 a0e'y 80-2002 YV3A TvOSId4| 0062004 2121
SINIWLSNray IONVHNSNI HLTYAH 31V1S

G6L°. Gl8'Yy 08€'2 . 80-200Z| 006L00L| L
. HVYIA TvOSId SINIWLSNray IONVHENSNI 3411

099'G06'G8E 950'882°022 £86'66%'82 | 1Z9'219'0¢L G0S'vy6'9L | 0GLLY SNOLLYYIdO - SFINLIANIAX3 a3a1LvNILST| 0001001 92

= 3 g H A & ¥ w&.

, Sl

#8£°086°068°C 009°LvE0LZ L £88°159°2F1 | L06°9086°2ES'L | L69'CEV'OLS | 00'SZS‘EL , AL | agi] S/

761'€€0'L ¥61°c€0'L ALIOVdVYD DISNIHOL IVNOLLIAay| 0082092 ¥.
HO4 SAVYIVS OL SIDIAYIS AILOVHINOD
40 NOISHIANOD FHL 40 NOILYZITYNNNY

000'669 000'669 WYHD0Yd IHVDaAIM] 0£00092| b2

8L'082's 89¢'€0V'Z 050°228C NOILLVZITNNNY HINOW L1 - 80-2002 ¥V3A TvOSId| 0062v9Z| €L
SINIWLSNrav IONVINSNI HLTV3H 31VLS

0v5'961 1£9'68 £06'901 NOILVZITVNANNY HINOW 9 - 80-200Z| 006Lv9Z| €L
HVIA TvOSId SINIWLSNraY IONVHENSNI 3411

9vS'6Y 20v'Le rrLgl SNOLLONA3Y 8002-200Z UVIA TWOSId| 10880l ZZ

(85‘820°91) (¥85'820'91L) IANNIATYH ONIHENOTUNON] 1092012 2L
HLIM SANN4 ONIXNNDTY J0V 143y

(009'est) (009'cgt) ONDIOIdJVHL| 8¥eeolz| 1L
NVINNH 40 SHOAIAYNS INVHDINNI

(915'81) |(a1g'8L) SV V.Lva ANV ONINYYIT-3 339Nn43d| Lb2e0lz| 1L

(000°000°2) (000°000'2) ALRMOHLNY 139aN4d aNN4 LSNYL IONVLSISSY| 9¥zeole] o2
ONISNOH SSTTINOH ONIHUNOTUNON FHOLSTIN

(o00'sL1) (o00's1L1) INVHO NOILYNIQHOO0O INIWLYAYL asngy| Svzeoiz| oL
JONVYLSENS LNIOSITOAV 40 NOILLYNNILNOD

(000'081) (000'081) INTFNTHNOOHd AHIAODIYH ONIONVAQY| P¥2e0LZ| 69
NOSNHO SGOOM 14390 INNILNOD

(o00‘008°2) (000°008°2) SW3180Yd 3SNAV IONVLISENS HLIM| £72e01Z| 69
SNVIAIMO14 ¥O4 INIWLVIHL ANY Tvyy3day
‘NOLLNIAYILNI 43149 ‘ONINIZHOS INNILNOD




= SISVIHONI SINVYHO 1H0ddNS OL ¥IISNVYHL

139dn4g 3svd 6002-8002 JVIA TVOSId

6 six'je6png aseg 60-800Z Ad OOHwuawdoersQ 196pNE\G0-8002\:X
(000°59) (000°s9) S3ASNILX3 0L 12Na3a - 13sand| 0103091 06
SAVIAYIAS VNLOVHINOD 40 INJWNODITVIY
(156'991°02) (c11'8€9'8) (1o0'080°L)  |(2£8'8¥¥'0L) LOV SNOILYINdOYddY VIO3dS| 000800L| 06
: H0od a31snrav S3XNLIAN3IdXI a3.LVINILST
(o¥¥'v90'e) (oo0'001) (9vv'v96'2) 0 NOISS3S vioads| 000.00L| 68
HO4 @31SNray SIUNLIANIdXA A3 LVINGLST
gGl'ezy Ghe'GGe ¥ZZ'l 9862/ , ISVYIHONI| 000£00L| 68
ANTY SAVIAYIS INFWIAOYNYIN 40 LNIFWLHVETIA
G98'c/6 606925 62} 128'9vv 80-2002 ¥V3A TvOSId| 006200 88
SINIWLSNrav IONVHNSNI HLTYIH 31VLS :
196'62¥ 829'2¢2 96 £88'961 80-/00¢| 006100L| 88
HVIA TvISId SINIWLSNrAy FONYHMNSNI 3411
229°0£1'208'2 864126780 9/€£'99Z'LL1 | 881'2Y6'G09 SrlL'veb'82L | 09°GLL'E SNOILYHIdO - SIHNLIANIAX3 A3 LVINILST| 000L00L| 28
- 0y § 18
. 98
85Z'6E0°6.€ SyL'ZeY'6Le £€9°0LL'vZ | 08Y°ZESVEL S0S‘yv6'9L | 0S'LLY : 98
0 _ (810'28) 10Nna3a- s3ALLIINA| 0Z00H1S| <8
139ang NIIMLIF FLVY 40 INFANDITYIY
0 61028 _ aav - S3ILIINT| 0L00MLS| S8
1390N9 N3IMLIE 31V 40 INFWNDITYIY
zLz'isl 98601 99¢‘ /Y NOLLVZITNNNY HINOW L1 - 80-200Z HVIA TvOSId| 0062v9Z| +8
SINIWLSNrav IONVHNSNI HLIVIH 3LVLS
G6lL‘L Gi8'py 08€'Z NOILVZITVYNNNY HANOW 9 - 80-200Z] 0061v9Z| +8
HVIA TvOSId SINIWLSNray IONVHNSNI 3417
(000's2) o (000's2) /6€ €H - SLINAY HO4 ¥IAIDINYD| 8¥0€0LZ| €8
(o00‘222'2) (000'z90'27)  |(000012) SWYHOO0Yd SIDIAYTS TwD01| LP0E0LZ| €8
(000‘0S¥) (000'05¥) S30IAYIS /S1O3r0odd ISYASIA SHIAWITHZ V| 2r0coLe| z8
(000°000°1) (000'000°1) T NVHO0¥d (300) ATHIATI IHL HO4 I™VD| €00£01Z| 28
ALINNWINOD IHL NI SINIITO TWNOILIAAY IANE3S
(0se'212) (0ge'212) AH093ALYD SADINYIS GILOVHINOD - SAlv| 200€01Z| 18
ANV SINVHO - JWILTHT V HO4 SAILINNWNOD
(e68'652) (920'025) (218's£2) (948'v1¥) (00'6) _ _ 1ona3a| ozisogi| 18
- NOLLYZINYOHOTIH AONIOV 40 TVAONJdYIH .
£68'GG/ 90'025 118'6e2 9/8'v.¥ 006 aav| 0L1809L| 08 -
- NOLLVZINYOHOIH AONIOV 40 TVAOHddYIH
(L18'6t2) (218'6v2) 1ona3al 00z409L| 08
- SASYIHONI SINVHO 1HO0ddNS 0L ¥I4SNYHL
118'6he L18'6ve gav| oold09i| 62




six'1ebpng aseq 60-800Z A4 OOHWuUswdojpAaq 18BPNENG0-8002\:X

1390an4 3svd 6002-800Z ¥V3A TvISId

(ogz'azl) 19na=al 012so09t| ool
- M3IATY ANN4 LSNYL INIWNITLLIS 020OvE0L

GzZ'TslL 6zZ'T81L aay - M3IAIY| 081S09L| 001
adNN4d 1SNYL JONVHNSSY ALITYND TvIIdan

(gzz'zst) (gzz'zst) . 10Na3a - M3INTY| 0.1S09L| 66
ANNd 1SNYL JONVHNSSY ALITYND TVOIaIn

00.'SSY've 004'GSH've aav-m3IAZd NN INNIATY TvHINIAD| 091S09L| 66

(002'sst've) (002's5¥'v€) 1ONA3Ia-MIIATY ANND INNIATY TIVHANTD| 0S51S09L 86

000005 000'00S aav - MIIN3Y| 0rLS09L| 86
aNN4d L£snN¥L AHNCNE Y00 TWNIAS ANV NIvee

(000009) (000°005) - LONG3a- M3IINTH| 0€LS09L| L6

aNN4d 1SNYL AYNPNI Y00 TVNIAS ANV Niveg| -

00€‘L 00€‘L aav - MIIATY aNN4 1SNYL IAILYHLSININGY] 00LS09L| 16

(oog4) (o0g’1) 12Na3a - MIIATHE NN LSNYL FAILYHISININGY| 060S09L| 96

08502 0850 aav| 080S09L| 96
- M3IAZY ANN4 LSN¥ 1L SNOILLYNOG ANV SINVYHO

(085'02) (085'02) 1ona3a; 008091 66
- M3IAZY NN 1SNYL SNOILYNOQ ANV SINVHO

9€/°96Z'/¢ 7.6'86'9¢ ¥9.°LLE dav - ONIANNH INIWLHVHIA HLTVIH ALNNOD| 0v0S09L| 66

(982'9g2'2€) (z16'8¢6'9¢) (92'218) 129nd3al 0e0S09L| v6
- ONIAONNS INFWIHYCIA HLTVIH ALNNOD

(zoo'sL1) (zoo'st 1) 10Na3a - 600.9H- 1OV| 00¥d09L| ¥6
SNOLLYIYdO¥HddY 1VIO3dS NI NOILONA3X OL
3aNA ININOJIWOD WYHSDONd OL NOILOTHHOD

Z00'GLL Z00'GLL aav - 600.49H - 1OV| 00£409L| €6
SNOILYIHdO¥ddY TVI03dS NI NOILONA3Y O1
3INA ININOJINOD WYHOO0Hd OL NOILDINHOD

G08'906°L L G08°906°LL aay - NOILO3IHH0D| 020d09L| €6
TVYOINHOIL ININOdWOD WYHD0Hd

(08'906°L1) (508'906°L1) 1ONA3ad - NOILOIHHOD| 0L0d09L| Z6
TVOINHOAL ININOJINOD WYHDOH

#v9'88¢e'e rr9'see'e 000°0S SINIWANINY 40 TYAOHddY3Y| 0v0309L| 26
A"0931VD VID3dS Ol aav - 139dnd
SADIAYIAS TVNLOVHLINOD 40 LNJWNOITYIH

(vv9'88e'e) (yv9'geg'e) (000°0S) SINIWANINY| 0S0309L| 16
. 40 VAQYddYIY AHO9TLVYD 1ONA3d - 139dnd
SIDIAYIS IVNLOVHLINOD 40 INJNWNDITVIY

000'G9 000'G9 AHO93ALVYD WIDAdS 01 aav - 139and| 020309L| 16
SADIAYAS VNLOVHINOD 40 INFWNDITYIY




139dN4g 3Svd 6002-800Z YVIA TvISId

L six1e6png 8seg 60-800Z A4 OOHuUswdojera( 196pNa\60-800Z\:X

(oc12v9) (01 2v9) NOLLVHLSIOIN| SSLE0LZ| 0L
H1Y3d JINOY10373 SOILSILVLS TVLIA

(000'00¢g) (000°00¢) , SI1I4 SIVIHALYIN  PSLEDLZ| 60L
JALLOVYOIAYY 40 5O HIOVE ONINNVOS

(000'0¥1) (ooo‘ov)) SYILIN HOdVYA| €51£012] 601
AUNOYIAN ANV SHILIW IAI4TNS NIDOHAAH
40 3SN FHL HONOYHL ALITVND HIV HOLINOW

(o00'000°1) (000°000°1) NOISS3S 2002 - 6921 9H ALITVLHOW INV4NI| 251€0L2| 801

(000'00S°1) (000'005°1) NOILYDNAT IONINILSAY AHOLSIM!  LGLE0iZ| 801

(885'128'8) (885°128'8) GNN4 1SNYL NOILISNYHL IHV4TIM - (INVL)| 0SLE0LZ| Zob
SAMINYH AQIIN YO FONVLSISSY AUVHOdWIL

(oov'v18°L) (oo¥'v1L8°L) 103rodd NOILVYOIINI ANV| ZbLEoLZ| Lol

AINIWJOTIAIA SIDIANIS TVOIAIW SNIHATUHD| -

(000‘000°1) (000°000°4) S3DIAYIS HLTVAH TOOHOS IH01S3H| 6€LE0LE, 901

(461'v29) 1(261'%29) JUNLONYLSYHANI ADOTONHOIL NOILLYWHOANI| €21€012| 901

(o00'g2s'L) (oo0'cs0'9)  [(000'G29°1) S103rodd vi03dS HLTVAH 40 INAWLNv43Iad! 0Z0eoLe| sol

8€8'2Z1'G9¢€ 8£8'221'69¢ aav - s31H0931vD| 0060081 S04
TVIO3dS NOILIMLINN TvH3a3d NOI VI

(8e8‘zzv'q9E) (8e8'zzi's9¢) 10N0a3a - S3ao9D3aALYD| 0680081 $0L
TVIOIJS NOILIMLNN Tv¥3a34 NOITvIY

zie'ele's 8G1°689'C ¥G1L'vz9'e 19G'9.€"L 0008 aav| 08v008L| ¥oL
~ ALIINT 139an4 SADIAYIS HLTVIH ATINVA
_ IHL NI SININOJIWOD NWYHOONd 3SdV 110D

(zie'cle's) (851°689'G) (51'¥29'c) (295'92¢'L)  |(00°0€) : 1ona3qa| 0v008L| €ob
- ALIINT 1390n9 S3DIAYIS HLTVIH ATINVS
3IHL NI SININOdINOD WYHOOYd 3SdV 110D

GL0') GL0'} aav - S30IAY3S WOLLNADVNYYHA JAIMILYLS| 0S0809L| €01

40 NV3¥Nd 3HL 40 NOILVZINVOHOIY| -

(510°1) (510°1) 1ona3qa| ovoso9l| zoi
- SIDIAYIS TVOILNIDOVYNEVYHC FAIMILYLS
40 Nv34Ng 3HL 40 NOILYZINYOHOTIY

650'622') 650'622'1 Z0¥' 285 00'¥) aav - SNOILISOd| 08L009L| 20l

: 11any Wvd90dd IHYD d00d ATIHO H¥34SNVH L .

(650'622°L) (6s0'622'}) (zov'185) (00°%1) 10Na3a - SNOILISOd| 04L008L| LOL
L1any AVH9H0¥d FHVYD d00d ATIHO H34SNVYH L

0SZ'9.1 0S2'9.1 aav| 0zzsosl| Lol
- M3IATY NN LSNYL INIWITLIIS 0D0VE0L




ZL s|x1obpng @seg 60-800Z Ad OOHUaWwdoASQ 19BPNE\G0-8002\:X

8LEv65'8G ¥£6'G.G' vy ¥8€'8L0VL z6L'seZ'le | 057029 SNOILY¥IdO - STANLIANIAXT a31VINILST| 000L00L] ZZi

144!

1z

8YZ'vL0'68LT 80Z°122°290°C 652°0EL'S0L | 18L°01L2°59S SyL'pev'szL | 05°6LL°E 1zl

2 v aay| 00zoove! ozi
- S30UNOSIY HLTVIH ALINNWNOD NI MIIATY
ANN4 1SN¥L SIDIANIS TVOIAIW AONTOHINI

) (v) 1ona=al oslLoobe| ozl
- S30HNOSIY HLTVAH ALINNWWOD NI MIIATY

ANN4 LSNYL SIDIANIS TVOIAIW AONIDHINT ,

(109'8LE"Y) (109'8LE"Y) WYHOO0Yd IHVOAIM| 009009Z] 641

Ggz'alL G8Z'9l NOISS3S| 00S009Z| 6L
2002 - 8¥Z 9S S1SITVIO3dS ONISHNN T¥IINITO

99G'/¢" 99G'/¢ ONI44VLS| 00+0092] 8LL
NOLLYDILSIANI ALIAILOY QISNIDIINN

19V' 1Y 19V' 1Y ONIJ4VLS STADIAYIS JAILYOILSIANI| 00€009Z| 8L1

00v'ElL oor'el M3IATY T020104d (dNYY)| 0020092| ZLL
YINOLLILOV¥d ISHNN aFHILSIOIY GIONVAQY

6/9'6ZL 6.9'G21L SNOILYTOIA 1OV OILINSOD| 0010092 il

ANV DN¥A - 667 ¥ILdVHO 40 NOILNDIASONMd| -

G16'2LL'0L 666'G6.'G 6Lyl 160'GL6'Y NOILVZITNNNY HINOW L1 - 80-200Z ¥V3IA TvOSId| 0062v9Z| 9LL
SINIWLISNrav IONVHNSNI HLTVIH 31V1S

19662y 8z9°zeC 9g £88°061 NOILVZITYNNNY HLNOW 9 - 80-200Z| 006Lv9Z| 911
dVIA TvOSId SINIWISNray IONVHNSNI 3411

898Z8¢'L 898'GE 000°000°L 00082 SNOLLONA3Y 8002-200Z ¥VIA vOSI4| 1058012 SLL

(000'000°0€) ‘ (000'000°0€) IYVO HLIv3IH 01 SS300V| S91€0LZ| SLL

(821'%1) (8LL'vL) ONIJ4VLS| +9L€0LZ| vl
NOILYOILSIANI ALIALLOY A3SNIDIINN

(821°22) (821'22) ONI44V1S STOIAYIS IAILYOILSIANI| €91€0L2| viL

(ov2'¥S) (ov2'v8) ONI44V1S STDIAYIS NOILNDOISOYd| 2Z9LE0LZ| €L

(921'%) (922'v) MIIATY 1020104d (dNYY)| L9LE0Lz| €L
HANOLLILOVH ISHNN AFNALSIDTH AIONVAAY

(51€'c9) (51£'c9) SNOILYIOIA LOV OILINSOD| 091e0le| ZLl
ANV 9N¥A - 667 I LAYHD 40 NOILNDASOHd

(092°2£9°1) (092'2£9°1) WYYD0¥d Sd31S| 651€0L2) Zii
: ATdV3 3HL ¥O4 ONIANNS Tvy3a34 TvNolLIaay

(8v6'06) (8v6°06) SAHOO3Y A3OVAVA| 8SLE0LZ| LI
ao01d 30V1d3d - SOILSILYLS VLA Yar™o14

(000'v9¢) (000't9€) SIDIAYIS AMOLVYHOaY 1| 2SLE0LZ| LiL

(os1°2¢22) (051°222) NOILYH1SIOIY! 961€0L2| OLL
H.LHIg DINOYLOI T3 SOILSILYLS TVLIA

1390an4g 3svd 600¢-800¢ YVIA TvISId




€L sixjeBpng eseq 60-800Z A4 OOHwuUawdojeAsq 19BpnNE\60-8002\:X
188€el'vIe'eT | OV6'LEL'L6E°GL | £88°TTL LYY | 8G0'C.8'69Y'L | $S0'682°VI8 | 00'161L°CZ
£0.'855°8S 9LL',29'vY 0 186°0€6°Cl 819°.€2°1Z | 05°899
926'vve 51589} 1GE'9/ NOILVZITNNNY HINOW L1 - 80-2002 ¥V3A TvOSId| 0062v9Z
SINIWISNrav IONVHNSNI HLTV3H 31V1S
el 08€'y 796 NOILVZITYNNNY HLNOW 9 - 80-200Z| 0061v9Z| 621
HVIA TvOSId SINIWLSNrav IONVHNSNI 3417
00009 000°09 SNOILONATY 8002-200Z HVIA TvDSId| L0S80LZ| 8ZL
(o0g'tL) (o0g'1) 1SITvIOAdS 139and - ISYIHONI| ve0e0Le| 821
NOILISOd (3.14) INTTVAINOI IWIL 1IN TVOSId
(oog‘t) (o0g‘t) SNOILYONIWWOD3Y| €£0e012| 22Z)
/SONIANI LIANY-ISYIHONI
ONI44VLS TVHINTO HOLOAdSNI IHL 40 IDI440
(i) (Fri) OLLVY ONIJ4V1S SHNOH 6'2 IOVYIAY| 2£0£01Z| Lzl
(000'02) (000°02) AHOD3ILYD (0D0)| €20c0L2] 9zZL
AVILNO TVLIdYD ONILYHILO - INFNJINDI
AININIOV1dIY FJNOH ONISHNN TLVLS
(000'09) (000'09) SINIAISTY AddYDIANYH| S00€0LZ| 9Z1
L1HOdSNY¥L O1 d3ddIND3 SNVA ISYHONNd
AYHO0Yd INOH ONISHNN.SNVYHILIA JLVLS
(080°'c2) (080'c2) AH0931vD (000) AV1LNO VLIV ONILYHIdO| 200€0L2] szl
. - INFNINDI TYNOLLIAAQY IWOH ONISHNN JLVLS
(898'92) (000°09) (898'91) 10V SNOILYI¥dOYddY TvIO3dS| 000800L| SZ1
HO4 a31snrav. S3YNLIANIdX3 A3 LVNILST
(890‘091) (890°'091) (y16°29) (00'2) O NOISS3S vIO3dS| 0002004 | vzl
H04 a31SNrav SIXNLIANIdX3 A3 1VINILST
69Z'91 z0z'zL 190t ISVIYUONI| 000£00L| Pzl
ANTH STDIAYIS INFJWIADYNYIN 40 INFWLHVLIA
99z'2Z GzZe'SE 1769 . 80-/002 ¥V3A 1VOSId| 006200L| €zi
SINIFWLSNrav JONVHNSNI HLTY3IH F1VLS
Zve'L 08€'y 296'C 80-2002| 006100L| €21

HVIA TvOSId SINIWLSNray IONVHNSNI 3411

1390aNn49g ISvd 6002-800Z ¥VIA TVISId






